SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE. STATE OF CALIFORNIA



FROM: Economic Development Agency

SUBMITTAL DATE: June 19, 2014

SUBJECT: Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center - Approval of Professional Services and Construction Management Services Agreements, [District 1/District 1], [\$1,072,200], [Capital Improvement Program Funds to be Reimbursed by Development Impact Fees 100%]

RECOMMENDED MOTION: That the Board of Supervisors:

- 1. Approve the attached professional services agreement for soils and materials testing and inspection services between the County of Riverside and RMA Group (RMA) of Rancho Cucamonga, California, in the amount of \$274,990 and authorize the Chairman of the Board to execute the agreement on behalf of the county;
- 2. Approve the attached professional services agreement for construction management services between the County of Riverside and Kitchell CEM (Kitchell) of Ontario, California, in the amount of \$797,210 and authorize the Chairman of the Board to execute the agreement on behalf of the county; and

(Continued)

FISCAL PROCEDURES APPROVED

PAUL ANGULO, CPA, AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

Robert Field

Assistant County Executive Officer/EDA

SOURCE OF FUNI	DS: Capital Impro	vement Program F	unds to be	Budget Adjustr	ment: No
NET COUNTY COST	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0	Johnson Z. J.
COST	\$ 804,150	\$ 268,050	\$ 1,072,200	\$ <u>0</u>	Consent □ Policy
FINANCIAL DATA	Current Fiscal Year:	Next Fiscal Year:	Total Cost:	Ongoing Cost:	POLICY/CONSENT (per Exec. Office)

reimbursed by Development Impact Fees (previously approved budget) 100%

For Fiscal Year: 2014/15-15/16

C.E.O. RECOMMENDATION:

County Executive Office Signature

APPROVE

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

On motion of Supervisor Jeffries, seconded by Supervisor Benoit and duly carried by unanimous vote, IT WAS ORDERED that the above matter is approved as recommended.

1/1

Ayes:

Jeffries, Tavaglione, Stone, Benoit and Ashley

Navs:

None

Absent:

None

Date:

July 1, 2014

XC:

Prev. Agn. Ref.:

3-21 of 5/7/13; 3.25 of 4/17/12; 3.14 of 2/01/11 **District:**

Agenda Number:

Kecia Harper-Ihem

Clerk of the Board

SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Economic Development Agency

FORM 11: Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center – Approval of Professional Services and Construction Management Services Agreements, [District 1/District 1], [\$1,072,200], [Capital Improvement Program Funds to be Reimbursed by Development Impact Fees 100%]

DATE: June 19, 2014

Page 2 of 3

RECOMMENDED MOTION: (Continued)

3. Authorize the Assistant County Executive Officer/EDA to administer the agreements for soils and materials testing and inspection services and construction management services in accordance with applicable Board policies.

BACKGROUND: Summary

On June 4, 2013, the Economic Development Agency (EDA) advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the purpose of selecting the most qualified firm to provide testing and inspection services for the Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center (Van Horn YTEC) project.

Per Board Policy H-7 and Government Code, a selection committee was formed that included representatives from EDA and the Probation Department to review each responding firm's qualifications. After reviewing all of the submitted Statements of Qualifications (SOQ), RMA was selected as the firm best suited to provide the soils and materials testing and inspection services for the Van Horn YTEC project.

On August 16, 2013, EDA advertised an RFQ for the purpose of selecting the most qualified firm to provide construction management services for the Van Horn YTEC project.

Per Board Policy H-7 and Government Code, a selection committee was formed that included representatives from EDA, the Probation Department, and DLR Architects to review each responding construction management firm's qualifications. After reviewing all of the submitted SOQs, Kitchell was selected as the firm best suited to provide construction management services for this project.

In order to fulfill the conditions of the funding awarded by the state and bring this project through design award and construction, it is necessary for the project team to incur costs such as project management services, real estate services, and miscellaneous consultant fees. These costs will be funded by Capital Improvement Program funds to be 100% reimbursed by Development Impact Fees (DIF).

Impact on Residents and Businesses

(Commences on Page 3)

SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Economic Development Agency

FORM 11: Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center – Approval of Professional Services and Construction Management Services Agreements, [District 1/District 1], [\$1,072,200], [Capital Improvement Program Funds to be Reimbursed by Development Impact Fees 100%]

DATE: June 19, 2014

Page 3 of 3

Impact on Residents and Businesses

Approval of the construction management agreement and the soils and materials testing and inspection agreement, will position the county to successfully and expeditiously construct the Van Horn YTEC project which will enhance public safety and job creation, thus providing positive impacts to area residents and businesses of Riverside County.

Additional Fiscal Information

On May 7, 2013 the Board of Supervisors approved a revised project budget in the amount of \$38,400,000 which included \$5,800,000 in soft costs. To date, the County has spent approximately \$2,300,000. For the attached Professional Services Agreements, the expenditures for FY 2014/15 are estimated at \$804,150; expenditures for FY 2015/16 are estimated at \$268,050. These costs will be funded by Capital Improvement Program funds to be 100% reimbursed by DIF, thus no net county costs will be incurred and no budget adjustment is required at this time.

Attachments:

Professional Services Agreement with RMA Group Construction Management Services with Kitchell CEM

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 31000 et seq. authorizes the COUNTY to contract for services with a person who is specially trained and experienced, and who is competent to perform the special services required; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has the expertise, special skills, knowledge and experience to perform the duties set out herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

- 1. <u>SCOPE OF SERVICES</u>: CONSULTANT shall perform all services and other activities necessary to provide soils and material testing and inspection services for the Project described as Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center. CONSULTANT shall provide all services in accordance with this Agreement and as outlined and specified in Exhibit A consisting of eight (8) page(s), attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.
 - 1.1 CONSULTANT represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary to perform all services, duties and obligations required by this Agreement to fully and adequately complete the project. CONSULTANT shall perform the services and duties in conformance to and consistent with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of California. CONSULTANT further represents and warrants to the COUNTY that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature are legally required to practice its profession. CONSULTANT further represents that it shall keep all such licenses and approvals in effect during the term of this Agreement.
- 2. <u>PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE</u>: CONSULTANT shall commence performance of services within one (1) calendar day after execution of this Agreement, and shall diligently

Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center

Project No. FM08260000146

Page 1 of 15

22

23 24

26 27

25

28

perform the services to full completion of the Project as required and in accordance with the scheduled Project completion date of February 2016, unless sooner terminated as specified in Paragraph 8, or extended as provided in Paragraph 13. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

- 3 COMPENSATION: The COUNTY shall pay the CONSULTANT for services performed and expenses incurred as follows:
 - 3.1 COUNTY shall pay to CONSULTANT for services performed in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A. The total amount of compensation paid to CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall not exceed the lump sum fee of two hundred seventy-four thousand, nine hundred ninety dollars (\$274,990.00), unless a written amendment to this Agreement is executed by both parties prior to performance of additional services.
 - Said compensation shall be paid in accordance with an invoice submitted to COUNTY by CONSULTANT within fifteen (15) days from the last day of each calendar month, and COUNTY shall pay the invoice within thirty (30) working days from the date of receipt of the invoice.
 - 3.3 The basis for the monthly invoice and payment as defined in Exhibit A thereon shall be on an hourly or test rate basis in accordance to the attached fee schedule.
 - 3.4 Labor Code and Prevailing Wages Rates
 - 3.4.1 Certain Classifications of Labor under this contract are subject to prevailing wage requirements. It is anticipated that survey and/or soils testing work will or may be performed which classifications are subject to payment of prevailing wage when performed as pre-construction or construction activities on a public works project.
 - 3.4.2 Reference is made to Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the California Labor Code (commencing with Section 1720). By this reference said Chapter 1 is incorporated herein with like effect as if it were here set

1

forth in full. The parties recognize that said Chapter 1 deals, among other things with discrimination, penalties and forfeitures, their disposition and enforcement, wages, working hours, and securing worker's compensation insurance and directly effect the method of prosecution of the work by CONSULTANT and subject it under certain conditions to penalties and forfeitures. Execution of the Agreement by the parties constitutes their agreement to abide by said Chapter 1, their stipulation as to all matters which they are required to stipulate as to by the provisions of said Chapter 1, constitutes CONSULTANT'S certification that he is aware of the provisions of said Chapter 1 and will comply with them and further constitutes CONSULTANT'S certification as follows: "I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract."

- 3.4.3. Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates, including the per diem wages applicable to the work, and for holiday and overtime work, including employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation, and similar purposes, in the county in which the work is to be done have been determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations. These wages are available from the California Department of Industrial Relations' Internet website at http://www.dir.ca.gov, and are available at the main office of COUNTY
- 4. <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR</u>: COUNTY retains CONSULTANT on an independent contractor basis. CONSULTANT is not, and shall not be considered to be in any manner, an employee, agent or representative of the COUNTY. CONSULTANT shall not be

entitled to any benefits payable to employees of COUNTY including County Workers' Compensation benefits. COUNTY is not required to make any deductions from the compensation payable to CONSULTANT under this Agreement, and as an independent contractor, CONSULTANT hereby holds COUNTY harmless from any and all claims that may be made against COUNTY based upon any contention by any third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement.

Personnel performing any services under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT shall at all times be under CONSULTANT'S exclusive direction and control. CONSULTANT shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of service and as required by law. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting such personnel, including but not limited to, social security taxes, income tax withholdings, unemployment insurance, and workers' compensation insurance.

- 5. <u>CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITY</u>: It is understood that the CONSULTANT has the skills, experience and knowledge necessary to perform the services agreed to be performed under this Agreement, and that the COUNTY relies upon the CONSULTANT'S representations about its skills, experience and knowledge to perform the CONSULTANT'S services in a competent manner. Acceptance by the COUNTY of the services to be performed under this Agreement does not operate as a release of said CONSULTANT from responsibility for the work performed. It is further understood and agreed that the CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of the work to be performed under this Agreement and the CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and shall be performed in a fully competent manner.
- 6. <u>INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS</u> The CONSULTANT agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Departments and Special Districts, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives (hereinafter individually and collectively referred to as "Indemnitees") from all liability, including, but not limited to loss, suits, claims, demands, actions, or proceedings caused by any alleged or actual negligence,

recklessness, willful misconduct, errors or omissions of CONSULTANT, its directors, officers, partners, employees, agents or representatives or any person or organization for whom CONSULTANT is responsible, arising out of or from the performance of services under this Agreement. To the extent a loss, suit, claim, demand, action, or proceeding is based on actual or alleged acts or omissions of CONSULTANT which are not design professional services, CONSULTANT shall indemnify Indemnitees whether or not CONSULTANT is negligent.

The duty to indemnify does not include loss, suits, claims, demands, actions, or proceedings caused by actual negligence of Indemnitees; however, any actual negligence of Indemnitees will only affect the duty to indemnify for the specific act found to be negligence, and will not preclude a duty to indemnify for any act or omission of CONSULTANT.

CONSULTANT shall defend and pay, at its sole expense, all costs and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, and defense, in any loss, suits, claims, demands, actions, or proceedings based or alleged to be based on any act or omission of CONSULTANT arising out of or from the performance of services under this contract. The duty to defend applies to any alleged or actual negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct, error or omission of CONSULTANT. The duty to defend shall apply whether or not CONSULTANT is a party to the lawsuit, and shall apply whether or not CONSULTANT is directly liable to the plaintiffs in the lawsuit. The duty to defend applies even if Indemnitees are alleged or found to be actively negligent, unless the act or omission at issue was caused by the sole active negligence of Indemnitees. The duty to defend however only applies to the acts or omissions of the CONSULTANT.

The specified insurance provisions and limits required in this contract shall in no way limit or circumscribe CONSULTANT'S obligations to indemnify and hold harmless Indemnitees from third party claims.

In the event there is conflict between the indemnity and defense provisions and California Civil Code Section 2782 and 2782.8, the indemnity and defense provisions shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code sections 2782 and 2782.8.

10 11

13

12

14 15

17

16

18 19

20

21 22

23

24 25

26

27

28

7. INSURANCE: Without limiting or diminishing the CONSULTANT'S obligation to indemnify or hold the COUNTY harmless, CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain or cause to be maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverage during the term of this Agreement. As respects to the insurance section only, the COUNTY herein refers to the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts, and Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, employees, elected or appointed officials, agents or representatives as Additional Insureds.

A. Workers' Compensation:

If the CONSULTANT has employees as defined by the State of California, the CONSULTANT shall maintain statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of The County of Riverside.

B. Commercial General Liability:

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, unmodified contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury, and cross liability coverage, covering claims which may arise from or out of CONSULTANT'S performance of its obligations hereunder. Policy shall name the COUNTY as Additional Insured. Policy's limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit.

C. Vehicle Liability:

If vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then CONSULTANT shall maintain liability insurance for

all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the COUNTY as Additional Insureds.

D. Professional Liability:

CONSULTANT shall maintain Professional Liability Insurance providing coverage for the CONSULTANT'S performance of work included within this Agreement, with a limit of liability of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 annual aggregate. If CONSULTANT'S Professional Liability Insurance is written on a claims made basis rather than an occurrence basis, such insurance shall continue through the term of this Agreement and CONSULTANT shall purchase at his sole expense either 1) an Extended Reporting Endorsement (also, known as Tail Coverage); or 2) Prior Dates Coverage from new insurer with a retroactive date back to the date of, or prior to, the inception of this Agreement; or, 3) demonstrate through Certificates of Insurance that CONSULTANT has maintained continuous coverage with the same or original insurer. Coverage provided under items; 1), 2) or 3) will continue as long as the law allows.

E. General Insurance Provisions - All lines:

- 1) Any insurance carrier providing insurance coverage hereunder shall be admitted to the State of California and have an A M BEST rating of not less than A: VIII (A:8) unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the County Risk Manager. If the County's Risk Manager waives a requirement for a particular insurer such waiver is only valid for that specific insurer and only for one policy term.
- 2) The CONSULTANT must declare its insurance self-insured retention for each coverage required herein. If any such self-insured retention exceed

\$500,000 per occurrence each such retention shall have the prior written consent of the County Risk Manager before the commencement of operations under this Agreement. Upon notification of self-insured retention unacceptable to the COUNTY, and at the election of the Country's Risk Manager, CONSULTANT'S carriers shall either; 1) reduce or eliminate such self-insured retention as respects this Agreement with the COUNTY, or 2) procure a bond which guarantees payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense costs and expenses.

3) CONSULTANT shall cause CONSULTANT'S insurance carrier(s) to furnish the County of Riverside with either 1) a properly executed original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of Endorsements effecting coverage as required herein, and 2) if requested to do so orally or in writing by the County Risk Manager, provide original Certified copies of policies including all Endorsements and all attachments thereto, showing such insurance is in full force and effect. Further, said Certificate(s) shall contain the covenant of the insurance agent/producer that thirty (30) days written notice shall be given to the County of Riverside prior to cancellation of such insurance except ten (10) days for cancellation due to nonpayment. In the event of a material modification, cancellation, expiration, or reduction in coverage, this Agreement shall terminate forthwith, unless the County of Riverside receives, prior to such effective date, another properly executed original Certificate of Insurance and original copies of endorsements or certified copies of the policies, including all endorsements and attachments thereto evidencing coverage's set forth herein and the insurance required herein is in full force and effect. CONSULTANT shall not commence operations until the COUNTY has been furnished original Certificate (s) of Insurance and certified original copies of endorsements and if requested, review original of the policies of insurance including all endorsements and any

and all other attachments as required in this Section. An individual authorized by the insurance carrier to do so on its behalf shall sign the original endorsements for each policy and the Certificate of Insurance. Upon COUNTY'S request, CONSULTANT shall make available for inspection by County Risk Manager, at a mutually agreeable location, copies of CONSULTANT'S insurance policies.

- 4) It is understood and agreed to by the parties hereto that the CONSULTANT'S insurance shall be construed as primary insurance, and the COUNTY'S insurance/or deductible and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured program shall not be construed as contributory.
- 5) If, during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, there is a material change in the scope of services; or, there is a material change in the equipment to be used in the performance in the scope of work; or, the term of this Agreement, including any extension thereof, exceeds five (5) years; the COUNTY reserves the right to adjust the types of insurance and the monetary limits of liability required under this Agreement, if in the County Risk Manager's reasonable judgment, the amount or type of insurance carried by the CONSULTANT has become inadequate.
- 6) CONSULTANT shall pass down the insurance obligations contained herein to all tiers of subcontractors working under this Agreement.
- 7) The insurance requirements contained in this Agreement may be met with a program(s) of self-insurance acceptable to the COUNTY.
- 8) CONSULTANT agrees to notify COUNTY of any claim by a third party or any incident or event that may give rise to a claim arising from the performance of this Agreement.
- 8. <u>TERMINATION</u>: COUNTY may, by written notice to CONSULTANT, terminate this Agreement in whole or in part at any time. Such termination may be for

COUNTY'S convenience or because of CONSULTANT'S failure to perform its duties and obligations under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the failure of CONSULTANT to timely perform Services pursuant to the Period of Performance as described in Section 2 of this Agreement.

- 8.1 <u>Discontinuance of Services</u>. Upon Termination, CONSULTANT shall, unless otherwise directed by the Notice, discontinue all services and deliver to the COUNTY all data, estimates, graphs, summaries, reports, and other related materials as may have been prepared or accumulated by CONSULTANT in performance of Services, whether completed or in progress.
- 8.2 Effect of Termination For Convenience. If the termination is to be for the convenience of the COUNTY, the COUNTY shall compensate CONSULTANT for services satisfactorily provided through the date of termination. CONSULTANT shall provide documentation deemed adequate by COUNTY to show the Services actually completed by CONSULTANT prior to the date of termination. This Agreement shall terminate thirty (30) days following receipt by the CONSULTANT of the written Notice of Termination.
- 8.3 Effect of Termination For Cause. If the termination is due to the failure of CONSULTANT to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall be compensated for those Services which have been completed in accordance with this Agreement and accepted by the COUNTY. In such case, the COUNTY may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by contract or otherwise. Further, CONSULTANT shall be liable to the COUNTY for any reasonable additional costs incurred by the COUNTY to revise work for which the COUNTY has compensated CONSULTANT under this Agreement, but which the COUNTY has determined in its sole discretion needs to be revised in part or whole to complete the Project. Prior to discontinuance of Services, the COUNTY may arrange for a meeting with CONSULTANT to determine what steps, if any, CONSULTANT can take to adequately

fulfill its requirements under this Agreement. In its sole discretion, County's Representative may propose an adjustment to the terms and conditions of the Agreement, including the contract price. Such contract adjustments, if accepted in writing by the Parties, shall become binding on CONSULTANT and shall be performed as part of this Agreement. In the event of termination for cause, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties, this Agreement shall terminate seven (7) days following the date the Notice of Termination was mailed to the CONSULTANT. Termination of this Agreement for cause may be considered by the COUNTY in determining whether to enter into future agreements with CONSULTANT.

- 8.4 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, CONSULTANT'S rights under this Agreement shall terminate (except for fees accrued prior to the date of termination) upon dishonesty, or a willful or material breach of this Agreement by CONSULTANT, or in the event of CONSULTANT'S unwillingness or inability for any reason whatsoever to perform the duties hereunder, or if the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 8. In such event, CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any further compensation under this Agreement.
- 8.5 <u>Cumulative Remedies</u>. The rights and remedies of the parties provided in this Section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.
- 9. <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST</u>: CONSULTANT covenants that it presently has no interest, including but not limited to, other projects or independent contracts, and shall not acquire any such interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this Agreement. CONSULTANT further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed or retained by it under this Agreement.
- 10. <u>ADMINISTRATION</u>: The Deputy Director, Economic Development Agency, Project Management Office (or designee) shall administer this Agreement on behalf of COUNTY.

- 11. <u>ASSIGNMENT</u>: This Agreement shall not be assigned by CONSULTANT, either in whole or in part, without prior written consent of COUNTY. Any assignment or purported assignment of this Agreement by CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of COUNTY will be deemed void and of no force or effect.
- 12. <u>NONDISCRIMINATION</u>: CONSULTANT represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, physical condition, or age. Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination.
- 13. <u>ALTERATION</u>: No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. No additional services shall be performed by CONSULTANT without a written amendment to this Agreement.

CONSULTANT understands that the County Purchasing Agent or the County Board of Supervisors are the only authorized COUNTY representatives who may at any time, by written order, make any alterations within the general scope of this Agreement.

If CONSULTANT feels that any work requested of it is beyond the scope of services under this Agreement, any claim by the CONSULTANT for adjustment under this paragraph shall be made within thirty (30) days of when the CONSULTANT is requested to perform the disputed scope of work.

- 14. <u>LICENSE AND CERTIFICATION</u>: CONSULTANT verifies upon execution of this Agreement, possession of a current and valid license in compliance with any local, State, and Federal laws and regulations relative to the scope of services to be performed under Exhibit A, and that services(s) will be performed by properly trained and licensed staff.
- 15. <u>CONFIDENTIALITY</u>: CONSULTANT shall maintain the confidentiality of any and all records and information accessed or processed under this Agreement. CONSULTANT

shall not disclose, except as permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the COUNTY, any oral or written communication, information, or effort of cooperation between COUNTY and CONSULTANT, or between COUNTY and CONSULTANT and any other party.

- 16. <u>DOCUMENTS</u>: The COUNTY acknowledges that the CONSULTANT'S reports, drawings, specifications, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates and other similar documents are instruments of professional service, not products. Although ownership of such documents normally is retained by the CONSULTANT they nonetheless shall in this instance become upon their creation the property of the COUNTY whether the Project is constructed or not. The COUNTY may use the design documents and the designs depicted in them, without the CONSULTANT'S consent, in connection with the Project, or other COUNTY Projects, including, without limitation, future additions, alterations, connections, repairs, information, reference, use or occupancy of the Project(s). Any reuse of the documents by COUNTY without the written consent of the CONSULTANT shall be at COUNTY'S sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to the CONSULTANT, and COUNTY shall indemnify, defend and hold the CONSULTANT harmless from any claims or losses arising out of such use of the design documents by the COUNTY.
- 17. <u>JURISDICTION, VENUE</u>: This Agreement is to be construed under the laws of the State of California. The parties agree to the jurisdiction and venue of the appropriate courts in the County of Riverside, State of California.
- 18. <u>WAIVER</u>: Any waiver by COUNTY of any breach of any one or more of the terms of this Agreement shall not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or other breach of the same or of any other term thereof. Failure on the part of the COUNTY to require exact, full and complete compliance with any terms of this Agreement shall not be construed as in any manner changing the terms hereof, or stopping COUNTY from enforcement hereof.
- 19. <u>SEVERABILITY</u>: If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

"COUNTY"	"CONSULTANT"
COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE	RMA GROUP
By: Left Stone PEFF STONE, Chairman Board of Supervisors	By: W C Slawek Dymerski, P.E. Vice President
	The following information must be provided concerning the Consultant:
	State whether Consultant is corporation, individual, partnership, joint venture or other:
ATTEST:	a California Corporation
KECIA HARPER-IHEM Clerk of the Board	If "other", enter legal form of business:
Deputy Deputy	Address: 12130 Santa Margarita Court Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730
(SEAL)	Telephone: (909) 989-1751 Facsimile: (909) 989-4287 E-mail: sdymerski@rmacompanies.com
	Employer State Tax ID #: 95-2657590 License #:
	If Consultant is not an individual or corporation, lis names of 4 representatives who have authority to
	bind Consultant:
ADDDOVED AS TO BODA	
APPROVED AS TO FORM: PAMELA J. WALLS	
County Counsel	If Consultant is a corporation, state:
By: // Color Color Marsha L. Victor	Name of President: Ed Lyon Name of Secretary: J. Sue Lyon
Principal Deputy County Counsel	State of Incorporation: California

EXHIBIT A



GEOTECHNICAL CONSULTANTS

March 26, 2014

RMA Project No.: 13-516-0

Riverside County Economic Development Agency 3403 10th Street, Suite 400 Riverside, California 92501

Attention: Marc Crispin, Supervising Construction Inspector

Subject: Proposal for Soils and Materials Testing Services

Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center

10000 County Farm Road Riverside, California

RMA Group is pleased to submit herein our proposal to perform soils and materials testing services for the proposed Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center project. The project will consist of construction of a new Youth Treatment and Education Center consisting of two masonry buildings totaling 77,000 square feet. The attached proposal outlines our anticipated scope of services and costs to perform the materials testing and special inspection services in accordance with the requirements of the project plans, specifications and the Division of State Architect.

INTRODUCTION

RMA Group has been continuously engaged in the practice of Soils Engineering and Material Testing in the Riverside and San Bernardino County area since 1962. Our staff includes Registered Geotechnical Engineers and Registered Geologists, as well as qualified technicians and inspectors.

RMA Group is approved as a soils and/or physical testing agency by the Federal Aviation Administration, National Bureau of Standards, State of California Office of Architecture, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, and San Bernardino Counties. Our laboratory complies with the requirements for laboratory facilities detailed in ASTM E 329. Our laboratory is inspected bi-annually by the Cement and Concrete Reference Laboratory and the AASHTO Materials Reference Laboratory of the National Bureau of Standards. We participate in the reference sample program of the Bureau.

SCOPE OF WORK

Our proposed scope of work will consist of performing grading observation and testing, compaction testing, reinforced concrete plant inspection, laboratory testing of concrete, masonry, and steel materials used in construction, masonry special inspection and testing, anchor bolt inspection and testing, structural steel fabrication and welding as well as any other laboratory testing services as required during the construction of the subject building. These scopes of work as well as our estimated costs associated with these services are further detailed herein:



GRADING OBSERVATION AND TESTING

Our services will consist of observing rough grading operations, performing soil tests, and submittal of a soil grading report. Our representative will observe rough grading operations on a continuous basis in accordance with the project plans and specifications. Water content, in place density (compaction), maximum density - optimum moisture, expansion index and soluble sulfate tests will be performed at a frequency and at locations selected by the soil engineer. Our laboratory can perform other soils tests, if requested, at an additional charge. During the course of construction we will notify the owner in writing, with copy to the contractor if, at any time in our opinion, the work is not in conformity to the plans and specifications. Upon completion of the work we will prepare a final report for the owner that will summarize our observations and the results of all tests performed. The final report will contain recommendations and opinions regarding the conformance of the completed rough grading to the intent of the plans, soil engineering reports, and specifications.

• COMPACTION TESTING - UTILITY TRENCH BACKFILL AND ON-SITE IMPROVEMENTS

Our services will consist of compaction testing of the backfill of the utility trenches, subgrade soils and aggregate base of paved areas on-site and asphalt compaction testing. Work would be scheduled by your representative by calling our dispatcher at 909-989-1751. Requests for testing should be made at least 24 hours in advance.

Our services would consist of performing in place density tests (compaction tests) by either the sand cone method (ASTM D1556) or the nuclear gauge method (ASTM D D6938), water content tests, and maximum density - optimum moisture tests per ASTM D1557 at locations selected by your representative. Testing would be performed after compaction has been completed by the contractors and observation of compaction methods used by the contractor would not be included in the scope of our work.

Trench backfill compaction tests would be taken at locations and frequencies in accordance to guidelines provided by the governing public agency. Compaction tests would be taken at mid-depth in the backfill zone and in the subgrade zone in trenches with depths of 4 feet or less. One-half of the tests shall be taken from each depth. Trenches deeper than 4 feet would be tested in each 4 foot lift and the subgrade zone. No tests would be taken in the bedding or pipe zone. Excavating of test holes in excess of 1.0 feet in depth would not be included within the workscope.

If the backfill material contains too much oversize materials (larger than 3 inches) it may be impractical to test the compaction. In this case, with the governing public agency's approval, we will observe the backfill and compaction operations by the contractor in lieu of compaction testing.

Subgrade and aggregate base compaction tests of paved areas on-site would be taken at locations and frequencies in accordance to guidelines provided by the governing public agency.

Our services will also include materials testing of asphaltic concrete. Services will include in place density testing of asphalt concrete (ASTM D2950) by our field technician and laboratory testing of Hveem stabilometer of asphaltic pavement. Tests will be performed on materials sampled at random locations and at frequencies based on agency specification.

A written report summarizing the results of all tests performed will be prepared upon completion of the work. The report will not contain a rendering, opinion, certificate, or warranty, of the compaction of the materials tested.



REINFORCED CONCRETE PLANT INSPECTION AND LABORATORY MATERIALS TESTING

Our services will consist of reviewing concrete mix designs, sampling of concrete, reinforcing steel identification and batch plant operations, as well as testing of concrete reinforcing steel used in concrete construction for the project. Also, our services will include inspection of shotcrete placed in the pool area. During our inspection samples of the shotcrete will be collected for compression testing in accordance with project plans and specifications.

Our materials engineer would review mix designs submitted by the contractor.

The batch plant inspection will consist of monitoring the batch weights and periodic inspection of the aggregate stockpiles and cement bins. Written reports of all inspections will be provided on a daily basis and at the completion of the work.

This scope of services would also include material testing of concrete cylinders and reinforcing steel. Compression testing of concrete specimens molded by our representative would be performed in accordance to ASTM C39.

Samples of the reinforcing steel to be used for production of concrete would be obtained during reinforcing steel identification and tested in accordance to ASTM A370 and A615 test methods.

Written reports of all tests presenting applicable information would be prepared at the completion of testing.

SPECIAL INSPECTOR - MASONRY

Our services will consist of providing inspection of masonry construction as well as performing tests on the masonry block, mortar, grout and reinforcing steel utilized in the masonry construction for the project. This inspection is on a continuous basis during the construction of masonry and brick veneer where special inspection is required. The inspector will observe the placement of block, reinforcement placement, the mixing and placement of mortar and grout. He shall fabricate test specimens for mortar and grout in accordance to the approved specifications.

The inspector will also observe the construction of veneer on a continuous basis to verify compliance with the approved project specifications.

This scope of work will include compression testing of grout and mortar specimens molded by our representative and written reports presenting the applicable information for each test.

SPECIAL INSPECTOR – STRUCTURAL STEEL

This scope of services will include providing special inspection of structural steel welding, as well as anchor bolt inspection and testing.

We will provide an inspector that has been certified by AWS as a special inspector for welding. His work will consist of inspection of all welds made for compliance to the approved plans and job specifications. He shall make a systematic record of welds, including a list of defective welds and a manner of correction of defects. The inspector would check the material, equipment, details of construction and welding procedures, as well as the welder's qualifications. The inspector may use ultrasonic or magnetic particle testing or any other aid for visual inspection that he may deem necessary to assure the adequacy of the welding.

Our services will also include anchor bolt and high strength bolt testing for conformance with the DSA approved project specifications.

Written reports of our inspections will be provided on a weekly basis. The test results will be submitted upon completion of testing.



TERMS

We propose to perform the previously described services on an hourly or test rate basis in accordance to the attached fee schedule. Our estimate is based on our review of the project plans and specifications and on our general experience with similar projects and may vary due to circumstances that may develop during the course of the work. If a change in the scope of work becomes necessary due to extended construction duration and/or other unforeseen conditions, which will increase the charges, we will obtain your written authorization before proceeding.

Our charges are directly related to construction duration, and therefore may vary due to unforeseen circumstances and or extended construction duration. Our estimate, based upon a construction duration of 16 months, is as follows:

Total Estimated Costs

\$274,990.00

Invoices for our services will be prepared on a monthly basis for the services performed to date. Invoices are due and payable upon presentation. In the event legal action is instituted to enforce this agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorney fees.

PROFESSIONAL INSURANCE

We maintain the following insurance coverage. Certificates of insurance will be provided upon request. However, our professional liability insurance carrier (errors and omissions) will not name any additional insureds.

• General liability

\$1,000,000.00 limit

Professional Liability

\$1,000,000.00 limit

Workmen's Compensation

\$1,000,000.00 limit



PERSONNEL RATES		Skidmore	\$30.00 /day
Professional and Office Staff		Schmidt Hammer	\$20.00 /day
		Torque Wrench	\$20.00 /day
Staff Type	Rate/Cost	Proof Load Testing Equipment	\$45.00 /day
Principal Engineer	\$175.00 /hour	Slab Moisture Test Kit	\$50.00 /each
Principal Geologist	\$175.00 /hour	Profilograph with Data Recorder	\$265.00 /hour
Project Engineer	\$145.00 /hour	pH Meter	\$10.00/day
Project Geologist	\$135.00 /hour		
Project Manager	\$135.00 /hour	LABORATORY TESTS	
Quality Control Manager	\$145.00 /hour	Aggregate Tests	
Qualified SWPPP Developer	\$175.00 /hour	그 집에 가지 하는 경상, 하나 이 사는 생각	
Staff Engineer	\$125.00 /hour	Description	Rate/Cost
Staff Geologist	\$125.00 /hour	ASTM C131 Abrasion, Los Angeles Rattler	\$190.00 /each
Drafting	\$85.00 /hour	ASTM C40 Organic Impurities in Fine Agg	\$95.00 /each
Administrative	\$40.00 /hour	ASTM D4791 Flat & Elongated Particles	\$225.00 /each
	410.0071.00	ASTM D5821 Percent Fractured Particles	\$100.00 /each
Inspectors and Technicians		ASTM C123 Percent Lightweight Particles	\$200.00 /each
Staff Type	Rate/Cost	ASTM C566 Moisture Content by Drying	\$18.00 /each
	1000/000	ASTM C1252 Angularity and Voids in Fine Agg	\$125.00 /each
Soils Engineering Technician	\$90.00 /hour	ASTM C1252 Angularity and Voids in Time Agg	\$65.00 /each
Public Works Technician	\$90.00 /hour	ASTM C117 Materials Finer trial 110. 200	\$350.00 /each
Laboratory Technician	\$75.00 /hour	ASTM C269 Alkali Silica Reaction ASTM D2419 Sand Equivalent Value	\$100.00 /each
Batch Plant Inspector	\$90.00 /hour	ASTM 02419 Sand Equivalent Value ASTM C136 Sieve Analysis-Combined Sample	\$145.00 /each
Public Works Inspector	\$100.00/ hour	ASTM C136 Sieve Analysis-Combined Sample ASTM C136 Sieve Analysis-Fine Aggregate	\$145.00 /each
Special Inspector	\$95.00 /hour	ASTM C136 Sieve Analysis-Fine Aggregate ASTM C136 Sieve Analysis-Coarse Aggregate	the same of the sa
Special Inspector - Timber	\$100.00 /hour	그 그는 그는 그는 그는 그는 그는 그를 가는 것이 되는 것은 것은 모든 그를 다고 했다.	\$110.00 /each
Mechanical/ Electrical Inspector	\$100.00 /hour	ASTM C88 Soundness by Sodium Sulfate	\$375.00 /each
Non-Destructive Testing (MT / UT) Level II	\$100.00 /hour	ASTM C127 Specific Gravity of Coarse Agg	\$95.00 /each
Non-Destructive Testing (MT/UT) Level III	\$175.00 /hour	ASTM C128 Specific Gravity of Fine Agg	\$130.00 /each
Radiographic Testing Crew	\$275.00 /hour	ASTM C142 Clay and Friable Particles	\$190.00 /each
Anchor Bolt Testing	\$95.00 /hour	AASHTO T304 Angularity and Voids in Fine Agg	\$125.00 /each
Inspector of Record DSA Class I	\$110.00 /hour	Asphalt Tests	
Inspector of Record DSA Class II	\$100.00 /hour		
Inspector of Record DSA Class III	\$95.00 /hour	Description	Rate/Cost
Qualified SWPPP Practitioner	\$115.00 /hour	ASTM D2726 Core Density (SSD)	\$30.00 /each
SWPPP Inspector	\$90.00 /hour	ASTM D1188 Core Density Parafilm Coated	\$35.00 /each
Field Supervisor	\$115.00 /hour	ASTM D6926 Lab Max Density Marshall Method	\$195.00 /each
Pick-up and Delivery of Test Specimens	\$55.00 /hour	ASTM D6927 Marshall Stability and Flow	\$290.00 /each
		ASTM D1561 LTMD Kneading Compactor	\$220.00 /each
EXPLORATORY AND FIELD TESTING EQUI	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ASTM D1560 Hyeem Stability	\$205.00 /each
Description	Rate/Cost	ASTM D1560 Hveem Stability and Density	\$245.00 /each
Dutch Cone Penetrometer with Operator	\$185.00 /hour	ASTM D2041 Maximum Theoretical Density	\$175.00 /each
Hollow Stem Auger Drill Rig with Operator	\$250.00 /hour	ASTM D6307 Asphalt Content by Ignition	\$135.00 /each
Portable Drilling Equipment with Operator	\$275.00 /hour	ASTM D6307 Ignition Oven Calibration	\$250.00 /each
Bucket Auger Drill Rig with Operator	\$300.00 /hour	ASTM D2172 Asphalt Content by Solvents	\$200.00 /each
Air Rotary Drill Rig with Operator	\$350.00 /hour	ASTM D4125 Asphalt Content by Nuclear Gauge	
Rotary Wash Drill Rig with Operator	\$350.00 /hour	ASTM D 5444 Gradation of Extracted Aggregate	
Diamond Bit Core Rig and Generator	\$200.00 /hour		
Field Truck with Equipment	\$30.00 /flour	ASTM D244 Emulsion Residue, Evaporation ASTM D244 Emulsion Sieve Analysis	\$175.00 /each \$115.00 /each
Nuclear Density Test Gage		ASTM D244 Emulsion Sieve Analysis ASTM D3910 Wet Tract Abrasion	\$150.00 /each
Hand Held Turbidity Meter	\$25.00 /day		\$750.00 /each
	\$15.00 /day	AASHTO T283 Tensile Strength Ratio	\$150.00 /eaCh
Ultrasonic Test Unit	\$25.00 /day		
Magnetic Particle Test Unit	\$15.00 /day		



Concrete Tests		CT 382 Asphalt Content by Ignition Oven	\$135.00 /each
Description	Rate/Cost	CT 417 Soluble Sulfates	\$45.00 /each
		CT 422 Chloride Content	\$60.00 /each
Mix Design Review – Calculations Only	\$300.00 /each	CT 515 Relative Mortar Strength, PCC Sand	\$600.00 /each
ASTM C39 Concrete Cylinder Cured or Tested	\$27.00 /each	CT 521 Concrete Compressive Strength	\$27.00 /each
ASTM C39 Cylinder Tested out of Sequence	\$45.00 /each	CT 523 Conc Flexural Strength - Beam	\$85.00 /each
ASTM C42 Compressive Strength - Core	\$65.00 /each	CT 531 Length of Drilled Concrete Cores	\$45.00 /each
ASTM C495 Lightweight Concrete Strength	\$45.00 /each	CT 534 Water Retention, Liq Curing Cmpnd	\$425.00 /each
ASTM C78 Flexural Strength - Beam	\$85.00 /each	CT 550 Surface Abrasion of Concrete	\$400.00 /each
ASTM C39 Gunite Cyl Compression Test	\$35.00 /each	CT 643 Resistivity and pH	\$95.00 /each
ASTM C1140 Shotcrete Panel Test	\$250.00 /each	Masonry Tests	
ASTM C649 Concrete Modulus of Elasticity	\$225.00 /each		
ASTM C157 Linear Shrinkage (Set of 3)	\$430.00 /each	Description	Rate/Cost
ASTM C138 Unit Weight of Concrete	\$55.00 /each	ASTM C140 Block Compressive Strength	\$65.00 /set
ASTM C496 Splitting Tensile Test	\$90.00 /each	ASTM C140 Block Moisture & Absorption	\$75.00 /set
AASHTO T 336 Coefficient of Thermal Expansion	\$500.00 /each	ASTM C426 Block Linear Shrinkage	\$275.00 /set
Caltrans Tests		ASTM C420 Block Unit Wt & Dimensions	\$275.00 /set
Later and 1600 in the control of the		ASTM C140 Block Unit Wt & Differsions ASTM C90 Masonry Block Conformance	\$195.00 /set \$550.00 /set
Description	Rate/Cost		- T
	*******	ASTM C67 Brick Moisture & Absorption	\$85.00 /set
CT 202 Sieve Analysis-Combined Sample	\$145.00 /each	ASTM C67 Brick Moisture & Absorption	\$75.00 /set
TT 202 Sieve Analysis-Fine Aggregate	\$125.00 /each	ASTM C67 Brick 5 Hour Boil	\$95.00 /eac
T 202 Sieve Analysis-Coarse Aggregate	\$110.00 /each	ASTM C67 Brick Modulus of Rupture	\$95.00 /eac
T 204 Plasticity Index Atterberg	\$195.00 /each	ASTM C780 Mortar Cylinder Compression	\$30.00 /eac
T 205 Percentage Crushed Particles	\$125.00 /each	ASTM C1019 Grout Prism Compression	\$30.00 /eac
T 206 Specific Gravity of Coarse Aggregate	\$95.00 /each	ASTM C1314 Masonry Core Cmp Str 8" max dia	\$65.00 /eac
T 207 Specific Gravity of Fine Aggregate	\$130.00 /each	ASTM C1314 Masonry Core Shear 8" max dia	\$75.00 /eac
T 208 Apparent Specific Gravity of Fines	\$145.00 /each	ASTM E519 Assemblage Comp Str 8" Block	\$85.00 /eac
T 209 Specific Gravity of Soils	\$175.00 /each	ASTM E519 Assemblage Comp Str 12" Block	\$100.00 /eac
T 211 Abrasion by Los Angeles Rattler	\$190.00 /each	ASTM E519 Assemblage Comp Str 16" Block	\$125.00 /eac
T 213 Organic Impurities in Sand	\$95.00 /each	ASTM C109 Compression Test 2" Cube	\$30.00 /eac
T 214 Soundness by Sodium Sulfate	\$375.00 /each	Soils Tests	
T 216 California Impact Max Density	\$175.00 /each	그렇게 맞게 되었다. 그런 그리는 사람은	
T 216 CA Impact Max Dens - Rock Correction	\$45.00 /each	Description	Rate/Cos
CT 217 Sand Equivalent Value	\$100.00 /each	ASTM D4318 Plasticity Index of Soils	\$195.00 /eac
T 226 Moisture Content by Oven Drying	\$12.00 /each	ASTM D1883 CA Bearing Ratio of Soils	\$450.00 /eac
T 227 Cleanness Value	\$225.00 /each	ASTM D2435 Consolidation	\$200.00 /eac
T 229 Durability Index	\$275.00 /each	ASTM D2435 Consolidation, with Time Rate	\$250.00 /eac
T 234 Angularity & Voids Fine Aggregate	\$125.00 /each	ASTM D3080 Direct Shear, Consol & Drained	\$200.00 /eac
T 235 Flat and Elongated Particles	\$225.00 /each	ASTM D4829 Expansion Index of Soils	11.15 1
T 301 Resistance R-Value Stabilometer	\$295.00 /each	ASTM D2166 Unconfined Comp Strength	\$150.00 /eac
T 303 Approximate Bitumen Ratio	\$250.00 /each		\$250.00 /eac
T 304/308 LTMD Kneading Compactor	\$220.00 /each	ASTM D2434 Const Head Permeability Test	\$350.00 /eac
T 305 Swell of Bituminous Mixtures	\$285.00 /each	ASTM D3333 Hydro-Collapse Potential	\$175.00 /eac
T 308 (A) Core Density Paraffin Coated	\$35.00 /each	ASTM D2050 Tri-Axial Shear Strength	\$350.00 /eac
T 308 (C) Core Density SSD	\$30.00 /each	ASTM D422 Hydrometer Analysis	\$250.00 /eac
T 308, CT 366 Stability & Density	\$245.00 /each	ASTM D854 Specific Gravity of Soils	\$175.00 /eac
T 309 Maximum Theoretical Density	\$175.00 /each	ASTM 4546 Swell Potential	\$175.00 /eac
T 366 Stabilometer Value	\$205.00 /each	ASTM D4943 Shrinkage Factor by Resin	\$190.00 /eac
T 370 Moisture Content by Microwave	\$75.00 /each	ASTM D559 Soil Cement Sample Preparation	\$75.00 /eac
	\$1,100.00 /each	ASTM D558 Soil Cement Maximum Density	\$200.00 /eac
T 379 Asphalt Content Nuclear Gauge		ASTM D1633 Compression Test Soil Cement	\$55.00 /eac
T 382 Asphalt Content, Correction Factor	\$175.00 /each	ASTM D2937 In-Place Density, Drive Cylinder	\$20.00 /eac
CT 302 ASPHARCOUNCER, CORECTION FACTOR	\$250.00 /each	ASTM D2216 Soil Moisture Content by Mass	\$8.00 /eacl



Soils Tests (cont'd)

Description	Rate/Cost
ASTM D698 Maximum Density Std Effort	\$175.00 /each
ASTM D1557 Max Density Optimum Moisture	\$175.00 /each
ASTM D2974 Moisture, Ash, Organic Matter	\$75.00 /each
ASTM D4972 pH of Soils	\$50.00 /each
ASTM D2844 R-Value & Expansion Pressures	\$295.00 /each
ASTM D2419 Sand Equivalent	\$100.00 /each
ASTM D422 Sieve Analysis of Soils	\$145.00 /each
ASTM D1140 Materials Finer than #200	\$50.00 /each
Steel Tests	
Description	Rate/Cost
ASTM A370 Tension & Bend - Rebar up to #11	\$95.00 /each
ASTM A370 Tension & Bend - Rebar #14	\$125.00 /each
ASTM A370 Tension & Bend - Rebar #18	\$175.00 /each
ASTM A370 Tension Test - Structural Steel	\$75.00 /each
ASTM A370 Bend Test - Structural Steel	\$65.00 /each
ASTM A370 Mechanical Splice / Slip Test	\$130.00 /each
ASTATASTO INCCIDENCE Sprice / Sup rese	
ASTM A370 Control Bar	\$75.00 /each

WHEN DOCUMENT IS FULLY EXECUTED RETURN CLERK'S COPY

to Riverside County Clerk of the Board, Stop 1010 Post Office Box 1147, Riverside, Ca 92502-1147 Thank you.



STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

by and between

Kitchell CEM

(the "Construction Manager")

and

THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

(the "County")

FOR:

VAN HORN YOUTH TREATMENT AND EDUCATION CENTER 10000 COUNTY FARM ROAD, RIVERSIDE, CA 92503

Edition: May 2014

JUL 0 1 2014 3-13

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			<u>Page</u>
ADTICLE 4 C		PROVISIONS	
1.1	DEFINI	TIONS	1
	1.1.1	Acceptance	2
	1.1.2	Addendum	
	1.1.3	Additional Insured	
	1.1.4	Additional Services	
	1.1.5	Additional Services Compensation.	
	1.1.6	Additional Services Fees	
	1.1.7	Agreement	
	1.1.8	Alternate.	
	1.1.9	Applicable Laws.	
	1,1.10	Application for Payment.	
	1,1.11	Architect	
	1,1.12	Architect's Subconsultant	
	1,1.13	Assist	
	1.1.14	Assistant CEO/EDA	
	1.1.15	Award.	
	1.1.16	Basic Services	
	1.1.17	Basic Services Compensation Basic Services Fees	3
	1.1.18	Bid	
	1.1.19 1.1.20	Bidder.	
	1.1.21	Bidding Documents.	
	1.1.21	Bidding Phase.	
	1.1.23	Board of Supervisors	
	1.1.24	Claim.	
	1.1.25	Close-Out Completion.	3
	1.1.26	Close-Out Documents.	
	1.1.27	Close-Out Phase.	
	1.1.28	Comprehensive Management Plan.	4
	1.1.29	Construction Contract	4
	1.1.30	Construction Costs	4
	1.1.31	Construction Documents.	4
	1.1.32	Construction Schedule.	
	1.1.33	Contract Adjustment	4
	1.1.34	Contract Documents	4
	1.1.35	Contract Price	
	1.1.36	Contract Time	4
	1.1.37	Contractor	4
	1.1.38	Contractor Safety Plan.	4
	1.1.39		5
	1.1.40	County Consultant	5
	1.1.41		5
	1.1.42		5
	1.1.43		
	1.1.44		
	1.1.45		
	1.1.46		
	1.1.47		
	1.1.48		//···/·····5 7
Edition: May 2	2014	INITIALS /	

		Design Phase.	
		Development Plan	
	1.1.51	Disability Laws	.6
	1.1.52	Disabled Access Plan	.6
	1.1.53	Document Control Plan.	.6
		Drawings	
	1.1.55	Effective Date	.6
	1.1.56	Emergency Response Plan	.6
		Environmental Laws.	
	1.1.58	Estimate of Construction Costs.	7
		Existing Improvements	
	1.1.09	Final Construction Documents.	7
		Final Program	
		General Conditions	
		Good Faith Determination.	
		Governmental Authority	
		Hazardous Substance	
		Hourly Rates	
		Indemnitees	
		Initial Program.	
		Inspector of Record	
	1.1.70	Intellectual Property Rights.	8.
	1.1.71	Interest Rate	8.
	1.1.72	Invoice for Payment	8.
		Key Personnel, Key Person.	
		Loss, Losses.	
		Manage, Management, Managing	
		Master Project Schedule.	
		Maximum Hourly Fee.	
	1.1.78	Mobilization/Programming Phase	.o ผ
		Mold	
		Notice of Completion.	
		Notice of Intent to Award	
		Operations Displacement Plan	
		Period of Inactivity.	
		Phase.	
		Plans	
		Post-Completion Phase	
		Post-Award Submittals	
		Post-Completion Phase	
		Program	
	1.1.90	Project	.9
		Project Budget	
		Project Construction Budget1	
		Project Costs1	
		Project Documents.	
		Construction Manager's Own Expense1	
		Project Reports1	
	1 1 97	Project Representative1	10
		Project Schedule1	
		Project Team1	
		Proprietary Information	
		Record Documents	
		Record Drawings, Record Specifications	
		Reimbursable Expenses.	
	1.1.104	Schematic Design Documents.	1,
Edition: May 201	4	INITIALS 1	N.

	1.1.106 1.1.107 1.1.108 1.1.109 1.1.110 1.1.111	Separate Contractor. Site. Specifications. Subconsultant. Subcontractor. Submittal. Temporary Facilities Plan. Tier. Work.	11 11 11 11 11 11		
1.2		PORATION OF RECITALS			
1.3	PERFO	RMANCE STANDARD	11		
	1.3.1 1.3.2 1.3.3	Standard of Care	12		
1.4	AUTHO	RITY OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER	12		
1.5	CONST	RUCTION MANAGER'S PERSONNEL	12		
	1.5.1 1.5.2 1.5.3 1.5.4	Commitment, Cooperation Key Personnel. Project Representative. Sole Responsibility.	12 13		
1.6	SUBCC	DNSULTANTS			
	1.6.1 1.6.2 1.6.3 1.6.4 1.6.5 1.6.6 1.6.7	Retention	14 14 14 14 15		
1.7	OWNE	RSHIP OF DOCUMENTS			
	1.7.1 1.7.2 1.7.3 1.7.4 1.7.5 1.7.6 1.7.7 1.7.8	Property of County. Assignment of Rights. Use by County. Construction Manager's Warranty. Use by Construction Manager. Inspection by County. Delivery to County. Disputes.			
1.8	APPLIC	CABLE LAWS			
	1.8.1 1.8.2 1.8.3	Compliance with Laws	16 16		
1.9	TIME C	OF ESSENCE	16		
1.10	EFFEC	TIVE DATE	17		
1.11	ARCHI ACCOL	TECTURAL, ENGINEERING, LEGAL AND CERTIFIED PUBLI	17		
May 20	May 2014 INITIALS				

Edition: May 2014

ARTICLE 2 BA	SIC SEF	RVICES	17
2.1	GENEF	RAL PROVISIONS	17
	2.1.1	Basic Services.	17
	2.1.2	Comprehensive Management Plan	17
	2.1.3	Development Plan.	17
	2.1.4	Project Reports	17
	2.1.5	Project Meetings	18
	2.1.6	Financial Reporting.	18
	2.1.7	Schedule and Progress Reporting.	18
	2.1.8 2.1.9	County Consultants Project Team Management	18
	2.1.9	Governmental Authorities	19
	2.1.10	Commissioning	19
	2.1.12	Risk Management.	19
	2.1.13	Computer Aided Design.	20
	2.1.14	Communications	20
	2.1.15	Construction Means, Methods and Safety	20
	2.1.16		20
	2.1.17		20
	2.1.18	Testing and Inspections. Document Control Plan.	20
	2.1.19		
2.2	MOBIL	IZATION/PROGRAMMING PHASE	
	2.2.1	Mobilization	21
	2.2.2	County Priorities.	21
	2.2.3	Project Delivery.	21
	2.2.4	Initial Program.	
	2.2.5 2.2.6	Final ProgramSite Conditions	22
0.0		N PHASE	
2.3			
	2.3.1	Construction Documents.	22
	2.3.2 2.3.3	Value EngineeringConstruction Phasing.	22
	2.3.3	Labor Availability.	22
	2.3.5	Permits, Easements, Approvals	23
	2.3.6	Estimates of Construction Costs	23
	2.3.7	Temporary Facilities Plan.	23
	2.3.8	Operations Displacement Plan	23
	2.3.9	Disabled Access Plan	23
	2.3.10	Emergency Response Plan	23
	2.3.11	Independent Design Reviews	
2.4	BIDDIN	NG PHASE	23
	2.4.1	Scope Descriptions.	23
	2.4.2	Prequalification	24
	2.4.3	Conferences	24
	2.4.4	Reference Documents	
	2.4.5	Bidding Documents.	24
	2.4.6	Schedule of Values	
	2.4.7	Post-Award Submittals	24
	2.4.8 2.4.9	Debriefings	
	2.4.10		
	2. 1.10		ALIT

2.5	CONSTRUCTION PHASE			
	2.5.1	General Conditions	24	
	2.5.2	Payments		
	2.5.3	On-Site Representatives.	25	
	2.5.4	Construction Meetings		
	2.5.5	Surety Bonds.		
	2.5.6	Safety	25	
	2.5.7	Utilities Coordination.	26	
	2.5.8	Requests for Information.	26	
	2.5.9	Changes.	26	
	2.5.10	Submittals		
	2.5.10	County-Furnished Materials	27	
	2.5.11	Schedule of Values.	27	
	2.5.12	Construction Schedules.		
		Staffing.		
	2.5.14	Stating	20	
		Report Review		
	2.5.16	Daily Reports	20	
	2.5.17	Photographic Record	20	
	2.5.18			
	2.5.19			
	2.5.20	Means, Methods		
	2.5.21	Inspections, Testing.	29	
	2.5.22	Permits.		
	2.5.23	Urban Runoff and Storm Water		
	2.5.24	CEQA Compliance.	29	
	2.5.25	AQMD Compliance	29	
	2.5.26	Field Monuments		
	2.5.27	Certified Payrolls.	29	
	2.5.28	Record Documents	30	
	2.5.29	Claims	30	
2.6	CLOSE	-OUT PHASE		
	2.6.1	Inspection	30	
	2.6.2	Punch Lists.	30	
	2.6.3	Operational Testing		
	2.6.4	Occupancy Permits	30	
	2.6.5	Final Payment.		
	2.6.6	Close-Out Documents.		
	2.6.7	Audit.		
2.7	POST-	COMPLETION PHASE	31	
			101	
2.8	SCHEE	DULING	31	
	2.8.1	Master Project Schedule		
	2.8.2	Project Schedule	31	
	2.8.3	Extensions.		
	2.8.4	Updates		
	2.8.5	County Review.	32	
	2.8.6	No Delay	32	
	2.8.7	Delay Losses.		
ARTICLE 3 AD	DITIONA	AL SERVICES	32	
3.1	DEFINI	TION, AUTHORIZATION	32	
0.1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		/	
3.2	ENUM	ERATION OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES	///32	
Edition: May 20			INITIALS)	
-			1700	
Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside – Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146				

	3.3	NOTICE	OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES	33
	3.4	DISPU1	TES	33
ARTICL	E 4 CO	UNTY R	ESPONSIBILITIES	34
	4.1	ADMINI	STRATION BY COUNTY	34
		4.1.1	County Requirements	
		4.1.2 4.1.3	County Approvals. Assistant CEO/EDA.	34
	4.2		CT INFORMATION	
	4.3	ACCES	S TO SITE	34
ARTICL	.E 5 CO	NSTRUG	CTION MANAGER'S COMPENSATION	34
	5.1		SERVICES COMPENSATION	
		5.1.1	Total Compensation	34
		5.1.2 5.1.3	Basic Services Fees	
	5.2		URSABLE EXPENSES	
	5.2	5.2.1	Exclusive List	
		5.2.2	Approval Limitations	36
		5.2.3	Mark Ups Expense Records	36
	5.3	5.2.4 ADDITE	ONAL SERVICES COMPENSATION	
	0.0	5.3.1	Additional Services Compensation.	
		5.3.2	Additional Services Fees	37
		5.3.3	Direct Engagement	
	5.4	HOURL	Y RATES	37
	5.5	RELEA	SE FOR PRIOR SERVICES	37
	5.6	DISPUT	ΓES	37
	5.7	NO WA	IVER OR RELEASE OF RIGHTS	38
ARTICL	E 6 PA	YMENTS	S TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGER	38
	6.1	INVOIC	ES FOR PAYMENT	38
		6.1.1	Basic Services Fees	38
		6.1.2 6.1.3	Additional Services FeesReimbursable Expenses	
	6.2		ENT SCHEDULE FOR BASIC SERVICES	
	6.3	ACCON	MPANYING DOCUMENTATION	39
	6.4		W AND PAYMENT	
		6.4.1 6.4.2	Review by County.	40
		V	Payment by County.	7

Edition: May 2014

6.5	PAYMENT DISPUTES	40			
6.6	WITHHOLDING BY COUNTY	40			
6.7	LIENS, STOP NOTICES, CLAIMS	40			
ARTICLE 7 R	ARTICLE 7 RECORDS AND FILES41				
7.1	FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT	41			
7.2	RECORD KEEPING	41			
	7.2.1 Books and Records				
7.3	INSPECTION, PRODUCTION AND AUDITING				
7.4	NONCOMPLIANCE BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER				
7	7.4.1 Cost of Audit				
	7.4.1 Cost of Addit	42			
	7.4.3 Withholding	42			
	7.4.4 Legal Proceedings	42			
7.5	SUBCONSULTANTS	42			
ARTICLE 8 D	DEFAULT, TERMINATION, SUSPENSION	43			
8.1	TERMINATION BY COUNTY FOR CAUSE	43			
	8.1.1 Default by Construction Manager	43			
	8.1.2 Remedies Upon Default				
	8.1.3 Rights Cumulative.				
	8.1.4 Disability, Insolvency				
	8.1.5 Construction Manager Obligations				
	8.1.7 Payment to Construction Manager				
8.2	TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE				
	8.2.1 Termination for Convenience	45 45			
8.3	SUSPENSION BY COUNTY				
8.4	TERMINATION BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER	46			
	8.4.1 Construction Manager's Remedies	46			
	8.4.2 Payment to Construction Manager	46			
ARTICLE 9 II	NDEMNIFICATION				
9.1	INDEMNIFICATION BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER	46			
	9.1.1 Indemnification Obligation.	46			
	9.1.2 Limitations on Indemnity Obligation	46			
	9.1.3 Subconsultant Indemnity Agreements	46			
	9.1.4 No Limitation by Insurance				
	9.1.5 Enforcement				
ARTICLE 10	INSURANCE				
10.1					
Edition: May		INITIALS//			
Kitchell CEM a	and County of Riverside – Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM	08260000146			

Edition: May 2014 Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside – Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146 viii					
13.14	ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS	53 /_ T \$			
13.13		53			
13.12	INTERPRETATION	53			
13.11	SEVERABILITY	53			
13.10	SURVIVAL	53			
13.9	CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S REPRESENTATIONS	53			
13.8	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR				
13.7	CONFIDENTIALITY				
13.6	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	52			
13.5	EXTENT OF AGREEMENT				
13.4	NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS				
13.3	NO WAIVER				
	13.2.2 Existing Hazardous Substances.	51			
13.2	HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES				
13.1	GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE				
ARTICLE 13 M	/IISCELLANEOUS				
12.3	NOTICE BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER	50			
12.2	INFRINGEMENT				
12.1	ROYALTIES				
ARTICLE 12 ROYALTIES, PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND TRADE SECRETS50					
11.3	ATTORNEY'S FEES	49			
11.2	GOOD FAITH DETERMINATIONS	49			
11.1	RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES	49			
ARTICLE 11 D	DISPUTE RESOLUTION				
	10.1.7 Lapse in Coverage	49			
	10.1.5 Certificates of Insurance				
	10.1.3 Additional Insureds	48			
	10.1.1 Required Coverages	48			
	40.4.4. Danishad Casanagaa	17			

	13.15	COUNTERPARTS	54
	13.16	TITLES FOR CONVENIENCE	54
	13.17	NONDISCRIMINATION	54
	13.18	SERVICES PERFORMED BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OR AFFILIATES	54
	13.19	REBATES, KICKBACKS	54
ARTIC	E 14 N	OTICES	55
	14.1	DELIVERY AND ADDRESSES	
		14.1.1 Delivery	55 55
	14.2	CHANGE OF ADDRESS	56
ADTICI	E 15 E	YHIRITS	56

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS / JS

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

A	

PREAMBLE

THIS STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGER ("Agreement") is entered into on this ___ day of___, 2014 by and between THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, a political subdivision of the State of California ("County") and **Kitchell CEM**, a California Corporation, ("Construction Manager"), for project management services.

RECITALS

- **A.** County is the legal owner of the parcel of property, described more particularly in the <u>Property Description Exhibit "G"</u> attached hereto, located at the following address or public road or highway intersections: **10000 County Farm Road, Riverside, CA 92503.**
- **B.** Construction Manager represents it has the background, knowledge, licensing, experience and expertise necessary to provide the services and things required by this Agreement.
- C. County and Construction Manager desire to enter into this Agreement for Construction Manager to provide County, without limitation, project management services in connection with the development, design and construction of the Project generally described on the cover page to this Agreement.
- D. This project will be a design-bid-build public works project and the firm must have the ability to ensure that all Riverside County EDA, City of Riverside, Riverside County Environmental Health, and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards are adhered to during construction; and maintain the ability to coordinate between the County, City, EDA, design team, contractors, and residents.

This project is being financed with state grant funds and the project's engineer's estimate is approximately \$25 million for the 61,000 square foot facility with a construction duration of 16 months. The project site is located at 10000 County Farm Road on an approximate 6 acre carve out of parcel APN: 145-120-002 in Riverside, CA.

E. County has retained DLR Group as the Architect for the Project and may retain other or substitute architects during the duration of the Project.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by their signatures below, it is mutually agreed by and between the undersigned as follows:

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 1 of 55

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to them in this <u>Section 1.1</u>. If not defined in this <u>Section 1.1</u>, they shall have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions of the <u>Standard Form Construction Contract Between County and Contractor – Exhibit "B"</u> attached hereto. If not defined in this Agreement or the General Conditions, they shall have the meanings reasonably understood to apply to them by the context in which they are used. Terms that are phrased in the singular shall be deemed to include the plural, and vice versa, where appropriate to their context. If a capitalized term is defined both in this <u>Section 1.1</u> and the General Conditions and the definitions are not identical, the definition set forth in this <u>Section 1.1</u> shall, unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, govern for purposes of interpreting Construction Manager's obligations under this Agreement.

- **1.1.1 Acceptance**. "Acceptance" means the point that the Project is formally accepted by the Board of Supervisors and a Notice of Completion is recorded by County.
- **1.1.2 Addendum.** "Addendum" means written or graphic information (including, without limitation, Drawings or Specifications) prepared for and issued to Bidders, which modifies or interprets the proposed Contract Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections.
- **1.1.3** Additional Insured. "Additional Insured" means each of the Indemnitees and other persons or entities that, under the terms of this Agreement and its exhibits, the Construction Manager or its Subconsultants are required to name as an additional insured under their policies of insurance.
- **1.1.4** Additional Services. "Additional Services" means the services described or referenced in Article 3, below.
- 1.1.5 Additional Services Compensation. "Additional Services Compensation" means the compensation that is payable to Construction Manager under this Agreement for its performance of authorized Additional Services in accordance with this Agreement, which compensation consists of two components: Additional Services Fees and Reimbursable Expenses.
- **1.1.6** Additional Services Fees. "Additional Services Fees" means those fees for services payable to Construction Manager under this Agreement for authorized Additional Services performed in accordance with this Agreement.
- **1.1.7 Agreement.** "Agreement" means this Standard Form of Agreement Between County and Construction Manager.
- **1.1.8** Alternate. "Alternate" means a proposed alternative described in the Bidding Documents adding or deleting a particular material, system, product or method of construction.
- 1.1.9 Applicable Laws. "Applicable Laws" means all statutes, ordinances, regulations, policies and guidelines (including, without limitation, Environmental Laws and Disability Laws) enacted by Governmental Authorities, codes adopted or promulgated by Governmental Authorities (including, without limitation, building and health and safety codes), lawful orders of Governmental Authorities and common law, including, but not limited to, principles of equity applied by the courts, which are in effect at the time the services or other obligations that are required under or in connection with the performance of this Agreement are performed.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 2 of 55

- **1.1.10 Application for Payment.** "Application for Payment" means the Contractor's or a Separate Contractor's itemized application for payment for Work.
- **1.1.11 Architect.** "Architect" means the individual or firm under contract with County who is primarily responsible to provide the design and engineering services for the Project.
- **1.1.12 Architect's Subconsultant.** "Architect's Subconsultant" means a person or firm that has a contract with Architect to provide professional services to the Project.
- 1.1.13 Assist. "Assist" means to provide assistance in accomplishing a task in a secondary, supporting role to another Project Team member who has the lead role and primary responsibility for performance of the task.
- **1.1.14 Assistant CEO/EDA.** "Assistant CEO/EDA" means the Assistant CEO for the Economic Development Agency of the County, or his/her designee.
- **1.1.15 Award.** "Award" means a resolution or minute order duly adopted by the Board of Supervisors approving County's entering into the Construction Contract with Contractor or a Separate Contractor.
- **1.1.16 Basic Services.** "Basic Services" means the services required by <u>Article 2</u>, below, to be performed by Construction Manager.
- 1.1.17 Basic Services Compensation. "Basic Services Compensation" means the compensation that is payable to Construction Manager under this Agreement for its performance of Basic Services in accordance with this Agreement, which compensation consists of two components: Basic Services Fees and Reimbursable Expenses.
- 1.1.18 Basic Services Fees. "Basic Services Fees" means those fees for services, as distinguished from reimbursement of costs, that are payable to Construction Manager under this Agreement as part of the Basic Services Compensation for Basic Services performed in accordance with this Agreement, which may be in the form of either a Fixed Basic Services Fee or a Maximum Hourly Fee.
- **1.1.19 Bid.** "Bid" means a written proposal submitted by a Bidder to County pursuant to the Bidding Documents.
 - **1.1.20** Bidder. "Bidder" means a person or entity submitting a Bid.
- **1.1.21 Bidding Documents.** "Bidding Documents" means the documents prepared and issued by County to Bidders in connection with a solicitation by County of Bids for Award of a Construction Contract to Contractor or a Separate Contractor for all or a portion of the Work.
- **1.1.22 Bidding Phase.** "Bidding Phase" means the Phase of Construction Manager's Basic Services described in <u>Section 2.4</u>, below.
- **1.1.23 Board of Supervisors.** "Board of Supervisors" means the Board of Supervisors for the County of Riverside.
- 1.1.24 Claim. "Claim" means a demand or assertion by County or Construction Manager seeking, as a matter of right, an interpretation of contract, payment of money, recovery of damages or other relief. A Claim does not include the following: (1) tort claims for personal injury or death; (2) stop notice claims by Subconsultants; or (3) the right of County to specific performance or injunctive relief to

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

compel performance.

- 1.1.25 Close-Out Completion. "Close-Out Completion" means the point at which: (1) all conditions set forth in the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the Work to be performed by the Contractor or a Separate Contractor have been, and continue to be, fully satisfied; and (2) all Close-Out Documents relating to such Work have been received by County.
- 1.1.26 Close-Out Documents. "Close-Out Documents" means all documents (including, without limitation, paper and electronic versions) and other things that are required under the terms of the Contract Documents to be submitted by the Contractor or a Separate Contractor after Final Completion and as a condition of Final Payment to the Contractor or a Separate Contractor, including, without limitation, Record Documents, warranties, guarantees, technical and product information, product samples, operations and maintenance manuals and excess, replacement and attic stock parts and materials.
- 1.1.27 Close-Out Phase. "Close Out Phase" means the Phase of Basic Services described in Section 2.6, below.
- **1.1.28 Comprehensive Management Plan.** "Comprehensive Management Plan" means the Construction Manager's comprehensive written plan for the overall management of the Project.
- **1.1.29 Construction Contract.** "Construction Contract" means a written contract executed between County and Contractor or a Separate Contractor for construction of all or a portion of the Work.
- 1.1.30 Construction Costs. "Construction Costs" means the total costs, whether estimated or actual, to construct those elements of the Project designed or specified by Architect or Architect's Subconsultants, inclusive of overhead and profit to Contractor and Separate Contractors performing the Work, but exclusive of: (1) reserves established for use by County; (2) the cost of services of Construction Manager, Subconsultants, Architect, Architect's Subconsultants and County Consultants; (3) land acquisition costs; (4) finance costs; (5) County's administrative costs; and (6) legal fees and costs.
- 1.1.31 Construction Documents. "Construction Documents" means progressive iterations and the final version of the Design Documents prepared by Architect and the Architect's Subconsultants for the Project.
- **1.1.32 Construction Schedule.** "Construction Schedule" means a detailed, critical path schedule prepared by the Contractor or a Separate Contractor in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents showing its plan for performance of the Work within the Contract Time.
- **1.1.33 Contract Adjustment.** "Contract Adjustment" means an adjustment, additive or deductive, to the Contract Price or Contract Time.
- 1.1.34 Contract Documents. "Contract Documents" means the following collection of documents as they may pertain to the Work to be performed by the Contractor or a Separate Contractor under a Construction Contract: (1) the Construction Contract; (2) Addenda; (3) General Conditions; (4) Specifications; (5) Plans and Drawings; (6) Modifications; (7) Reference Documents (as defined in the General Conditions); (8) Change Orders; (9) Unilateral Change Orders; (10) Construction Change Directives; and (11) other documents that comprise exhibits, attachments or riders to the documents listed in preceding Clauses (1) through (10).
- 1.1.35 Contract Price. "Contract Price" means the lump sum amount that County is obligated to pay to the Contractor or a Separate Contractor for performance of Work in accordance with the

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS 4

Contract Documents

- 1.1.36 Contract Time. "Contract Time" means the total number of Days or period of time set forth in a Construction Contract within which Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the Work must be achieved by the Contractor or a Separate Contractor, including approved extensions of time permitted under the terms of the Contract Documents.
- 1.1.37 Contractor. "Contractor" means the individual or firm under a Construction Contract with County who is to serve as the principal, supervising general contractor for construction of the Project.
- 1.1.38 Contractor Safety Plan. "Contractor Safety Plan" means an injury and illness prevention plan(s) prepared by Contractor or a Separate Contractor setting forth the safety policies, procedures and forms to be followed and used in connection with performance of the Work.
- 1.1.39 County. "County" means the County of Riverside, a political subdivision of the State of California.
- 1.1.40 County Consultant. "County Consultant" means a professional, of any Tier, retained by County to provide professional services, other than those services provided by Construction Manager or Architect.
- 1.1.41 County Consultant Costs. "County Consultant Costs" means those costs, fees and expenses incurred by County to County Consultants.
- 1.1.42 Day. "Day" means, whether capitalized or not, calendar day, including weekends and legal holidays, unless otherwise specifically stated to be a working or business day.
- 1.1.43 Defective Work. "Defective Work" means: (1) Work by Contractor or a Separate Contractor that is (a) faulty, defective or deficient or (b) does not conform to Applicable Laws, the Contract Documents, the directives of County or Architect issued in accordance with the Contract Documents or the requirements of any inspection, reference standard, test, code or approval specified in the Contract Documents; or (2) Work that is deficient or defective by reason of a defect or deficiency in the Final Construction Documents or other Design Documents prepared by Architect or a County Consultant.
- 1.1.44 Delay. "Delay" means any circumstances involving delay, disruption, hindrance or interference.
- 1.1.45 Deliverables. "Deliverables" means the completed written work product (including, without limitation, reports, summaries, projections, plans, programs, procedures and minutes) required to be prepared and submitted by Construction Manager to County under the terms of this Agreement, including, without limitation, the following: Comprehensive Management Plan, Document Control Plan, Operations Displacement Plan, Temporary Facilities Plan, Disabled Access Plan, Emergency Response Plan and Project Schedule.
- 1.1.46 Design Costs. "Design Costs" means the total fees and expenses, whether estimated or actual, of the Architect and Architect's Subconsultants for services related to the Project.
- 1.1.47 Design Documents. "Design Documents" means all originals, copies and drafts (whether paper or electronic) of plans, drawings, tracings, specifications, programs, reports, calculations, presentation materials, samples, models and other materials containing designs, specifications, engineering or other information prepared by Architect or Architect's Subconsultants for the Project.

Edition: May 2014

- **1.1.48 Design Phase.** "Design Phase" means the Phase of Construction Manager's Basic Services described in <u>Section 2.3</u>, below.
- **1.1.49 Development Plan.** "Development Plan" means the County's long-range master plan for development described in the <u>Description of Development Plan Exhibit "A"</u> attached hereto, of which the Project comprises a part or phase.
- 1.1.50 Disability Laws. "Disability Laws" means applicable federal, state, local or municipal laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, codes, decrees, or requirements of any Governmental Authority, which regulate, relate to or impose liability or standards of conduct with respect to, or accessibility for, persons with disabilities, including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USCA §§ 12101 et seq.) and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 (42 USCA §§ 3604 et seq.).
- **1.1.51 Disabled Access Plan.** "Disabled Access Plan" means a written plan prepared by the Architect in accordance with Disability Laws for access and pathways of travel outside of construction boundaries during construction by persons with disabilities.
- 1.1.52 Document Control Plan. "Document Control Plan" means a written plan prepared by Construction Manager for the systemized controlling and managing of Project Documents exchanged or transmitted among Project Team members.
- **1.1.53 Drawings.** "Drawings" means the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and dimensions of the Work, including plans, elevations, details, schedules and diagrams. The term "Drawings" is used interchangeably with "Plans."
- **1.1.54 Effective Date.** "Effective Date" means the date set forth in the Preamble to this Agreement, or, if none is set forth, the date that this Agreement is signed by the County.
- **1.1.55** Emergency Response Plan. "Emergency Response Plan" means a written plan prepared by Construction Manager for responding to emergencies on the Site.
- 1.1.56 Environmental Laws. "Environmental Laws" means applicable federal, state, local or municipal laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, codes, decrees, or requirements of any Governmental Authority, which regulate, relate to, or impose liability or standards of conduct concerning any Hazardous Substance (including, without limitation, the use, handling, transportation, production, disposal, discharge or storage thereof), occupational or environmental conditions on, under, or about the Site or Existing Improvements (including, without limitation, soil, groundwater, and indoor and ambient air conditions), environmental protection (natural or manmade resources), or occupational health or industrial hygiene (but only to the extent related to Hazardous Substances on, under, or about the Site or Existing Improvements), as now or may at any later time be in effect, including, without limitation: the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 9601 et seq.]; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 6901 et seq.]; the Clean Water Act (also known as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act) [33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251 et seq.]; the Toxic Substances Control Act [15 U.S.C.A. §§ 2601 et seq.]; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act [49 U.S.C.A. §§ 1801 et seq.]; the Insecticide, Fungicide, Rodenticide Act [7 U.S.C.A. §§ 136 et seq.]; the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 6901 et seq.]; the Clean Air Act [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7401 et seq.]; the Safe Drinking Water Act [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 300f et seq.]; the Solid Waste Disposal Act [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 6901 et seq.]; the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act [30 U.S.C.A. §§ 1201 et seq.]; the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act [42 U.S.C.A. §§ 11001 et seq.]; the Occupational Safety and Health Act [29 U.S.C.A. §§ 655 and 657]; the Residential Lead-Based Paint Exposure Act (Title X of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992) [15 U.S.C.A. §§

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

2681 et seq.]; the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act [42 U.S.C.A. §§4821 et seq.], the Federal Endangered Species Act, the California Endangered Species Act, the Migratory Bird Treaty Act, the National Environmental Policy Act, the California Environmental Quality Act, Porter Cologne Water Quality Act (California Water Code §§ 13000 et seq), and all similar federal, state or local laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, codes, decrees, or requirements.

- 1.1.57 Estimate of Construction Costs. "Estimate of Construction Costs" means a written estimate prepared by Construction Manager of the reasonable, anticipated Construction Costs for construction of the Project as depicted or described in then-current version of the Construction Documents.
- 1.1.58 Existing Improvements. "Existing Improvements" means improvements located on the Site as of the Effective Date, whether above or below the surface of the ground, including, but not limited to, existing buildings, utilities, infrastructure improvements and other facilities.
- 1.1.59 Final Construction Documents. "Final Construction Documents" means the point at which the Construction Documents, including, without limitation, all corrections (excluding deferred approvals) required by County or Governmental Authorities, have been completed and approved by the County and permits issued for construction by Governmental Authorities.
- **1.1.60 Final Program.** "Final Program" means the Program for the Project approved by County at the conclusion of the Mobilization/Programming Phase, including any modifications thereto that are approved by County in the manner required by this Agreement.
- **1.1.61 General Conditions.** "General Conditions" means that portion of the Contract Documents between County and Contractor or Separate Contractor, titled "General Conditions", setting forth the general terms and conditions for construction of the Work and substantially conforming to the General Conditions of the Standard Form Construction Contract Between County and Contractor Exhibit "B" attached hereto.
- 1.1.62 Good Faith Determination. "Good Faith Determination" means a determination made by the Assistant CEO/EDA, which he/she believes in good faith to be a proper exercise of County's rights and to have a reasonable basis in fact, whether or not such determination is in fact proper, reasonable or correct or adjudged to be so.
- 1.1.63 Governmental Authority. "Governmental Authority" means the United States, the State of California, the County of Riverside (acting in its regulatory, rather than proprietary, capacity), the City in which the Project is located, any other local, regional, state or federal political subdivision, authority agency, department, commission, board, bureau, court, judicial or quasi-judicial body, and any legislative or quasi-legislative body or instrumentality of any of them, which has jurisdiction over the Project, Work or Site, including, without limitation, any such authority having jurisdiction to review and approve or reject the Contract Documents or the Work based on compliance or non-compliance with Applicable Laws.
- 1.1.64 Hazardous Substance. "Hazardous Substance" means the following: (1) any chemical, material or other substance defined as or included within the definition of "hazardous substances," "hazardous wastes," "extremely hazardous substances," "toxic substances," "toxic material," "restricted hazardous waste," "special waste," "contamination" or words of similar import under any Environmental Law, including, without limitation, the following: petroleum (including crude oil or any fraction thereof), asbestos, asbestos-containing materials, polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs") and PCB-containing materials, whether or not occurring naturally; or (2) any substance that because of its quantity, concentration or physical or chemical characteristics poses a significant present or potential hazard to human health and safety or to the environment, and which has been determined by any Governmental Authority to

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS 1

be a hazardous waste or hazardous substance.

- 1.1.65 Hourly Rates. "Hourly Rates" means the hourly rates for services that are compensable under this Agreement on an hourly basis and that are set forth in either: (1) the <u>Hourly Rates Schedule Exhibit "C"</u> attached hereto; or (2) a contract between Construction Manager and a Subconsultant that has been submitted to and approved by County in the manner required by <u>Section 1.6</u>, below.
- **1.1.66** Indemnitees. "Indemnitees" means those persons and entities identified as the "Indemnitees" in Paragraph 9.1.1, below.
- **1.1.67** Initial Program. "Initial Program" means the County's initial statement, set forth in the Initial Program Exhibit "D" attached hereto, of its design objectives for the Project.
- **1.1.68** Inspector of Record. ""Inspector of Record" means a person designated by the County to perform inspections on behalf of the County, who may be an employee or an independent consultant to County.
- **1.1.69 Intellectual Property Rights.** "Intellectual Property Rights" means all intellectual property rights, including, without limitation, patent, trademark, trade dress, copyright, industrial design rights, priority rights, and trade secrets.
- **1.1.70** Interest Rate. "Interest Rate" means the lesser of either: (1) ten percent (10%) per annum; or (2) the maximum legal rate of interest allowed by Applicable Laws.
- **1.1.71 Invoice for Payment.** "Invoice for Payment" means an itemized invoice requesting payment that is prepared and submitted by Construction Manager in accordance with this Agreement.
- 1.1.72 Key Personnel, Key Person. "Key Personnel" and "Key Person" mean those individuals employed by Construction Manager and listed in the Key Personnel List Exhibit "E" attached hereto, and any additions or replacements thereto approved by County, whose personal performance is deemed of the essence to this Agreement.
- 1.1.73 Loss, Losses. "Loss" and "Losses" mean any and all economic and non-economic losses, costs, liabilities, claims, damages, actions, judgments, settlements and expenses, including, without limitation, full and actual attorney's fees (including, without limitation, attorney's fees for trial and on appeal), expert and non-expert witness fees, arbitrator and arbitration fees and mediator and mediator fees.
- 1.1.74 Manage, Management, Managing. "Manage", "Management" and "Managing", when used in describing Construction Manager's services, mean and include oversight, coordination, critical evaluation, interfacing with appropriate Project Team members, monitoring, reviewing, reporting, documenting, providing advice and recommendations and expediting and do not, unless expressly stated otherwise in this Agreement, include responsibility for controlling, supervising or directing the day-to-day activities of Project Team members other than Construction Manager's Subconsultants.
- 1.1.75 Master Project Schedule. "Master Project Schedule" means the <u>Master Project Schedule Exhibit "F"</u> attached hereto, which sets forth the mutually agreed dates and/or time periods for achieving key milestones related to the development, design and construction of the Project.
- 1.1.76 Maximum Hourly Fee. "Maximum Hourly Fee" means the agreed, not-to-exceed amount applicable to compensation for Basic Services, where the Basic Services Compensation is based on an hourly/not-to-exceed compensation rather than a lump sum, fixed fee amount.

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 8 of 55

- **1.1.77 Mobilization/Programming Phase**. "Mobilization/Programming Phase" means the Phase of Construction Manager's Basic Services described in <u>Section 2.2</u>, below
- 1.1.78 Mold. "Mold" means mold, mildew, spores or other microorganisms of any type, nature or description, or any by-product thereof, the presence of which poses an actual or potential threat to human health, including, without limitation, any species of organisms of the kingdom of fungi, or mycota, including yeasts, smuts, ruts, mildews, molds and mushrooms or any microbial contamination, either airborne or surficial, which arises out of or is related to the presence of fungi or spores (including, without limitation, aspergilius, cladosporium, penicillium and stachybortrys chartarum).
- **1.1.79 Notice of Completion.** "Notice of Completion" means a "notice of completion" as defined in California Civil Code § 3093.
- **1.1.80** Notice of Intent to Award. "Notice of Intent to Award" means the written notice by or on behalf of County stating County's intent to Award a Construction Contract.
- 1.1.81 Operations Displacement Plan. "Operations Displacement Plan" means a written plan prepared by Construction Manager for maintaining on-going operations and use of the Site, including, without limitation, a plan for coordinated displacement and relocation of facilities services, parking and other on-Site amenities and accommodations that takes into consideration, without limitation, providing barrier-free access, path of travel and use of facilities to and by persons with disabilities and establishment of a comprehensive plan for informational and directional signage and graphics to assure a continuous and efficient flow of foot and vehicular traffic.
- 1.1.82 Period of Inactivity. "Period of Inactivity" means a period of time during which the County has directed in writing that no services are to be performed by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants.
- **1.1.83 Phase.** "Phase" means a phase of Construction Manager's Basic Services as set forth in Article 2, below.
- **1.1.84 Plans.** "Plans" means the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents prepared by Architect or Architect's Subconsultants showing the design, location and dimensions of the Work, including, without limitation, plans, elevations, details, schedules and diagrams. The term "Plans" is used interchangeably with "Drawings."
- 1.1.85 Post-Completion Phase. "Post-Completion Phase" means the one-year period following Final Completion and Acceptance of the Project during which one-year warranties of construction are in force and post-completion commissioning activities take place.
- **1.1.86 Post-Award Submittals.** "Post-Award Submittals" means the collection of documents required to be submitted by a successful bidder or proposer following its receipt of the Notice of Intent to Award.
- **1.1.87 Post-Completion Phase.** "Post-Completion Phase" means the Phase of Construction Manager's Basic Services described in <u>Section 2.7</u>, below.
- 1.1.88 Program. "Program" means the statement of those key elements, criteria and requirements established by County that constitute County's design objectives for the Project, including the Initial Program, Final Program and any revisions thereto authorized in writing by County.
 - 1.1.89 Project. "Project" means the work of improvement generally described on the cover

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 9 of 55

page to this Agreement, with respect to which the improvements designed by Architect and Architect's Subconsultants, whether constituting the whole or a part of such work of improvement, are necessary or appurtenant to the County's use or occupancy thereof.

- 1.1.90 Project Budget. "Project Budget" means a written statement of funds available to pay for Project Costs for the Project, approved by County, setting forth detail that includes, at a minimum, separate budgetary amounts for Design Costs, County Consultant Costs and Construction Costs.
- **1.1.91 Project Construction Budget.** "Project Construction Budget" means that portion of a Project Budget that sets forth the County's budget for Construction Costs.
- 1.1.92 Project Costs. "Project Costs" means the total of all Design Costs, Construction Costs, County Consultants Costs and other costs, fees and expenses required for design and construction of the Project. Project Costs do not include: (1) purchase price of land acquisition; (2) finance costs; (3) County administrative costs; or (4) legal fees and court costs.
- 1.1.93 Project Documents. "Project Documents" means all writings (including, without limitation, photographs, copies and drafts) of documents, of every kind, prepared by any Project Team member and related in any way to the Project or the Development Program, including, without limitation, electronic files and paper copies.
- 1.1.94 Construction Manager's Own Expense. "Construction Manager's Own Expense", generally used in reference to a cost, expense or service incurred in connection with a particular event or circumstance related to the negligence, breach or other wrongful conduct of Construction Manager or a Subconsultant, means that the services performed and the costs and expenses incurred by Construction Manager and its Subconsultants in connection with such event or circumstance shall be borne by Construction Manager without payment or reimbursement, of any kind, by County.
- **1.1.95 Project Reports.** "Project Reports" means the reports required to be submitted by Construction Manager in accordance with <u>Paragraph 2.1.4</u>, below.
- **1.1.96 Project Representative.** "Project Representative" is the person identified in <u>Paragraph</u> 1.5.3. below, with the authority to act on behalf of Construction Manager set forth in said Paragraph.
- 1.1.97 Project Schedule. "Project Schedule" means a detailed time schedule prepared by the Construction Manager setting forth the time periods, review times and deadlines for programming, management, design and construction of the Project in accordance with the requirements of the Master Project Schedule.
- 1.1.98 Project Team. "Project Team" means County, Construction Manager, Subconsultants, Architect, Architect's Subconsultants, County Consultants, Contractor, Separate Contractors, Subcontractors and other firms or individuals retained by County, or retained by others with County's approval, participating in the planning, programming, design or construction of the Project.
- **1.1.99 Proprietary Information.** "Proprietary Information" means the confidential information described in <u>Section 13.7</u>, below.
- 1.1.100 Record Documents. "Record Documents" means the collection of documents assembled and prepared by Contractor or a Separate Contractor (including, without limitation, the Record Drawings and Record Specifications) showing the condition of the Work as actually built.

1.1.101 Record Drawings, Record Specifications. "Record Drawings" and "Record

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 10 of 55

Specifications" mean the Drawings and Specifications marked by Contractor or a Separate Contractor to show the condition, location and placement of the Work as actually built, including, without limitation, the locations of mechanical, electrical, plumbing or similar portions of the Work that are depicted diagrammatically in the Drawings.

- 1.1.102 Reimbursable Expenses. "Reimbursable Expenses" means the cost reimbursement component of Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation that involves reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred and paid in connection with the performance of Basic Services or Additional Services.
- **1.1.103 Schematic Design Documents.** "Schematic Design Documents" means the schematic Design Documents prepared by Architect and submitted by Architect for approval by County.
- **1.1.104 Separate Contractor.** "Separate Contractor" means a person or firm, other than the Contractor, under separate contract with County to perform or supply work, materials or equipment to the Project.
- 1.1.105 Site. "Site" means: (1) the parcel of land identified in the <u>Property Description Exhibit</u> "G" attached hereto and such additional parcels as may be purchased by County for the Project after execution of this Agreement; (2) all areas adjacent to such parcels that may be used by Contractor or a Separate Contractor or their Subcontractors for staging, storage, parking or temporary offices; and (3) all land areas, both private and public, adjacent to such parcels on which Work is required to be performed under the Contract Documents, Applicable Laws or permits relating to the Project.
- **1.1.106 Specifications.** "Specifications" means the portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, equipment, standards and workmanship for the Work and performance of related services.
- **1.1.107 Subconsultant.** "Subconsultant" means a person or firm that has a contract with Construction Manager to provide some portion of the services that are covered by this Agreement.
- **1.1.108 Subcontractor.** "Subcontractor" means a person or firm that has a contract to perform a portion of Work of Contractor or a Separate Contractor, including, without limitation, subcontractors, subsubcontractors, suppliers, equipment operators, manufacturers and vendors, of every Tier.
- **1.1.109 Submittal.** "Submittal" means shop drawings, detailed designs, samples, exemplars, product data, fabrication plans, installation drawings, lists, graphs, operating instructions, and other similar documents required to be submitted by Contractor or a Separate Contractor for review and approval in accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents.
- 1.1.110 Temporary Facilities Plan. "Temporary Facilities Plan" means a written plan prepared by Construction Manager for establishing temporary facilities to accommodate construction on Site, including, without limitation, identification of timing and duration of facilities placement, costs of placement, installation and leasing, square footage requirements, program requirements, build-outs, logistics of mobilization and utilization of swing space within existing buildings.
- 1.1.111 Tier. "Tier" means the contractual level of a Subconsultant with respect to Construction Manager, a Subcontractor with respect to the Contractor or a Separate Contractor or a County Consultant with respect to County. For example, a "first-Tier" Subcontractor is under contract with the Contractor. A sub-subcontractor under contract with a first-Tier Subcontractor is in the "second Tier," and so on.
 - 1.1.112 Work. "Work" means all labor, materials, equipment, services, permits, licenses, taxes

Edition: May 2014 INITIALS

and other actions and things necessary for Contractor or a Separate Contractor to fully perform its obligations under the Contract Documents (including, without limitation, any changes, additions or deletions requested by County).

1.2 INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated as part of this Agreement.

1.3 PERFORMANCE STANDARD

- 1.3.1 Standard of Care. Without limitation to Construction Manager's other obligations under this Agreement, all services performed by Construction Manager and its Subconsultants in connection with this Agreement shall be performed in a manner consistent with a high standard of care under industry standards and Applicable Laws applying to those who have expertise in providing project and construction management services for projects of the type, scope and complexity of the Project.
- 1.3.2 Fiduciary Relationship. Construction Manager acknowledges the relationship of trust and confidence between it and County and agrees to provide, in its capacity as a fiduciary to County, all services in a manner consistent with the expressed best interests of County.
- 1.3.3 Leadership Role. Construction Manager understands and accepts that, within the scope of the services to be provided by Construction Manager under this Agreement, Construction Manager shall demonstrate and practice, at all times, leadership in facilitating the prompt, efficient administration and economical construction of the Project, including, without limitation: (1) reasonably anticipating the needs of County; (2) proactively identifying and expediting resolution of matters in question among Project Team members; (3) keeping all Project Team members fully informed, to the extent appropriate to their respective roles and responsibilities, of current information, recent developments and upcoming deadlines and milestones; and (4) working to create and build a team approach among the Project Team members.

1.4 AUTHORITY OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

Construction Manager's authority is limited to its scope of authority set forth in this Agreement and the General Conditions. Notwithstanding anything else stated in this Agreement or any of the Contract Documents, Construction Manager does not have the express or implied authority to contractually obligate County to any expenditure of money or extension of time, including, without limitation, any adjustment to the price or time of performance of any contract between County and the Contractor, any Separate Contractor, any County Consultant or any other third person or entity.

1.5 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S PERSONNEL

1.5.1 Commitment, Cooperation. Recognizing the necessity of a close working relationship with County, Construction Manager's principals and employees shall: (1) furnish their professional skill, efforts and judgment to the fullest extent in the performance of their duties and responsibilities under this Agreement; (2) provide their knowledge, ideas, experience and abilities for the efficient and cost effective design and construction of the Project; and (3) cooperate fully with all members of the Project Team.

1.5.2 Key Personnel.

.1 Key Personnel List. Those persons who have been identified by County and Construction Manager at the time of execution of this Agreement to perform services as Key Persons for the Project are listed in the Key Personnel List - Exhibit "E" attached hereto. Construction Manager

Edition: May 2014

NITIALS A

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 12 of 55

represents that it has performed a thorough background check of each of the Key Persons, and that each such check disclosed no felony conviction or other matter which cast any reasonable doubt on the competency, reliability, or honesty of such person.

.2 Of Essence. Construction Manager shall devote as many persons and personnel hours to the Project as are needed to meet its obligations under the Agreement. The Key Persons shall provide in-depth guidance, supervision and analysis, and make all material decisions required to carry out the Construction Manager's performance properly and promptly. The furnishing of services by the Key Persons is of the essence to this Agreement.

.3 Additions, Removals, Replacements.

- necessary to the stage of planning, programming, design, and construction, the need may arise for persons to be added to the <a href="Key Personnel List Exhibit "E" attached hereto to perform the functions of one or more Key Persons. Construction Manager shall anticipate the need for such additions by submitting to County, no later than seven (7) Days prior to the need therefor, a written request for any proposed additions and the reasons therefor. County shall promptly review and respond to the Construction Manager's request, including in such response its reasons for any disapproval. Construction Manager shall neither allow any person who is not a Key Person approved by County to perform the functions of a Key Person nor allow any Key Person approved by County to perform the functions of any other Key Person previously approved by County without the advance written approval of County, which approval may be withheld if the County, acting in good faith, objects thereto.
- (2) Removal. Construction Manager shall not, for so long as any person is employed by Construction Manager as a Key Person, remove, replace or transfer the responsibilities of such person without County's prior written approval, which may be granted or withheld in County's sole and absolute discretion. If County is for any reason dissatisfied with the services rendered by any Key Person, Construction Manager shall promptly recommend a substitute person as a replacement pursuant to Subparagraph 1.5.2.3, (3), below.
- Key Person will be leaving the employ of Construction Manager, Construction Manager shall promptly notify County. In such case, or if a Key Person is requested to be removed pursuant to <u>Subparagraph 1.5.2.3</u>, (2), above, Construction Manager shall promptly recommend for approval by County a proposed replacement person of at least equal qualifications to perform the functions of the removed Key Person, which approval may be granted or denied in County's sole and absolute discretion. Construction Manager shall bear, at Construction Manager's Own Expense, all Loss associated with replacing, for any reason, any Key Person, including, without limitation, all additional costs and expenses associated with familiarizing the Key Person's replacement with the particular facts, circumstances and history of the Project.
- (4) No County Liability. Neither County's request for removal, nor County's approval or disapproval, of a Key Person shall be interpreted as (a) creating any liability or responsibility on the part of County for the acts or omissions of such Key Person; (b) waiving any of County's rights under this Agreement or Applicable Laws; or (c) relieving Construction Manager of its sole responsibility for the acts and omissions of all persons employed by Construction Manager who perform services for the Project, including, without limitation, all Key Persons and their replacements.
- 1.5.3 Project Representative. The Project Representative is Daniel G. Mills. The Project Representative has the authority to act on behalf of Construction Manager in respect to all matters that are the subject of this Agreement. The party signatory to this agreement on behalf of the Gonstruction

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 13 of 55

Manager has, without limitation, the power and authority to contractually bind Construction Manager to agreements and modifications of agreements. The Project Representative is deemed to be a Key Person. The Project Representative shall be available at all times during all Phases to consult with County on matters pertinent to the Project.

1.5.4 Sole Responsibility. All persons employed by Construction Manager shall be the employees of Construction Manager and not of County. Construction Manager and its Subconsultants shall each respectively pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due employees in connection with their performance under this Agreement and required by law. Construction Manager and its Subconsultants shall each respectively be solely responsible for any workers' compensation obligations, withholding taxes, unemployment insurance and any other employer obligations with respect to its employees.

1.6 SUBCONSULTANTS

- **1.6.1 Retention.** Construction Manager may, with prior written approval by County granted or withheld in the County's sole and absolute discretion, retain Subconsultants to perform portions of the services required by this Agreement.
- 1.6.2 Approval by County. Construction Manager's request for approval to retain a Subconsultant shall be submitted in a writing that describes the name of the proposed Subconsultant and the full contractual terms of the Subconsultant's proposed retention, including, without limitation, the scope of services, total or maximum price and/or hourly rates, terms of reimbursement (including any markups or multipliers) and insurance. A copy of the entire proposed contract to be executed by Construction Manager for the retention of the Subconsultant shall be provided to County if requested by County. County shall use its best efforts to approve or disapprove of a proposed Subconsultant within seven (7) Days of Construction Manager's request therefor and receipt by County of information requested by County pursuant to this Paragraph 1.6.2. Basic Services or Additional Services charged by Subconsultants who have not been approved by, or whose contractual terms of retention have not been submitted to, County pursuant to this Paragraph 1.6.2 will be deemed performed at Construction Manager's Own Expense.
- **1.6.3 Pre-Approved Subconsultants.** The County has pre-approved the following Subconsultants:
 - GKKworks Scheduling Services

Such pre-approval shall be deemed to constitute approval by County as required by <u>Paragraph 1.6.1</u>, above, but shall not be interpreted as a waiver of County's other rights under <u>Paragraph 1.6.2</u>, above, concerning approval of contractual terms and the right to copies of Subconsultant contracts.

1.6.4 Written Contracts. Subconsultants shall be retained by written contract with Construction Manager. Every contract entered into between Construction Manager and a Subconsultant (and between a Subconsultant and a lower-Tier Subconsultant) shall contain appropriate language whereby each Subconsultant, of every Tier, accepts and agrees, without thereby creating any contractual obligation on the part of County to the Subconsultant or any other Subconsultant, of any Tier, to be bound by all of the obligations of this Agreement, including, without limitation, those obligations pertaining to indemnification, insurance, records retention, audit, dispute resolution and ownership of documents. Construction Manager further agrees to include in its contracts with its first-Tier Subconsultants the following provisions: (1) a contingent assignment of the contract to County or its designee, contingent only upon written acceptance by County or its designee; and (2) the optional right of County to directly

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

contract with the Subconsultant for the performance of services related to the Project that are not within the scope of Construction Manager's Basic Services under this Agreement.

- **1.6.5 Supervision.** All Basic Services that are within the field of professional practice of a Subconsultant approved by County and retained by Construction Manager shall be directly performed or supervised by such Subconsultant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Construction Manager shall remain solely responsible, as between Construction Manager, on the one hand, and County or any other person or entity to whom County may be liable, on the other hand, for the adequacy of the Subconsultant's performance and its compliance with the requirements of this Agreement.
- **1.6.6 Termination.** Construction Manager may, upon advance written notice to County, terminate and replace the services of any County-approved Subconsultant, subject in all cases to the prior written approval of County, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
- 1.6.7 No County Responsibility. Neither County's approval of the Construction Manager's retention of a Subconsultant nor County's review or approval of a Subconsultant's contractual terms of retention, even if those terms conflict with this Agreement, shall give rise to any liability or responsibility on the part of County for the acts or omissions of the Subconsultant, waive any of County's rights, or relieve Construction Manager of any of its obligations under this Agreement. Construction Manager shall remain solely responsible to County, notwithstanding County's approval of any Subconsultant or its contractual terms of retention, for the quality and performance of all Subconsultants' services, and for the content, enforceability, and enforcement of all contractual terms relating to all Subconsultants's performance of services for the Project.

1.7 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

- 1.7.1 Property of County. Subject to the rights of use of Construction Manager and its Subconsultants under <u>Paragraph 1.7.5</u>, below, all Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants, including any designs, building designs or other depictions underlying or shown in them, shall be deemed the sole and exclusive property of County and ownership thereof is irrevocably vested in County, whether the Project is executed or not.
- 1.7.2 Assignment of Rights. Subject to the rights of use of Construction Manager and its Subconsultants under Paragraph 1.7.5, below, Construction Manager shall, without further request or consideration from County, obtain and if necessary transfer to County, in writing, any and all Intellectual Property Rights in the Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants, including any designs, building designs or other depictions underlying or shown in them, free and clear of any liens or other encumbrances, claims or rights of third parties, and cooperate with County in securing and registering such rights, so that County shall own all Intellectual Property Rights and any other tangible and/or intangible property rights in or associated with such Project Documents. Such transfer and assignment will be effective for the entire duration of the Intellectual Property Rights therein and include, but are not be limited to, all rights in related plans, specifications, documentation, derivative works and moral rights.
- 1.7.3 Use by County. Without limitation to the other provisions of this <u>Section 1.7</u>, County shall have the right to use the Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager for the construction, use, occupancy or maintenance of the Project, including, without limitation, future additions, alterations, corrections or repairs to the Project.
- 1.7.4 Construction Manager's Warranty. Construction Manager represents and warrants that the Project Documents, whether prepared by Construction Manager or a Subconsultant, and the use

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

of such Project Documents in the ordinary course, are free of any claim of infringement or any other violation of any Intellectual Property Right or other right of any third party.

- 1.7.5 Use by Construction Manager. Except as otherwise stated in this Paragraph 1.7.5, Construction Manager shall not copy, offer to sell, display, prepare derivative works of, distribute, make, or otherwise commercialize, any of the Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants, or any substantially or confusingly similar likeness thereof, for any purpose, without the prior written consent of County, which consent may be granted or denied in the sole and absolute discretion of County. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be interpreted as limiting the right of Construction Manager to copy, offer to sell, display, prepare derivative works of, distribute, make, or otherwise commercialize any standard or pre-existing information, including information that is part of the public domain, that is generally known or in use by other construction managers or which was developed or created by Construction Manager or a Subconsultant prior to or independent of the services performed under this Agreement. County hereby grants to Construction Manager and its Subconsultants a license during the term of Construction Manager's performance of this Agreement and prior to final payment to Construction Manager, revocable at will by County in the event of a termination of this Agreement, to use and copy the Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants and the designs depicted in or underlying them for the purpose of performing the services required under this Agreement.
- 1.7.6 Inspection by County. County shall have the right at any time or times, upon prior written request by County, to review the status and condition of the Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants and to request that copies thereof be provided to County.
- 1.7.7 Delivery to County. Construction Manager shall, at any time upon request by County and without request by County upon or after termination or full performance of this Agreement, promptly deliver to County the originals and copies (including paper and electronic versions) of all Project Documents, whether prepared by Construction Manager or the Subconsultants. Electronic versions shall be submitted using AutoCAD, Adobe Acrobat or other software satisfactory to County and shall be in a form that is indexed and editable. Construction Manager shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible copies, of the Project Documents for its files, information and reference.
- 1.7.8 **Disputes.** Payment shall not be interpreted as a condition to, nor shall disputes between County and Construction Manager diminish or in any way limit, the rights of County under this <u>Section</u> 1.7.

1.8 APPLICABLE LAWS

- 1.8.1 Compliance with Laws. Subject to the other provisions and limitations of this <u>Section 1.8</u> and without intending to limit Construction Manager's right to Additional Services Compensation for changes in Applicable Laws pursuant to <u>Article 3</u>, below, Construction Manager shall, at all times in its performance under this Agreement, comply with Applicable Laws. The foregoing obligation includes, without limitation, the obligation of Construction Manager and its Subconsultants to perform in accordance with Applicable Laws in effect on the date of such performance.
- **1.8.2 Changes in Laws.** Construction Manager is obligated, exercising the standard of professional care set forth in <u>Section 1.3</u>, above, to keep informed and advise County of possible changes in Applicable Laws that affect the Project and promptly inform County of such changes in advance of their becoming effective.
- 1.8.3 Direct Communications. Construction Manager shall not communicate directly with any Governmental Authority without County's prior approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM0826000146
Page 16 of 55

delayed, conditioned or withheld.

1.9 TIME OF ESSENCE

All time limits set forth in this Agreement pertaining to Construction Manager's performance of any obligation or act for the benefit of County or the Project are deemed to be of the essence to this Agreement.

1.10 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall be deemed effective as of the Effective Date.

1.11 ARCHITECTURAL, ENGINEERING, LEGAL AND CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING SERVICES

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to require or authorize the Construction Manager to perform any act for which a professional license is required by Applicable Laws in the fields of architecture, engineering, law or certified public accounting.

ARTICLE 2 BASIC SERVICES

2.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

Basic Services. Basic Services are those services that Construction Manager is required to provide under the terms of this Article 2. Listings of Basic Services in this Agreement by Phase are solely a matter of convenience and shall not be interpreted as limiting the Construction Manager's obligation to perform any Basic Service, as part of any Phase, if such performance is reasonably necessary in order to provide Construction Management of the Project: provided, however, that Construction Manager's Basic Services required for the Post-Completion Phase are limited to those services described in Section 2.7, below. County and Construction Manager have endeavored to describe in this Article 2 the scope of the Basic Services to be provided by Construction Manager; however, such descriptions are not intended to be exhaustive, it being understood that Construction Manager shall be required, without adjustment or addition to any agreed fixed rates or maximum compensation agreed to herein, to provide services, reasonably inferable as being included within the scope of this Agreement. Comprehensive Management Plan. The Construction Manager shall, with appropriate input from the County, promptly prepare, and thereafter promptly update and maintain as current, a Comprehensive Management Plan summarizing Construction Manager's plan for administering, monitoring, implementing and reporting on matters within the scope of its responsibility under this Agreement, including, without limitation: (1) identification of other Project Team members to be engaged and approximate dates for hiring; (2) summarization of a working plan for the Project Team members (including, without limitation, lines of communication and basic responsibilities for design, cost, schedule and construction); (3) establishment, documentation and implementation of controls for quality assurance in respect to performance by Project Team members in each phase of planning, programming, design, procurement, construction, close-out and post-completion; (4) strategies and recommendations for use, where appropriate, of alternative delivery systems (such as, but not limited to, design-build), multiple bid packaging, phasing, and fast-tracking; (5) procedures that provide for preparation and continuous updating of a schedule of activities of Project Team members with attention to those portions of the Project having schedule priority; (6) procedures for summarization of the financial status of the Project; and (7) procedures for the updating of the Comprehensive Management Plan as necessary to meet changing circumstances.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 17 of 55

2.1.3 Development Plan. NOT USED

- 2.1.4 Project Reports. Project Reports shall be prepared and submitted to the County's designated Project Manager monthly (and more often if circumstances reasonably require), in both paper form and electronically, utilizing a format satisfactory to and approved by County. Project Reports shall keep the County fully informed on matters relating to cost, budget, and schedule, as well as potential problems or other matters that could adversely affect the completion of the Project within the County's time and cost objectives. Without limitation to the foregoing, and subject to the County's right to request such additional information as it judges in its reasonable discretion to be pertinent, Project Reports shall include at a minimum the following: (1) an executive summary; (2) the last 30 Days' highlights and accomplishments; (3) the current status of design and construction; (4) the next 30 Days' projected activities; (5) a detailed status report covering all significant developments in the Project; (6) updated construction costs and schedule information; (7) a safety report; (8) key progress photos of construction; (9) a status report summary of pending and approved Change Orders, Unilateral Change Orders and Construction Change Directives; (10) a status report summary of pending and approved Submittals; (11) a status report summary of pending and answered Requests for Information; (12) a status report summary of pending and unresolved claims; (13) a Master Project Schedule and Project Schedule update: and (14) the identification of significant problems impacting cost or schedule and strategies for their resolution.
- **2.1.5 Project Meetings.** Construction Manager shall throughout all Phases of its Basic Services: (1) arrange, chair (if requested by County) and attend all special and regularly scheduled meetings with County, Project Team members or Governmental Authorities; (2) if requested by County, coordinate such meetings' agendas; (3) unless otherwise directed by County, prepare and distribute minutes of such meetings; (4) respond to requests for corrections to such minutes; (5) include in such minutes a list of action items assigned to a particular Project Team member along with a date for further action or resolution; and (6) track compliance by responsible Project Team members, including, without limitation, providing written notice to appropriate Project Team members to expedite action and resolution of outstanding action items.

2.1.6 Financial Reporting. NOT USED

- 2.1.7 Schedule and Progress Reporting. Construction Manager shall on a monthly basis collect schedule and progress information from Project Team members, evaluate it for completeness and accuracy based on current and historical data and include in its Project Reports a summary of the schedule and progressed status of the Project that addresses, at a minimum, the status of the progress of the Work as compared to the updated Master Project Schedule, Project Schedule and the schedules prepared by Architect and Contractor, noting if there has occurred a Delay to a phase, major task or milestone, the number of Days of Delay, the reason for the Delay, the impact of the Delay on design, construction, completion and occupancy, and a recommended recovery plan for recapturing the time lost. Scheduling and progress information shall be prepared in multiple summary forms that "roll up" data in a coordinated and consistent manner to successively higher levels of reporting.
- **2.1.8 County Consultants.** Construction Manager shall advise County on the appropriate time for retention of County Consultants whose services are necessary for the Project, allowing a reasonable time in advance for prequalification, competitive selection and contract negotiation and Assist County with the preparation of a definitive scope of services describing the scope of their services to be performed for County.
- 2.1.9 Project Team Management. Construction Manager shall, without assuming responsibility or liability for the direct supervision of performance by Project Team members, Manage the activities of the Project Team members, including, without limitation, the following:

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 18 of 55

- receive information, notices, requests or other materials from one or more Project Team members that are intended for other Project Team members, put such materials into appropriate form for submission to the intended recipients and deliver such materials to such recipients in a timely manner;
- monitor and evaluate the performance by Project Team members who provide .2 professional or construction services to the Project for compliance with their obligations under their respective agreements with the County, notify the County if it appears that any Project Team member is not in compliance with said obligations and provide County with recommendations for rectification of such noncompliance;
- on a monthly basis (and, more frequently if the County or circumstances reasonably require): (1) evaluate time schedules and schedule updates of schedules prepared by other Project Team members retained by County; (2) receive and evaluate requests for time extensions and compensation for Delay received from any Project Team member retained by County; (3) evaluate actual progress of such Project Team member's performance relative to its schedule and keep the County fully advised on issues that could affect the Project Team member's meeting the deadlines and milestones set forth in its schedule; and (4) keep Project Team members informed of any upcoming deadlines or milestones relevant to the timing of their performance and provide necessary follow-up to remind Project Team members in advance of deadlines that are critical to maintaining progress of the Project;
- critically evaluate the performance of cost estimating services by other Project Team members and provide recommendations to the County with respect to the sufficiency and completeness of their estimates and with respect to the need, if any, for preparation of independent estimates of costs related to design, construction, life cycle and maintenance;
- without limitation to Construction Manager's other obligations under this Article 2 and exercising the performance standard set forth in Section 1.3, above, review the written work product submitted to County by other Project Team members for evident errors or omissions, report any errors or omission discovered to County, and provide County with appropriate recommendations for rectifying same:
- monitor compliance by Project Team members other than County with the procedures for communications established by Construction Manager and approved by County and recommend action by County to enforce compliance; and
- promptly advise County if there appears to be an unnecessary duplication or overlap of services being provided by Project Team members, along with Construction Manager's recommendations for eliminating such duplicative or overlapping services.
- 2.1.10 Governmental Authorities. Construction Manager represents that, consistent with its performance standard set forth in Section 1.3, above, it is thoroughly knowledgeable in the requirements of Governmental Authorities as they apply to the development, design, permitting and construction of the Project, Construction Manager shall: (1) perform its services under this Agreement with all necessary and due consideration to such requirements of Governmental Authorities; (2) Manage compliance by the Project Team members with such requirements of Governmental Authorities; and (3) immediately report to the County in writing if Construction Manager becomes aware of a failure by a Project Team member to comply with such requirements of any Governmental Authority.
- 2.1.11 Commissioning. Construction Manager shall, during all Phases of design and construction of the Project, coordinate the work of the County Consultants in the field of commissioning, including, without limitation, final commissioning throughout the Post-Completion Phase.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000

2.1.12 Risk Management. NOT USED

- **2.1.13 Computer Aided Design.** Construction Manager represents that it has and will maintain throughout performance of this Agreement the necessary software, and shall at all time have persons on its staff with the expertise, required to receive, review, evaluate and transmit Project Documents that are prepared using AutoCAD electronic media.
- **2.1.14 Communications.** Construction Manager shall comply with all written procedures issued by County for the conduct of communications relating to the Project or among the Project Team members. All communications with County shall be directed or copied to the attention of the Assistant CEO/EDA or his/her designee. County will endeavor to furnish Construction Manager with copies of written communications from County to Architect, Contractor, Separate Contractors and County Consultants that are pertinent to the Construction Manager's services under this Agreement.
- 2.1.15 Construction Means, Methods and Safety. Except in cases where the Construction Manager or a Subconsultant has breached an express obligation of this Agreement, violated an Applicable Law, acted with willful misconduct or violated the standard of performance set forth in Section 1.3, above, and then only to the extent of such breach, willful act or violation, Construction Manager shall have no responsibility or liability with regard to, and Contractor and the Separate Contractors shall be solely responsible for, all selections (other than those selections expressly dictated by Construction Manager or the Subconsultants) of, and all supervision, implementation and enforcement relating to, construction means, methods, sequence, techniques, procedures or related matters involving the health and safety of persons or the protection of property at the Site during construction.

2.1.16 Rejection of Work.

- .1 Inspector of Record. Construction Manager shall coordinate with the Inspector of Record the rejection of Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, Work that has not been inspected or tested in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- .2 Decision by County. The decision whether to reject any portion of the Work recommended for rejection by Construction Manager shall be made only after consultation with Architect and upon written approval by County.
- .3 No Duty of County. Neither the foregoing authority of County under, nor a decision made in good faith by County in accordance with, the provisions of this <u>Paragraph 2.1.16</u> to reject, not reject or approve of Work shall give rise to a duty or liability of County to Construction Manager, Architect, Contractor, or any other person or entity to reject Work, whether or not such rejection is recommended by Construction Manager.
- .4 Contractor Responsibility. No determination by the Inspector of Record to reject or not reject Work shall be interpreted as relieving the Contractor or any Separate Contractor of its responsibility for failing to comply with the Contract Documents.
- 2.1.17 No Authority to Stop Work. Construction Manager shall immediately recommend to County the stopping of the Work if circumstances come to Construction Manager's attention that reasonably require the stopping of the Work in order prevent Loss to County or injury or damage to persons or property. Nothing stated herein or elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits shall be interpreted as giving Construction Manager or its Subconsultants the right or authority, under any circumstances, to direct the Contractor or Separate Contractor to stop performance of the Work (except in instances where immediate injury or loss of life will occur).

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

2.1.18 Testing and Inspections.

- Construction Manager shall recommend in writing for Recommendations. inclusion in the Bidding Documents and Contract Documents any additional special inspection or testing of the Work if, in Construction Manager's or a Subconsultant's judgment, such inspection or testing is required by Applicable Laws or is necessary or advisable for the performance of the Work.
- Review of Reports. Construction Manager and its Subconsultants shall assist the Inspector of Record in review of all inspection reports, laboratory reports, and test data generated from the conduct of special inspections or testing in order to determine whether such data conforms to the requirements of the Bidding Documents, Contract Documents and Submittals approved by Architect.
- No Duty of County. Neither the authority of County to decide whether inspection or testing is needed, nor a decision made in good faith by County to order or not order inspection or testing, shall give rise to a duty or liability of County to Construction Manager, Architect, Contractor, or any other person or entity.
- No determination that is made by Construction Contractor Responsibility. Manager in good faith and in accordance with the standard of performance set forth in Section 1.3, above, to recommend or not recommend additional inspection or testing of the Work shall give rise to any liability on the part of Construction Manager or be interpreted as relieving Contractor or any Separate Contractor of its responsibility for failing to comply with the Contract Documents.
- 2.1.19 Document Control Plan. Construction Manager shall prepare for approval by County a Document Control Plan for filing and storage of Project Documents (hard copies and electronic) and shall implement, maintain and track compliance by Project Team members with the Document Control Plan. If requested by County, Construction Manager shall include in its Document Control Plan recommendations for establishment of an electronic program management system for the furnishing, storage, exchange and transmission of electronic documentation and communications relating to the Project that includes, without limitation, the following: (1) using e-mail for communications, wherever possible; (2) using electronic versions of Design Documents for distribution for bidding or other purposes; (3) scanning of documents; and (4) cooperating in maintaining a common file and electronic archive. All costs of setting up the electronic program management system will be paid directly by County. Construction Manager shall comply with the requirements of the Document Control Plan and make recommendations to County for enforcing compliance by other Project Team members who fail to comply therewith.

MOBILIZATION/PROGRAMMING PHASE 2.2

- Mobilization. Construction Manager shall promptly mobilize its staff, facilities and other resources necessary to maintain an action-ready staff at the Site to respond to the needs of the County and the Project.
- 2.2.2 County Priorities. Construction Manager shall: (1) work with the County to acquire an understanding of those portions of the Project having priority for design, construction or occupancy; (2) advise the County on establishing a schedule for phased development of the Project that takes into consideration such priorities; and (3) review and confirm, on a regular basis with such frequency as reasonably required, the status of such priority determinations and any changes thereto.
 - Project Delivery. NOT USED 2.2.3

2.2.4 Initial Program. NOT USED

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146 Page 21 of 55

- 2.2.5 Final Program. NOT USED
- 2.2.6 Site Conditions. NOT USED
- **DESIGN PHASE** 2.3
 - Construction Documents. NOT USED 2.3.1
 - Value Engineering. 2.3.2 NOT USED
 - Construction Phasing. NOT USED 2.3.3
 - 2.3.4 Labor Availability. NOT USED
- 2.3.5 Permits, Easements, Approvals. Construction Manager shall, as necessary: (1) identify permits, easements and approvals required of Governmental Authorities; (2) Assist County and Architect in assembling the necessary documents for obtaining permits, easements and Governmental Authority approvals; (3) schedule and monitor the periods of time set aside for obtaining permits, easements and Governmental Authority approvals; (4) report to County any Delays which are observed in obtaining permits, easements, and Government Authority approvals and recommend recovery plans; (5) facilitate the inspection process of Governmental Authorities; (6) as and when requested, attend meetings necessary to secure permits, easements and Governmental Authority approvals; (7) if Construction Manager learns that any required permit or approval that it believes County is obligated to obtain directly has not been obtained, notify County immediately in writing specifying the permit or approval required and the time frame within in which it must be obtained in order to not cause Delay to the Project.
 - Estimates of Construction Costs. NOT USED 2.3.6
- Temporary Facilities Plan. Construction Manager shall prepare for approval by 2.3.7 County a written Temporary Facilities Plan for establishing temporary facilities to accommodate construction on Site, including, without limitation, identification of timing and duration of facilities placement, costs of placement, installation and leasing, square footage requirements, program requirements, build-outs, logistics of mobilization and utilization of swing space within existing buildings.
 - Operations Displacement Plan. NOT USED 2.3.8
 - Disabled Access Plan. NOT USED 2.3.9
- Construction Manager shall coordinate with the 2.3.10 Emergency Response Plan. Contractor and submit for approval by County an Emergency Response Plan for responding to emergencies on the Site.
 - 2.3.11 Independent Design Reviews. NOT USED
- **BIDDING PHASE** 2.4
- Construction Manager shall, if requested by County, prepare Scope Descriptions. scope of work descriptions for incorporation by County in the County's forms for pre-qualification and biddina.
 - 2.4.2 Pregualification. Construction Manager shall Assist County in: (1) establishing rules

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 22 of 55

and procedures relative to prequalification and bidding; (2) organizing and conducting reference checks and interviews of Bidder references; (3) scoring, ranking and pre-qualifying Bidders; and (4) preparing and issuing responses to questions and requests for clarification from Bidders.

- **2.4.3 Conferences.** Construction Manager shall Assist County in arranging and conducting pre-bid conferences with prospective Bidders to walk the Site and review the bidding process.
- **2.4.4** Reference Documents. Construction Manager shall research, identify and assemble lists and copies of Reference Documents that are to be made available to Bidders for review.
- **2.4.5 Bidding Documents.** Construction Manager shall: (1) review all final, approved and stamped Bidding Documents for issuance to Bidders; (2) confirm that they include the Final Construction Documents approved by the County and Governmental Authorities; and (3) review the Construction Contract, General Conditions, Specifications and other contractual language proposed by County and other Project Team members for inclusion in the Contract Documents and provide recommendations to County for changes to such language that are appropriate and necessary to meet the particular needs of the Project and that will, to the maximum extent reasonably possible, clearly define requirements and responsibilities of Project Team members.
- **2.4.6 Schedule of Values.** Construction Manager shall develop a format of cost items based on the Construction Specifications Institute's format or other format approved by the County and coordinate this format with the County's independent Cost Estimator for use as the Schedule of Values for Inclusion in the Bidding Documents
- **2.4.7 Addenda.** Construction Manager shall, after obtaining appropriate technical advice from Architect, Assist the Architect and County in preparing and issuing Addenda to Bidders.
- **2.4.8 Post-Award Submittals.** Construction Manager shall Assist the County in: (1) collecting, organizing and assembling Post-Award Submittals; and (2) evaluating Post-Award Submittals for compliance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents.
- **2.4.9 Debriefings.** Construction Manager shall, if requested by County, Assist the County in conducting debriefing of unsuccessful Bidders.
- **2.4.10 Protests.** Construction Manager shall Assist the County upon request in responding to protests or other legal challenges to the bidding process.

2.5 CONSTRUCTION PHASE

- **2.5.1 General Conditions.** Construction Manager acknowledges that it has reviewed the form of General Conditions attached hereto as <u>General Conditions of the Standard Form Construction Contract Between County and Contractor Exhibit "B"</u>. As part of Basic Services and in addition to the obligations assumed by Construction Manager under this <u>Article 2</u>, Construction Manager shall administer the construction of the Work by Contractor and Separate Contractors in accordance with the General Conditions, including the provision of all of the services as required or allowed by its terms to be performed by the "Construction Manager" (as defined in the General Conditions), as well as Assisting the County in the performance of any obligation to be performed by County under the terms of the General Conditions.
- 2.5.2 Payments. Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for receipt, review, approval, disapproval and return (including, without limitation, the processes pertaining to withholding of funds and nullification of prior approval) of Applications for Payment from the Contractor and Separate

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 23 of 55

Contractors as set forth in the Contract Documents, including, without limitation: (1) reviewing Applications for Payment for completeness (including, without limitation, compliance with the cost coding requirements of County) for the purpose of confirming, based on Construction Manager's observations of the Work, that the portions of the Work for which payment is being requested have been performed to the extent represented in the Application for Payment; (2) determining if the types of costs, amounts and terms of stated in the Applications for Payment are in accordance with the Contract Documents; (3) approving all or such portions of the Applications for Payment as Construction Manager recommends for payment and disapproving all or such portions that Construction Manager does not recommend for payment: (4) forwarding each Application for Payment that Construction Manager approves for payment by County, bearing a statement or signature confirming that it is "approved for payment" by Construction Manager; (5) if any portion of an Application for Payment is disapproved by Construction Manager for payment, identifying the portion disapproved and the reasons for such disapproval; (6) following consultation with County, providing timely notice to Contractor and Separate Contractors of any required approval and/or disapproval by Construction Manager or another Project Team member of any portion of an Application for Payment in the manner required by Contract Documents; (7) making recommendations, when circumstances warrant, for issuance of joint payments; (8) reviewing for completeness and compliance with the Contract Documents all documentation required by the Contract Documents that is submitted with Applications for Payment, including, without limitation, all releases of stop notice rights (both conditional and unconditional) executed by the Contractor, Separate Contractor and all Subcontractors, of every Tier, including, but not limited to, Subcontractors who have served preliminary lien notices.

- 2.5.3 On-Site Representatives. Unless otherwise requested by County in writing, Construction Manager shall provide a competent representative or representatives at the Site at all times that Work is being performed who shall provide administration of the Work as required by the Contract Documents and this Agreement and who shall act as the conduit of communications between the Contractor and Separate Contractors, on the one hand, and the County and other Project Team members, on the other hand. At least one such representative of Construction Manager shall be available 7 Days a week and 24 hours a Day to respond to emergencies.
- **2.5.4 Construction Meetings.** Construction Manager shall attend all regular and special construction meetings and perform the services related thereto that are required by <u>Paragraph 2.1.5</u>, above.
- 2.5.5 Surety Bonds. Construction Manager shall: (1) evaluate surety bonds for compliance with the Contract Documents; (2) in the event of a default by Contractor or a Separate Contractor that requires County to make demand under a bond, Assist County in providing such notices to sureties as may be required in order to preserve the County's rights under such bond; (3) if requested by County, Assist County in the negotiation of terms for performance by sureties of their obligations under such bonds; and (4) Manage the performance of the Work to Final Completion (whether by surety or a completion contractor retained by surety or County) with appropriate consideration and steps being taken to document the completion process for the purposes of substantiating future claims by the County.
- 2.5.6 Safety. Construction Manager shall: (1) prior to any Work commencing at the Site, review the approved Contractor Safety Plan(s) prepared by the Contractor and Separate Contractors for general compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents; (2) walk the Site at least once each Day that the Construction Manager is onsite for the purpose of making general observations of the Work, noting any apparent safety violations or unsafe conditions; (3) upon observation of an apparent unsafe condition or safety violation, Construction Manager shall include in its daily report to County this observation as well as provide notification to the Contractor; and (4) if unsafe conditions or violations of the Contractor Safety Plan(s) are observed, immediately take action to report them to the responsible Project Team member so that action can be taken to correct such violations or conditions and conduct

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS /

such follow-up as is reasonably necessary to see that such conditions or violations have been corrected. The foregoing responsibilities of the Construction Manager related to safety are undertaken with the understanding that the Contractor and Separate Contractors are responsible for safety at the Site and that the Construction Manager's agreement to perform its obligations under this <u>Paragraph 2.5.6</u> shall not be interpreted as relieving the Contractor and Separate Contractors of their responsibility under their respective contracts with County for the sufficiency, implementation and enforcement of their respective Contractor Safety Plans.

- 2.5.7 Utilities Coordination. Construction Manager shall Manage all utilities shut downs and startups in a manner that is consistent with the County's requirements for on-going operations and use of the Site and Existing Improvements during construction. The foregoing responsibilities of the Construction Manager related to utilities are undertaken with the understanding that the Contractor and Separate Contractors are primarily responsible for planning and implementing shut downs of utilities at the Site and that Construction Manager's agreement to perform its obligation under this Paragraph 2.5.7 shall not be interpreted as relieving the Contractor and Separate Contractors of their responsibility under their respective contracts with County for providing all notifications to utility providers or Governmental Authorities of utility disconnections or relocations and for performing such disconnections and relocations in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and Applicable Laws.
- 2.5.8 Requests for Information. Construction Manager shall: (1) receive all Requests for Information from Contractor and Separate Contractors; (2) review them for clarity and obtain further clarification as needed before transmitting them to the appropriate Project Team member for response; (3) log and track the status of Requests for Information in a document control log; (4) Assist the appropriate Project Team member in preparing and processing responses; (5) provide follow-up to secure timely responses; (6) expedite return of responses as soon as possible (generally within seven (7) Days after receipt) so as to avoid Delay to the Work; and (8) issue reminders to appropriate Project Team members of the need for response to Requests for Information held for more than seven (7) Days without response.
- When Changes in the Work of the Contractor or a Separate Contractor become necessary, Construction Manager shall Manage the process of submittal, review, approval and performance of the Changes as set forth in the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the following: (1) reviewing, assembling, and evaluating documentation of Changes (including, without limitation, Notices of Change, Change Order Requests, Change Orders, Unilateral Change Orders and Construction Change Directives); (2) verifying (without the necessity of continuous observation of Work) in the field actual labor, time and materials expended; (3) making recommendations to County with respect to the completeness, sufficiency and compliance of such documentation with the requirements of the Contract Documents; (4) forwarding, as required by the Contract Documents, such documentation to the appropriate Project Team member(s) for review; (5) expediting responses by the appropriate Project Team member(s); (6) preparing independent estimates, if requested by County, of the cost and time impact of Changes and requests for Contract Adjustment; (7) scheduling, attending and conducting meetings for review and discussion of unresolved issues; (8) negotiating resolution of disputed Changes and requests for Contract Adjustments with the responsible Contractor or Separate Contractor; (9) substantiating in writing, if requested, Construction Manager's recommendations to County as to the acceptability of the Contractor's and Separate Contractors' cost proposals for Contract Adjustments; (10) upon final approval by County, forwarding completed Change Order, Unilateral Change Order and Construction Change Directive documentation to the appropriate Project Team member for processing; (11) preparing and distributing on a regular basis (no less frequently than monthly) as part of its Project Reports a Change Order, Unilateral Change Order and Construction Change Directive status report listing all approved, pending, disapproved and disputed Change Orders, Unilateral Change Orders and Construction Change Directives by number, brief descriptions of the Change involved and the amount of any requested, pending, approved, disapproved or disputed Contract Adjustments; (12) verifying that any

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Contract Adjustments of the Contract Time approved by County have been incorporated into the Project Schedule and the Contractor's and Separate Contractors' updated Construction Schedules; and (13) collecting, authenticating (on a daily basis as required) and reviewing for completeness and compliance with the Contract Documents, the time and material information submitted by the Contractor and Separate Contractors of labor, materials, services and equipment furnished to perform Changes.

- 2.5.10 Submittals. Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for receipt, review, approval and return of Submittals, including, without limitation, the following: (1) receiving the Submittals: (2) reviewing the Submittals, not for technical sufficiency, but to determine if they have been assembled in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents; (3) logging the Submittals in the appropriate control log; (4) delivering Submittals to the Architect or appropriate County Consultant for technical review; (5) receiving and logging returned Submittals received from the Architect or County Consultant; (6) confirming that Submittals have been stamped by the reviewing Architect or County Consultant indicating the status of their review and approval; (7) delivering to the Contractor any Submittals returned by the Architect or County Consultant; (8) storing approved physical sample Submittals approved by the Architect or a County Consultant at the Site so that they are available for review by Project Team members; (9) reviewing the status of the Submittals in the construction meetings in an effort to expedite processing; (10) reporting on Delays in the processing of Submittals; (11) issuing a reminder to the Architect or County Consultant conducting a review of a Submittal that has been held more than seven (7) Days without a response; (12) evaluating the Submittal Schedules and updated Submittal Schedules prepared by Contractor and Separate Contractors for reasonableness. completeness and compliance with the Contract Documents; and (13) developing recovery plans if the circumstances or timing of the submission or return of a Submittal threatens to cause a Delay to the Contractor's or a Separate Contractor's achieving Substantial Completion or Final Completion within the Contract Time.
- **2.5.11 County-Furnished Materials.** County is responsible for coordinating and tracking the purchase, fabrication and delivery of County Furnished Materials including storage, protection, security, inventory and installation. Construction Manager shall alert and advise County of related schedule milestones to facilitate timely installation of County Furnished Materials.
- **2.5.12 Schedule of Values.** Construction Manager shall: (1) review the values inserted in the Schedule of Values to determine if they represent fair and balanced allocations of the Contract Price; (2) verify the correlation of the trade line item estimates for Work in the Schedule of Values to the actual Subcontractor subcontract values; and (3) make recommendations for necessary adjustments to the Schedule of Values.
- 2.5.13 Construction Schedules. Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for receipt, review, evaluation and approval or disapproval of the Construction Schedules and other shortterm "look ahead" schedules, and updates thereof, prepared by Contractor and Separate Contractors, including, without limitation, the following: (1) receiving, reviewing, analyzing and advising County on the suitability of such schedules; (2) checking that such schedules are prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and that they are consistent with the terms of the County's contracts with other Project Team members; (3) conducting meetings to facilitate compliance by Contractor and Separate Contractors with the scheduling requirements of the Contract Documents; (4) providing to County, in writing if requested, a written explanation of the basis for the Construction Manager's disapproval of any portion of such schedules that Construction Manager does not approve; (5) reporting to County, in writing if requested, on variances between as-built progress of the Work and the planned progress of the Work as set forth in such schedules; (6) review the contractor's written recovery plans to recapture time lost or to overcome delays and make recommendations accordingly; (7) recommending necessary actions to County should Contractor or a Separate Contractor fail to make any appropriate or required corrections to such schedules; and (8) reviewing, critically evaluating and making

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

recommendations, in writing if requested, to County regarding, written requests by Contractor and Separate Contractors for time extensions, requests for additional compensation related to Delay and proposals for acceleration to overcome Delay.

- **2.5.14 Staffing.** Construction Manager shall: (1) evaluate monthly, at a minimum, the adequacy of Contractor's and each Separate Contractor's staffing levels and the availability of critical materials and equipment; (2) recommend courses of action when it appears that Contractor's or a Separate Contractor's resources are inadequate or that critical materials or equipment may be delayed.
- **2.5.15 Report Review.** Construction Manager shall review and provide recommendations to respond to issues raised in reports submitted by other Project Team members and notify the appropriate Project Team members if the reports are incomplete, illegible, or inconsistent with facts known by Construction Manager.
- **2.5.16 Daily Reports.** At the end of each Day that Contractor or a Separate Contractor performs Work on the Site, Construction Manager shall submit (by paper original or, if requested, electronically), separately for the Contractor and each Separate Contractor who performed Work on such Day, a daily report to County (on a form provided or approved by County) that includes, at a minimum, the following:
- .1 Labor The number of workers in each trade as reported by the General Contractor and as generally observed in the field.
 - .2 Material A list of materials onsite/delivered.
 - .3 Equipment A list of equipment onsite/delivered.
- .4 Inspection and Testing Activities A list of inspections performed by name of inspector and testing company and the type of inspection, items of the Work involved and a description of the outcome of such inspection or test.
- .5 Areas of the Work A statement of the areas of the Site on which the Work was performed and a detailed description of the stage, status and progress of the Work in each such area at the beginning and end of the Day.
- .6 Accidents, Delays, Defective Work A description in detail of any injuries to the workers, accidents, delays, or Defective Work that is observed by or reported to Construction Manager.
- 2.5.17 Photographic Record. Construction Manager shall provide photographic documentation of the Site immediately prior to the start of construction, at regular intervals during construction and at Final Completion. One set of progress photographs of the Project shall be regularly taken, no less frequently than weekly during the Work, from a common, fixed vantage point. Photographic documentation shall show all significant progress, which Construction Manager understands may necessitate more extensive photographing on some days and weeks than others or from additional vantage points. When problems arise, Construction Manager shall act promptly to document the conditions by photographing specific conditions and any changes in the conditions as they occur.
- 2.5.18 Observations at Site. Construction Manager shall be present at the Site during the performance of the Work so as to become familiar with the progress and quality of the completed Work, to determine if the Work is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and to guard against Defective Work. The Construction

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Manager's duty to make observations pursuant to this <u>Paragraph 2.5.18</u> includes the obligation to make diligent, daily observations, but not necessarily exhaustive observations, of the condition of the Work at the Site.

2.5.19 Defective Work. Based on Construction Manager's observations at the Site, Construction Manager shall: (1) alert the Inspector of Record as to work that may be considered Defective Work; (2) assist the Inspector of Record in maintaining a log describing Defective Work identified and the status of the correction thereof; and (4) take necessary follow-up action to expedite correction by the responsible Project Team member.

2.5.20 Means, Methods. NOT USED

- **2.5.21 Inspections, Testing.** Construction Manager shall Manage the processes of inspection and testing, including, without limitation, the following: (1) Assisting the County in selecting and retaining qualified Inspectors of Record; (2) Assisting Contractor and Separate Contractors in coordinating inspections; (3) confirming compliance by Project Team members with the directives of Inspectors of Record; and (4) providing follow-up to expedite and confirm timely submission by the responsible Project Team member of inspection reports to Governmental Authorities.
- **2.5.22 Permits.** Construction Manager shall: (1) review permits to determine that they are current; (2) report to County and Contractor any violations of applicable conditions of permits; (3) recommend corrective action to cure such violations; (4) issue appropriate correction notices to Contractor and Separate Contractors; and (5) verify that corrective action has been taken in accordance with the requirements of Government Authorities, the Contract Documents and the directives of County.

2.5.23 Urban Runoff and Storm Water, NOT USED

- 2.5.24 CEQA Compliance. Construction Manager shall: (1) take reasonable steps to ensure that no Work that is subject to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) proceeds by Contractor until Contract Documents satisfying the CEQA process are reviewed and approved by the County; (2) Manage Contractor's and Separate Contractors' compliance with applicable CEQA requirements and if there is a federal nexus (e.g. a source of federal funding) to the Project, their compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA); and (3) Manage Contractor's and Separate Contractors' compliance with the applicable requirements pertaining to Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program (MMRP).
- 2.5.25 AQMD Compliance. Construction Manager shall Manage Contractor's and Separate Contractors' compliance with, as applicable: (1) AQMD Rule 403.1, County Ordinance 742, the County MOU with AQMD dated January 6, 2004 Agenda Item 3.1 (for projects in the Coachella Valley); or (2) AQMD Rule 403 (for projects west of the Coachella Valley).
- **2.5.26 Field Monuments.** Construction Manager shall report to County if any survey markers or monuments have been disturbed and promptly recommend corrective action.
- 2.5.27 Certified Payrolls. If certified payroll records are required to be submitted under the terms of a Construction Contract or Applicable Laws, Construction Manager shall: (1) collect certified payroll records submitted by Contractor and Separate Contractors; (2) in the event that Contractor or a Separate Contractor has failed to submit certified payroll records, notify the County and such Contractor or Separate Contractor of such failure, along with a request to such Contractor or Separate Contractor that it comply; (3) forward all certified payroll records received to the County for further action; and (4) if necessary, recommend action by County to enforce compliance by Contractor and Separate Contractors with the requirements of their contracts with County for submission of certified payroll records and payment of prevailing wages.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 28 of 55

- **2.5.28 Record Documents.** Construction Manager shall Manage compliance by Contractor and the Separate Contractors with their obligations for posting and maintenance of Record Drawings and Record Specifications and recommend action to County for any observed non-compliances.
- 2.5.29 Claims. Construction Manager shall, if requested by County: (1) Assist the County in the analysis of claims submitted to County by a Project Team member; (2) produce or obtain from the appropriate Project Team member any records and documents required to Assist the County in its analysis of such claims; (3) Assist the County in resolving such claims; and (4) review and comment on any final settlement documents prepared by the County for settlement of such claims on terms approved by County.

2.6 CLOSE-OUT PHASE

- **2.6.1 Inspection.** Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for inspection and approval to determine Substantial Completion and Final Completion, including, without limitation, the following: (1) conduct inspections to verify Substantial Completion and Final Completion; (2) notify the Contractor and Separate Contractors of Substantial Completion, Final Completion and Acceptance; and (3) if requested by County, certify in writing the dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion.
- 2.6.2 Punch Lists. Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for preparation, receipt, review, modification and approval of punch lists, including, without limitation, the following: (1) reviewing and evaluating for completeness the punch lists of items prepared by Contractor and Separate Contractors for Substantial Completion and Final Completion; (2) distributing the punch lists to the appropriate Project Team members for review; (3) ascertaining any items of Work to be added to the Substantial Completion Punch List and Final Completion Punch List; (4) causing such items to be added to the Substantial Completion Punch List and Final Completion Punch List; (5) evaluating and confirming that all items on the Substantial Completion Punch List and Final Completion Punch List have been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to approving of Substantial Completion or Final Completion; and (6) recommending modifications and additions to the punch lists to add any items of Work necessary to Substantial Completion or Final Completion that have been omitted.
- 2.6.3 Operational Testing. Construction Manager shall Manage the process of operational testing of utilities, building systems and equipment, including, without limitation, the following: (1) arranging for and documenting final testing to determine readiness for use; (2) Assisting the Contractor and Separate Contractors in the start-up and testing; (3) scheduling with Contractor and Separate Contractors and County's operations, facilities and maintenance personnel and documenting the occurrence of, all required start-up and related testing; and (4) Assisting the Contractor and Separate Contractors in scheduling and conducting equipment and systems operations and maintenance training of County's operations, facilities and maintenance personnel.
- **2.6.4** Occupancy Permits. When the Construction Manager considers the Work, or a portion designated by County for separate delivery, to be Substantially Complete, the Construction Manager shall: (1) Assist County and Contractor in obtaining all certificates of occupancy required for occupancy of the Work or portions designated by County for separate delivery; and (2) confirm that the conditions to issuance of such permits are being and have been accomplished.
- 2.6.5 Final Payment. In addition to the Construction Manager's obligations under Paragraph 2.5.2, above, Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for receipt, review and responding to Applications for Payment by Contractor and Separate Contractors requesting Final Payment, including, without limitation, the following: (1) receiving, reviewing and recommending whether payment should be made upon the Application for Payment and recommending any withholding; (2) confirming that all Close-Out Documents required by the Contract Documents have been received by the County; (3) notifying

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS TO S

County of any items required for Final Completion that have not been submitted and of what actions Construction Manager is taking, or recommends, to obtain such items; (4) not recommend payment upon Contractor's or a Separate Contractor's Application for Payment until all punch list items necessary to Final Completion have been completed and all documents required to be submitted by Contractor or the Separate Contractor under the Contract Documents and all other actions required to be taken have been received and taken; and (5) if requested by County and after consultation with County, Assisting County in resolving payment disputes between County and Contractor or a Separate Contractor.

- **2.6.6 Close-Out Documents.** Construction Manager shall Manage the processes for close-out of the Project as required by the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the following: (1) review and confirm the completeness and accuracy of the Record Documents and other Close-Out Documents and, if significant discrepancies are noted, notify County, Architect and Contractor or Separate Contractor of same and perform such follow-up as may be necessary to assure that corrections are made; and (2) obtain and transmit warranties, keys, maintenance stocks and other Close-Out Documents as required by the Contract Documents.
- , 2.6.7 Audit. If requested by County, Construction Manager shall Assist County in arranging audits of the books and records of Contractor, Separate Contractors or other Project Team members.

2.7 POST-COMPLETION PHASE

Construction Manager shall accompany the Architect in a warranty review of the Work Ten (10) months after Final Completion. Construction Manager shall within thirty (30) Days after the date of such review make written recommendations to County for the correction of any Defective Work discovered. As part of Basic Services, the number of working hours to complete such review and preparation of written recommendations shall not exceed Twenty-four (24) hours. Hours in excess of the aforestated number of hours included as Basic Services shall be compensated as an Additional Service only if approved in advance in writing by County.

2.8 SCHEDULING

- **2.8.1 Master Project Schedule.** Construction Manager shall perform its Basic Services consistent with the <u>Master Project Schedule Exhibit "F"</u> attached hereto.
- **2.8.2 Project Schedule.** Within thirty (30) Days after execution of this Agreement, the Construction Manager shall prepare and present for approval by County a detailed Project Schedule setting forth the key milestones and deadlines that need to be met by the Project Team members in order to meet the requirements of the Master Project Schedule. Once the Project Schedule is approved, Construction Manager shall inform the Project Team members of the deadlines set forth in the Project Schedule that are applicable to them and Manage the performance by Project Team members in a manner that facilitates their meeting those deadlines.
- 2.8.3 Extensions. A failure by Construction Manager to perform its Basic Services consistent with the Master Project Schedule or Project Schedule approved by County shall not be considered a default of this Agreement to the extent such failure is due to unavoidable and unforeseeable Delays that are beyond Construction Manager's and its Subconsultants' reasonable control and beyond Construction Manager's responsibility under this Agreement (such as, but not limited to, strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns or stoppages, accidents, acts of God, failure of any Governmental Authority to act in a reasonably timely manner, failure by County to timely provide information or approvals or Delays caused by the fault of the Contractor or Separate Contractors), but only if Construction Manager has given written notice to County of the circumstances of such Delay within seven (7) Calendar Days after first learning of the circumstances causing such Delay.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM0826000146
Page 30 of 55

- **2.8.4 Updates.** Construction Manager shall, no less frequently than monthly, update and expand the level of detail in the Project Schedule as the Project progresses, indicating the current status of scheduled activities and projections of the likely completion of major tasks. If significant variance from planned activities occurs, Construction Manager shall recommend recovery plans to County and, upon obtaining County's approval thereof, modify the Project Schedule to incorporate such recovery plans.
- **2.8.5 County Review.** Construction Manager is solely responsible, notwithstanding County's review or approval thereof, for the completeness, accuracy and suitability of the Project Schedule and all updates thereof.
- **2.8.6 No Delay.** Construction Manager shall not delay its interpretations, decisions, reviews or other functions pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise cause or contribute to a Delay to the progress of design or construction of the Project.
- **2.8.7 Delay Losses.** Construction Manager's sole and exclusive right and remedy for recovery or compensation for Losses related to Delay, of any kind, are: (1) its right to Additional Services Compensation for Additional Services to the extent permitted by <u>Paragraph 3.2.4</u>, below, and (2) its right to adjustment of the Hourly Rates, if any, provided for by this Agreement. All other rights and claims by the Construction Manager, on its own behalf and on behalf of its Subconsultants, for Losses relating to Delay, from any cause whatsoever, are hereby waived.

ARTICLE 3 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

3.1 DEFINITION, AUTHORIZATION

Additional Services are services, which, if authorized by and performed in accordance with this Agreement, are paid for by County in the form of Additional Services Compensation. Additional Services consist solely and exclusively of those services listed in this <u>Article 3</u>. Additional Services shall be performed only if authorized and directed in writing by County in advance and in accordance with this <u>Article 3</u>. Additional Services, whether or not listed in this <u>Article 3</u>, do not include any service that arises, in whole or in part, from the breach of this Agreement by Construction Manager or an act or omission of Construction Manager or a Subconsultant constituting negligence (ordinary or professional), willful misconduct or a violation of Applicable Laws.

3.2 ENUMERATION OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Additional Services include and are not limited to the following:

- **3.2.1** providing services that are categorically, by reason of the type or nature of the service involved and not the quantity of services required, outside the scope of services that are required to be performed by Construction Manager as part of Basic Services under this Agreement;
- **3.2.2** providing additional, unforeseeable Basic Services to Manage the replacement or repair of Defective Work:
- **3.2.3** providing services, including witness preparation, in connection with a mediation, arbitration, or legal proceeding, except where any party to such proceeding has alleged in good faith the occurrence of: (1) a breach of this Agreement by Construction Manager; or (2) an act or omission of Construction Manager or a Subconsultant constituting negligence (ordinary or professional), willful misconduct, or a violation of Applicable Laws;

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 31 of 55

- **3.2.4** providing additional Basic Services for the Management of the Work that, solely due to circumstances for which the Construction Manager is entitled to an extension of time under <u>Paragraph 2.8.3</u>, above, unless County has issued a notice under Paragraph 1.1.82 above; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be interpreted as entitling Construction Manager to be paid duplicative compensation (both as Additional Services and Basic Services), if Construction Manager has not exceeded the staffing hours set forth in Exhibit "N":
- **3.2.5** providing consultation for replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services in conjunction with replacement work.
 - **3.2.6** providing any other service not otherwise included in this Agreement.

3.3 NOTICE OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Construction Manager shall notify County in writing within five (5) Days after learning of any circumstance (including, without limitation, any direction or request by County or other Project Team member) that Construction Manager believes may give rise to performance of Additional Services. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3.4, below, Construction Manager waives the right to compensation for Additional Services performed without prior written approval by the Board of Supervisors expressly acknowledging that the service is an Additional Service.

3.4 DISPUTES

If a good faith dispute arises as to whether a particular service performed or to be performed is a Basic Service or an Additional Service, Construction Manager will, if requested to do so by County in writing, nevertheless promptly perform such service and pay any expenses associated with such performance, pending resolution of such dispute. Neither County's request, Construction Manager's performance nor County's payment therefor will constitute a waiver on the part of County or Construction Manager of their respective rights or defenses with respect to the appropriate classification of such service, which rights and defenses shall remain subject to determination in accordance with Article 11, below.

ARTICLE 4 COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1 ADMINISTRATION BY COUNTY

- **4.1.1 County Requirements.** County shall provide such information as is requested by Construction Manager regarding the County's objectives, schedule, constraints, criteria, space requirements and relationships, flexibility, expandability, special equipment and Site requirements.
- **4.1.2 County Approvals.** County shall promptly respond to Construction Manager's requests for decisions, approvals or information; provided, however, that no failure by County to respond shall entitle Construction Manager to an adjustment of the Master Project Schedule or Project Schedule except as permitted by Section 2.8, above. Construction Manager shall remain solely and exclusively responsible and liable, notwithstanding the review or approval by County, for the content, completeness and adequacy of all Project Documents prepared by Construction Manager, including, without limitation, all Deliverables.
- 4.1.3 Assistant CEO/EDA. Subject in all cases to prior approval by the Board of Supervisors as required by Applicable Laws, the Assistant CEO/EDA is the sole representative of County with authority on behalf of County to: (1) approve or revise the Final Program; (2) authorize the performance of Additional Services or incurring of Reimbursable Expenses; or (3) commit or bind County to any

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 32 of 55

obligation to pay any sums of money or additional compensation other than, or beyond, the amount of the agreed Basic Services Compensation in association with performance of Additional Services.

4.2 PROJECT INFORMATION

County shall furnish, upon written request by Construction Manager, information reasonably available to County concerning the Project, including surveys, soil reports, subsurface investigations, as-builts of Existing Improvements, descriptions of legal limitations, utility plans and similar information. Construction Manager is entitled to rely thereupon; however, County does not warrant, expressly or impliedly, the accuracy, suitability or completeness of such information or of any data, opinions or recommendations contained therein and it shall not be considered a breach by the County of this Agreement in the event there are errors or omissions in such information, data, opinions or recommendations.

4.3 ACCESS TO SITE

Construction Manager shall at all times during performance of this Agreement have access to the Site and to the Work, at whatever stage the Work is in its preparation or progress, to facilitate Construction Manager's performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Employees of Construction Manager and its Subconsultants shall, at all times while present on the Site, comply with the safety requirements applicable to the Project.

ARTICLE 5 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S COMPENSATION

5.1 BASIC SERVICES COMPENSATION

- 5.1.1 Total Compensation. Construction Manager shall be paid a total Basic Services Compensation for performance of Basic Services (including, without limitation, Basic Services performed by Subconsultants) comprised exclusively of (1) Basic Services Fees plus (2) authorized Reimbursable Expenses and (3) County controlled Fee Allowance for Construction Manager for unforeseen Owner needs. Basic Services Compensation constitutes the Construction Manager's sole, exclusive and complete compensation for performance of Basic Services, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses, of any kind, incurred by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants in performance of Basic Services.
- **5.1.2** Basic Services Fees. Construction Manager's Basic Services Fees for performance of Basic Services shall be as follows: [Check appropriate box(es)]:
 - .1 a Fixed Basic Services Fee for all Basic Services of \$_____
- .2 the product of (1) the actual hours expended by Construction Manager's and its Subconsultants' personnel in performance of Basic Services multiplied times (2) the applicable Hourly Rates for such personnel, the total of which shall not exceed for all Basic Services the cumulative total fee agreed upon for Basic Services as demonstrated in Exhibit 'N" (Staffing Fee Schedule).
- .3 a Basic Services Fee based on a combination of compensation comprised of both Fixed Basic Services Fees and Maximum Hourly Fees for each of the following categories of Basic Services:

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM082600 0146 Page 33 of 55

Basic Services Description: Basic Services Fees:

(1) Construction Management Staffing :	
	Not to Exceed Fee: \$ <u>797,210</u>
	Maximum Hourly Fee: \$(see Exhibit C);
(2) CM Subconsultants	Fixed Basic Services Fee: \$
	Maximum Hourly Fee: \$(see Exhibit C)
(3) CM Services Allowance:	Not to Exceed Allowance: \$
	Maximum Hourly Fee: \$ (see Exhibit C);
(4) Reimbursable Costs:	Not to Exceed Reimbursable Costs: \$
	Included in lump sum fee

5.1.3 Guaranteed Amounts. An amount agreed to by County and Construction Manager pursuant to Paragraph 5.1.2, above, as a Fixed Basic Services Fee or Maximum Hourly Fee represents the County's maximum liability to Construction Manager for the complete performance by Construction Manager and its Subconsultants of the Basic Services or portion of Basic Services covered by such Basic Services Fees. Subject only to Construction Manager's rights under Section 5.2, below, any fees, costs or expenses, of any kind, incurred by Construction Manager or a Subconsultant, for performance of Basic Services or a portion of Basic Services for which a Fixed Basic Services Fee or Maximum Hourly Fee has been agreed to in Paragraph 5.1.2, above, that if charged to County would exceed the amount of such Fixed Basic Services Fee or Maximum Hourly Fee shall be deemed incurred at Construction Manager's Own Expense.

5.2 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

- **5.2.1** Exclusive List. Reimbursable Expenses include, and are limited to, a reasonable amount for the following costs and expenses if and to the extent they are incurred and paid by Construction Manager in the performance of Basic Services or Additional Services and not as a result of the negligence, willful misconduct or violation of an Applicable Law by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants or the failure by Construction Manager to comply with the requirements of this Agreement:
- if approved in advance by County, mileage for vehicle travel (at the rates set forth in the Reimbursable Expenses Schedule Exhibit "H" attached hereto), air travel (coach fare only) and related subsistence (meals and lodging at standard business accommodation rates) for travel from Construction Manager's or a Subconsultant's place of business (whether located within or outside the County of Riverside) to a point of destination outside the County or Riverside, but excluding the following: (1) travel and related subsistence to or from the County's offices or the Site for purposes of conducting inspections, observations or attending meetings that are part of Basic Services; (2) travel to and from residences to the Construction Manager's or a Subconsultant's place of business; and (3) travel to or from Construction Manager's or a Subconsultant's place of business located outside the County of Riverside to a location within the County of Riverside;
- .2 printing and reproduction (paper and electronic) of documents, at the agreed rates set forth in the Reimbursable Expenses Schedule Exhibit "H" attached hereto, that under the terms

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 34 of 55

of this Agreement are required to be delivered to County or that County requests or approves be provided to another member of the Project Team (by way of example, without limitation, costs of printing or reproduction for internal uses by, or for copies transmitted between or among, Construction Manager and/or its Subconsultants are not reimbursable);

- fees for permits or approvals of Governmental Authorities paid for by Construction Manager on behalf of County as requested by County; and
- costs listed in Subparagraphs 5.2.1.1 through 5.2.1.3, above, incurred and paid by Subconsultants in the performance of Basic Services or Additional Services; provided that (1) such costs are due and payable by Construction Manager pursuant to terms of a contract approved by County pursuant to Section 1.6, above; (2) such costs are not included in or covered by any fixed fee agreed to by the Subconsultant under the terms of the Subconsultant's contract; and (3) such costs are not in excess of any not-to-exceed amount applicable thereto under the terms of the Subconsultant's contract.
- 5.2.2 Approval Limitations. Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed, either individually or in the aggregate, the limits set forth in the Reimbursable Expenses Schedule - Exhibit "H" attached hereto without the prior written approval of County. Reimbursable Expenses incurred without such approval shall be deemed incurred at Construction Manager's Own Expense.
- Mark Ups. Neither the Construction Manager nor any Subconsultant shall include or charge any markup or multiplier upon any Reimbursable Expense, save and except for such markups or multipliers as may be permitted, if at all, by the terms of the Reimbursable Expenses Schedule - Exhibit "H" attached hereto.
- Expense Records. In addition to Construction Manager's obligations under Section 6.3, below, accurate and detailed records of Reimbursable Expenses shall be maintained by Construction Manager in an orderly manner on the basis of generally accepted accounting practices and shall be available at Construction Manager's office (or at County's request, shall be brought by Construction Manager to County's offices) for inspection, auditing and/or copying by County and its representatives pursuant to Article 7, below.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES COMPENSATION 5.3

Additional Services Compensation. Construction Manager shall be paid a total Additional Services Compensation for performance of Additional Services comprised exclusively of Additional Services Fees plus authorized Reimbursable Expenses. Additional Services Compensation constitutes the Construction Manager's sole, exclusive and complete compensation for Additional Services, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses, of any kind, incurred in connection with Construction Manager's and its Subconsultants' performance of Additional Services.

5.3.2 Additional Services Fees.

Authorization. Prior to performance of an Additional Service, Construction Manager and County shall attempt in good faith to negotiate terms for Additional Services Fees on the basis of either: (1) a lump sum price; or (2) actual hours expended multiplied times the Hourly Rates for the personnel involved in providing such Additional Service as set forth in the Hourly Rates Schedule -Exhibit "C" attached hereto, not-to-exceed an agreed maximum amount. In addition to County's rights under Section 5.6, below, if the parties are unable to agree, then the County shall have the right, without limitation, to direct in writing that Construction Manager perform the Additional Services based on actual hours expended at the agreed Hourly Rates, without a not-to-exceed amount. Additional Services performed without prior written authorization pursuant to this Paragraph 5.3.2 or written direction, pursuant

Edition: May 2014

to Section 5.6, below, shall be deemed performed at Construction Manager's Own Expense.

- .2 Hourly Rates. Compensation for Additional Services authorized by County to be performed on an hourly basis (with or without an agreed not-to-exceed amount) shall be computed based on the Hourly Rates.
- **5.3.3 Direct Engagement.** County reserves the right, without thereby being considered in breach of this Agreement, to contract for the performance of Additional Services by others.

5.4 HOURLY RATES

Hourly Rates for Basic Services and Additional Services performed on an hourly basis are set forth in the <u>Hourly Rates Schedule - Exhibit "C "</u> attached hereto. Hourly Rates shall remain fixed for the duration of Construction Manager's performance of this Agreement.

5.5 RELEASE FOR PRIOR SERVICES

Construction Manager waives and releases County from any obligation or liability for payment of money or compensation for services, of any kind, performed and for costs or expenses, of any kind, incurred, prior to the Effective Date.

5.6 DISPUTES

If a good faith dispute arises as to whether a service is Basic Services or Additional Services or whether an expense is reimbursable as a Reimbursable Expense, Construction Manager will nevertheless promptly perform such service and pay such expense, if requested to do so by County in writing, pending resolution of such dispute. Neither County's request, Construction Manager's performance nor County's payment therefor or thereof will constitute a waiver on the part of County or Construction Manager of their respective rights or defenses with respect to the appropriate classification of such service or expense, which rights and defenses shall remain subject to determination in accordance with Article 11, below.

5.7 NO WAIVER OR RELEASE OF RIGHTS

Neither authorization nor payment by County of any amount for Basic Services, Additional Services or Reimbursable Expenses shall be interpreted as a waiver, release or settlement of any rights or claims that County may have: (1) for Losses resulting from the fault, negligence or willful misconduct of the Construction Manager or its Subconsultants or the breach by Construction Manager of an obligation under this Agreement; or (2) to recoup and recover from Construction Manager amounts paid by County that were not in fact due and owing to Construction Manager under the terms of this Agreement at the time they were paid.

ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

6.1 INVOICES FOR PAYMENT

On the 1st day of each month, Construction Manager shall submit to County an accurate and complete Invoice for Payment, using the <u>Invoice for Payment Form - Exhibit "I"</u> attached hereto, signed by Construction Manager and requesting payment for the preceding thirty (30) Day period, which is prepared in accordance with the following requirements:

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 36 of 55

- 6.1.1 Basic Services Fees. Amounts included by Construction Manager in its Invoices for Payments for Basic Services Fees on account of Basic Services or any portion of Basic Services for which a Fixed Basic Services Fee or a Maximum Hourly Fee has been agreed to in Section 5.1, above, shall not exceed a prorated portion of the agreed Basic Services Fees based on the product of (1) the percentage of completion of such Basic Services that has been actually achieved by Construction Manager, multiplied times (2) the agreed Fixed Basic Services Fee or Maximum Hourly Fee applicable to such Basic Services; and provided further, that where such Basic Services or portion of Basic Services are to be performed in Phases, such prorated portion shall be proportionate to and shall not exceed for any Phase of such Basic Services or portion of Basic Services, the percentage of such Basic Services Fees that is assigned to such Phase in the Payment Schedule Exhibit "J" attached hereto.
- **6.1.2** Additional Services Fees. Construction Manager's Invoice for Payment shall include amounts for Additional Services Fees earned for the proper performance of Additional Services authorized pursuant to Article 3 and Article 5, above. Each item of Additional Services shall be separately itemized, in accordance with the following methods of calculation, as applicable:
- .1 Lump Sum: If the agreed Additional Services Fees are based on a lump sum price, by taking the County's Good Faith Determination of the percentage of the Additional Services properly completed and multiplying that percentage times the agreed lump sum price for such Additional Services and subtracting therefrom payments previously made on account thereof.
- .2 Hourly/Not-to-Exceed: If the Additional Services Fees are based on an hourly compensation, by taking the number of hours of Additional Services performed during the thirty (30) Day period covered by the Invoice for Payment and multiplying those hours times the applicable Hourly Rates for the personnel involved in providing such Additional Service; provided, however, that if the parties have agreed to a not-to-exceed amount for such Additional Services Fees, then under no circumstances shall the total of the amounts paid and payable by County for such Additional Services Fees at any time exceed a pro rated share of the agreed not-to-exceed amount for such Additional Services based on County's Good Faith Determination of the percentage of such Additional Services properly completed in accordance with this Agreement multiplied times the agreed not-to-exceed amount.
- **6.1.3** Reimbursable Expenses. Construction Manager's Invoice for Payment shall include amounts for authorized Reimbursable Expenses incurred and paid by Construction Manager during the thirty (30) Day period covered by the Invoice for Payment that have not been previously reimbursed by County. Reimbursable Expenses associated with Basic Services and Additional Services shall be separately itemized. Reimbursable Expenses for Additional Services shall be further separately itemized to correspond to the Additional Service for which they were incurred and paid.

6.2 PAYMENT SCHEDULE FOR BASIC SERVICES

The County's obligation for payment of Basic Services Fees for any Phase of Basic Services shall under no circumstances exceed a pro-rated share of either the lump sum amount or Maximum Hourly Fee, as applicable, that County is obligated to pay for Basic Services Fees under Section 5.1, above. Such pro-rated share shall be calculated based on the percentages assigned to each Phase of Basic Services in the Payment Schedule - Exhibit "J " attached hereto. In cases where only a portion of a Phase is completed, the amount payable shall not exceed County's Good Faith Determination of the percentage of Basic Services completed within that Phase expressed as a separate percentage of the percentage of Basic Services allocated in the Payment Schedule to that Phase.

6.3 ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTATION

Each Invoice for Payment shall be accompanied by the following:

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM0826060146
Page 37 of 55

- 6.3.1 in the case of Basic Services and Additional Services performed and compensated on an hourly (as opposed to lump sum fee) basis, detailed time summaries for Basic Services and Additional Services performed during the period of time covered by the Invoice for Payment that are broken down by time keeper, task and time expended (block billings are not permitted) and copies of all time sheets prepared by any time keeper who performed any part of the Basic Services and Additional Services that are the subject of the Invoice for Payment and that reflect or record such Basic Services and Additional Services:
- 6.3.2 copies each of the invoices, receipts and other documentation verifying the amounts of Reimbursable Expenses for which reimbursement is sought in the Invoice for Payment, along with a tally of all Reimbursable Expenses requested in the Invoice for Payment the sum of which totals the total amount of Reimbursable Expenses for which reimbursement is sought by Construction Manager in the Invoice for Payment;
- conditional waivers and releases of stop notice and bond rights executed by Construction Manager and its Sub consultants, of every Tier, using the Release Forms - Exhibit "K" attached hereto, conditionally releasing to the fullest extent allowable by Applicable Laws all stop notice and bond rights for all services performed and costs incurred during the period of time covered by the then-current Invoice for Payment;
- unconditional waivers and releases of stop notice and bond rights executed by Construction Manager and its Sub consultants, of every Tier, using the Release Forms - Exhibit "K" attached hereto unconditionally releasing to the fullest extent allowable by Applicable Laws all stop notice and bond rights for all services performed and costs incurred during the period of time covered by the Invoice for Payment immediately preceding the current, pending Invoice for Payment; and
- 6.3.5 such other documentation substantiating Construction Manager's or its Sub consultant's charges or time as may be reasonably requested by County.

6.4 REVIEW AND PAYMENT

- Review by County. County shall, within fourteen (14) Days after receipt of an Invoice for Payment prepared and submitted in accordance with this Agreement, notify Construction Manager if the Invoice for Payment is approved or rejected, in whole or in part, along with an explanation of the reason(s) for any disapproval.
- 6.4.2 Payment by County. Payment of undisputed amounts included in an Invoice for Payment prepared and submitted in accordance with this Agreement shall be made by County monthly within thirty (30) Days after receipt by County of the Invoice for Payment requesting payment that is prepared and submitted in accordance with this Agreement.

6.5 **PAYMENT DISPUTES**

Without limitation to County's rights under Section 6.6, below, in the event there is a good faith dispute over a request for payment included in an Invoice for Payment, County shall have the right to either: (1) make all or part of such disputed payment to Construction Manager without prejudice to County's right to contest the amount so paid; or (2) withhold only the amount of such payment as to which County makes a Good Faith Determination that there is a dispute and provide to Construction Manager written notice of the reason(s) for such withholding. County and Construction Manager shall use their good faith efforts to attempt to resolve their dispute as quickly as practicable under the circumstances. Construction Manager shall not be entitled to terminate this Agreement or suspend performance of its services hereunder on account of such nonpayment provided that County makes payment of all undisputed sums. Af County

Edition: May 2014

chooses to withhold payments under Clause (2) of this <u>Section 6.5</u> and if it is determined subsequently that County's withholding was wrongful, County shall pay such amount to Construction Manager plus interest at the Interest Rate from and after the date that County defaulted in the performance of its payment obligation under this Agreement. If County chooses to proceed under Clause (1) of this <u>Section 6.5</u> and it is subsequently determined that County overpaid Construction Manager, Construction Manager shall refund to County the amount of such payment plus accrued interest computed at the Interest Rate from the date of such overpayment until refunded.

6.6 WITHHOLDING BY COUNTY

County shall have the right, after written notice to Construction Manager, to withhold from payment to Construction Manager 150% of the amount of any Loss resulting or threatened as a result of the negligence, willful misconduct or violation of Applicable Laws by Construction Manager or a Subconsultant or a failure by Construction Manager to perform an obligation under this Agreement. Such withholding shall not constitute a final determination or waiver of any rights or liabilities of County or Construction Manager with respect to responsibility for such Loss, which rights and liabilities shall remain subject to determination in accordance with Article 11 of this Agreement. The foregoing right of withholding is in addition to, and not a limitation upon, the County's other rights and remedies provided for under this Agreement or Applicable Laws.

6.7 LIENS, STOP NOTICES, CLAIMS

Except as otherwise provided herein, Construction Manager shall not permit to be created or to remain undischarged any lien, encumbrance, stop notice, claim or charge (collectively, "lien") which arises out of, or relates to, the provision by Construction Manager or its Subconsultants of any services or things under this Agreement upon the property of County, the construction fund of County, or the income from any such property or construction fund, or any part thereof, or to suffer any other matter or thing whereby the estate, rights and interest of County in the Project property or construction fund, or any part thereof, might be impaired. If any such lien is filed, then within thirty (30) Days after notice of filing thereof Construction Manager shall cause the same to be fully discharged of record, released and removed by any lawful means available, such as, but not limited to, payment, deposit, bond, order of a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise. If Construction Manager shall fail to cause such lien to be so discharged within the period aforesaid, then, in addition to any other right or remedy, County may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge the lien by any means, including, but not limited to, withholding amounts pursuant to Section 6.6, above, paying the amounts claimed to be due (including, without limitation, interest and attorney's fees claimed due), bonding or any other means that County determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, appropriate. Any Loss incurred by County as a result of Construction Manager's failure to comply with its obligations under this Section 6.7 shall be paid by Construction Manager to County on demand. Construction Manager shall be excused from its obligations under this Section 6.7 with respect to, but only to the extent of, amounts included in a lien that are unpaid to the claimant upon the lien as the direct result of County's breach of its payment obligations related to that lien to Construction Manager under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 RECORDS AND FILES

7.1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Construction Manager shall set up and exercise accounting and control systems for the proper financial management of its performance under this Agreement that are satisfactory to County, comply with the prevailing custom and practice for similar projects and afford County the ability to verify all charges and duplicate all calculations made by the Construction Manager and Subconsultants.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 39 of 55

7.2 RECORD KEEPING

- **7.2.1 Books and Records.** Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed books and records concerning the Project, including, without limitation, all documents (including, all hard copies and computer readable data, if it exists) that comprise or relate or refer to any of the following: (1) agreements, contracts, proposals, commitments, invoices, billings, statements, receipts, checks, certificates, releases, waivers, plans, specifications, notes, schedules, reports, studies, test data, approvals, permits, applications, diaries, logs, photographs, videos, shop drawings, samples, product data, job reports, change orders, field orders, directives, orders, bulletins, transmittals, requests for information, addenda, receipts, vouchers, correspondence, memoranda, messages, minutes, accounting records, job files, settlement agreements, and general ledgers; (2) any charge, cost or expense for which Construction Manager seeks reimbursement or payment by County as part of any Invoice for Payment, Claim or other demand; and (3) any other documents that County, in its reasonable judgment, deems relevant to the Project.
- **7.2.2 Maintenance and Retention.** Construction Manager shall at all times maintain such books and records in an organized and systematic form that allows for reasonably easy access and review and shall retain and preserve such books and records for a period of ten (10) years after the later of either final payment to Construction Manager under this Agreement or Final Completion of the Project, or for such longer period as may be required by Applicable Laws.

7.3 INSPECTION, PRODUCTION AND AUDITING

Construction Manager shall allow County and the auditor for the State of California (and their respective authorized representatives, auditors, and attorneys), not later than the third business day after written notice to Construction Manager, full access at Construction Manager's offices nearest to the Project to inspect, audit and copy any or all of Construction Manager's books and records as described in <u>Section 7.2</u>, above. Construction Manager shall, at Construction Manager's Own Expense, furnish facilities and staff assistance for, and cooperate fully with, such inspection or audit. Audits by the County and the auditor for the State of California may be conducted jointly or separately. Upon request, Construction Manager shall provide reproducible copies of such books and records for reproduction by or on behalf of the person conducting the audit. Except as otherwise provided in <u>Section 7.4</u>, below, such reproduction shall be at the expense of the entity conducting the audit. The audit rights provided for under this <u>Section 7.3</u> may be exercised at any time, and as often, before or after Final Completion, as County or the auditor for the State of California deems, in its sole and absolute discretion, necessary.

7.4 NONCOMPLIANCE BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

7.4.1 Cost of Audit. If an inspection or audit pursuant to Section 7.3, above, discloses that any amount (other than amounts permitted under the terms of this Agreement to be charged by Construction Manager as lump or fixed fee charges) cannot be verified due to a failure by Construction Manager or any Subconsultant to comply with this Article 7, has been improperly, inaccurately or excessively charged to County by Construction Manager or any Subconsultant or has been overpaid by County, and if the total of such amounts for any calendar year audited is five percent (5%) or more of the total amount (exclusive of amounts permitted under the terms of this Agreement to be charged by Construction Manager as lump or fixed fee charges) invoiced to County during such year, then Construction Manager shall pay, at Construction Manager's Own Expense, 100% of the actual cost to County and/or the State of California of such inspection or audit and any resulting report. If such inspection, audit or report is by County using in-house staff, then such actual cost to County shall be computed on the basis of two (2) times the direct payroll of the staff completing such inspection, audit or report.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 40 of 55

- 7.4.2 County Remedies. Without limitation to any of County's rights or remedies for recovery or withholding of any amounts from Construction Manager as may be permitted by Applicable Laws or elsewhere in this Section 7.4 or this Agreement, if an inspection or audit pursuant to Section 7.3, above, discloses that an amount has been overpaid by County, then County shall have the right to withhold such amount from any payments due to Construction Manager or if no payments are due Construction Manager shall immediately reimburse such amount to County. Amounts overpaid by County shall earn interest at the Interest Rate from the date of overpayment until the date reimbursed by Construction Manager to County.
- **7.4.3 Withholding.** In addition, and without limitation upon any of the other provisions for withholding of payment that are set forth in this <u>Section 7.4</u> or elsewhere in this Agreement, County shall have the right to withhold from any payment to Construction Manager an additional sum of up to ten percent (10%) of any amount claimed due by Construction Manager until (other than amounts permitted to be charged by Construction Manager as lump or fixed fee charges) Construction Manager has fully complied with any outstanding and unsatisfied request for performance by Construction Manager of any obligation under this <u>Article 7</u>. Upon Construction Manager's full compliance, such sum withheld under this <u>Paragraph 7.4.3</u> shall be released to Construction Manager.
- 7.4.4 Legal Proceedings. Construction Manager's compliance with the requirements of this Article 7 shall be a condition precedent to maintenance by Construction Manager of any legal action or arbitration against County relating to Construction Manager's or County's performance under or related to this Agreement.

7.5 SUBCONSULTANTS

Construction Manager shall ensure that the provisions of this Article 7 are included in all contracts entered into by Subconsultants, of every Tier, who perform services for the Project; provided, however, that Construction Manager shall have the right to limit the scope of a Construction Manager's obligation to allow for inspection or audit of books and records concerning actual costs of performance to costs that are related to: (1) costs of Subconsultant's administering its performance under its contract with Construction Manager for the Project; (2) services that are performed on an hourly or cost reimbursement basis; (2) Additional Services; (3) cost or expenses that are payable on a reimbursement basis; and (4) Claims.

ARTICLE 8 DEFAULT, TERMINATION, SUSPENSION

8.1 TERMINATION BY COUNTY FOR CAUSE

- **8.1.1 Default by Construction Manager.** Construction Manager shall cure any default in performance of its obligations under this Agreement within two (2) Days after receipt of written notice from County; provided, however, that if the breach cannot reasonably be cured within such time, then Construction Manager will commence to cure the breach within two (2) Days and will diligently and continuously prosecute such cure to completion within a reasonable time, which shall in no event be later than ten (10) Days after receipt of such written notice. Nothing herein shall be interpreted as obligating County to give an opportunity to cure in the case of an emergency or if the default is of the type that County determines, in good faith, cannot be cured, or cannot be fully cured, within the time periods set forth in this Section 8.1.
- **8.1.2** Remedies Upon Default. In the event of any default by Construction Manager, including, without limitation, a default that Construction Manager fails to cure within the time periods set forth in Paragraph 8.1.1, above, then County may by written notice to Construction Manager, effective

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 41 of 55

upon Construction Manager's receipt of such notice or upon such later date as may be set forth in such notice, pursue any remedies available under Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, the following:

- .1 Take-Over. County may, without terminating this Agreement, terminate or discontinue the Construction Manager's performance and delete, take over or arrange for performance by others of some or all of the Basic Services and Additional Services, reserving to itself all rights to recover all Losses, including, without limitation, any Losses related thereto.
- .2 Termination. County may terminate this Agreement upon written notice, reserving to itself all rights to recover all Losses, including, without limitation, all Losses related thereto.
- **8.1.3** Rights Cumulative. All of County's rights and remedies under this Agreement are cumulative and shall be in addition to those rights and remedies available under Applicable Laws. No termination or other action taken by County after exercise of its rights under this <u>Article 8</u> shall prejudice any other rights or remedies of County provided by Applicable Laws or by this Agreement.
- **8.1.4 Disability, Insolvency.** In addition to the other rights granted to County under this Agreement or Applicable Laws, County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for default by giving seven (7) days written notice to Construction Manager, if: (1) Construction Manager is an individual and should die or be adjudged incompetent; (2) Construction Manager attempts to assign this Agreement; (3) a petition of bankruptcy is filed by Construction Manager or Construction Manager is adjudicated or admitted to be a bankrupt in connection with an involuntary petition of bankruptcy filed against Construction Manager; (4) Construction Manager should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (5) a receiver should be appointed on account of Construction Manager's insolvency.
- **8.1.5** Construction Manager Obligations. Upon Construction Manager's receipt from County of notice of County's exercise of any of its rights under <u>Paragraph 8.1.2</u>, above, Construction Manager shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, do the following:
- .1 immediately discontinue the performance of Basic Services and Additional Services to the extent specified in the notice;
- .2 provide to County a description, in writing, no later than seven (7) Work Days after receipt of the notice of termination, of all contracts with Subconsultants that are outstanding, including, without limitation, with respect to each such contract separately, the terms of the original price, payments made to date, the balance owing, the status of the services performed and any outstanding withholding of funds or default, and a copy of the contract and any written changes, amendments or modifications thereto, together with such other information as County may determine necessary in order to decide whether it is in County's best interests to accept assignment of, or request Construction Manager to terminate, the contract; and
- .3 thereafter only perform such Basic Services and Additional Services as may be necessary to complete the portion of the Basic Services and Additional Services not terminated, taken over or discontinued.
- **8.1.6** Completion by County. In the event County exercises its rights under <u>Paragraph 8.1.2</u>, above, County shall have the further right, without releasing Construction Manager from liability for failure to fulfill this Agreement, to proceed to complete the Basic Services and Additional Services by any means that County determines is expedient and withhold all or a portion of the monies, if any, owing to Construction Manager until County has completed such Basic Services and Additional Services.

8.1.7 Payment to Construction Manager.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260 000146

Page 42 of 55

- Services that are terminated, discontinued or taken over by County pursuant to an exercise by County of its rights under Paragraph 8.1.2, above, and without limitation to County's other rights under this Agreement or Applicable Laws: (1) if the Losses to County, whether incurred or threatened, arising out of any default by Construction Manager (whether or not such default was the subject of the County's notice of default) or County's exercise of its remedies for default by Construction Manager, exceed the amount of Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation calculated pursuant to Sections 6.1 and 6.2, above, that was earned by Construction Manager for such Basic Services and Additional Services performed up to, and not beyond, the effective date of such termination, discontinuance or take over by County, then Construction Manager shall be liable to County for the difference and shall promptly remit same to County; or (2) if the sum of such Losses is less than the amount of such Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation, then County shall pay the difference to Construction Manager within forty-five (45) Days after receipt by County of an Invoice for Payment prepared in accordance with this Section 8.1 and Sections 6.1 through 6.3, above, requesting payment of such Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation.
- take over by County pursuant to an exercise by County of its rights under Paragraph 8.1.2, above, and without limitation to County's other rights under this Agreement or Applicable Laws: (1) with respect to that portion of Basic Services or Additional Services that is not terminated, discontinued or taken over by County, County shall make a Good Faith Determination of an adjustment in the Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation under this Agreement to reflect the reduction in the scope of Basic Services and Additional Services remaining to be performed by Construction Manager; and (2) Construction Manager shall continue performance of such Basic Services and Additional Services and shall be paid by County therefor in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
- .3 Conversion. In the event a termination, discontinuance or take over by County for cause pursuant to this <u>Section 8.1</u> is determined to be wrongful, Construction Manager's right to payment or recovery shall be governed by the provisions of <u>Subparagraphs 8.2.2.1 through 8.2.2.3</u>, below, in lieu of any other rights, remedies or recovery provided for by Applicable Laws.

8.2 TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE

8.2.1 Termination for Convenience. Upon at least three (3) Days' written notice to Construction Manager prior to the effective date of an exercise of a right under this <u>Section 8.2</u>, County shall have the right, in its sole and absolute discretion and without cause and for its convenience, to terminate, discontinue or take over all or any portion of this Agreement or Construction Manager's performance under this Agreement. Upon receiving such notice, Construction Manager shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, take the actions required by <u>Paragraph 8.1.5</u>, above.

8.2.2 Payment to Construction Manager.

.1 Terminated Services. With respect to any or all Basic Services and Additional Services that are terminated, discontinued or taken over by County pursuant to Paragraph 8.2.1, above, Construction Manager shall, within seven (7) Days after exercise by County of a right to terminate, discontinue or take over pursuant to Paragraph 8.2.1, above, submit to County an Invoice for Payment prepared in accordance with Sections 6.1 through 6.3, above, for the amount of Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation that was earned by Construction Manager for such Basic Services and Additional Services performed up to, and not beyond, the effective date of such termination, discontinuance or take over by County. Without limitation to County's rights under Sections 6.5 and 6.6, above, within forty-five (45) Days after receipt by County of an Invoice for Payment prepared in accordance with this Section 8.2, County shall pay to Construction Manager the amount, if any, owing

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

to Construction Manager under this Paragraph 8.2.2.

- Continuing Services. In the event of a partial termination, discontinuance or take over by County pursuant to an exercise by County of its rights under Paragraph 8.2.1, above, and without limitation to County's other rights under this Agreement or Applicable Laws: (1) with respect to that portion of Basic Services or Additional Services that is not terminated, discontinued or taken over by County, County shall make a Good Faith Determination of an adjustment in the Basic Services Compensation and Additional Services Compensation under this Agreement to reflect the reduction in the scope of Basic Services and Additional Services remaining to be performed by Construction Manager; and (2) Construction Manager shall continue performance of such Basic Services and Additional Services and shall be paid by County therefor in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
- Exclusive Remedy. Construction Manager agrees to accept the payments provided for under this Paragraph 8.2.2 as its sole and exclusive right and remedy in lieu of all other rights and claims that Construction Manager may have under this Agreement or Applicable Laws for recovery of Losses caused or claimed to be caused by County's termination, discontinuance or take over of this Agreement, including, without limitation, Losses associated with lost profits, lost opportunity, and other consequential damages.

SUSPENSION BY COUNTY 8.3

County shall have the right to order, in writing, a suspension of performance of all services by Construction Manager without cause and for County's convenience. If services are entirely suspended by written order of County for a continuous period of more than sixty (60) consecutive Days, and such suspension is not due to a breach of this Agreement by Construction Manager or the negligence, willful misconduct or violation of an Applicable Law by Construction Manager or a Subconsultant, and if County thereafter requests in writing that Construction Manager resume performance following such suspension, then Construction Manager shall be entitled to payment as additional compensation of any unavoidable direct, out-of-pocket costs payable by Construction Manager or Subconsultants to third-party vendors of supplies as a result of such suspension. No other adjustment to Construction Manager's compensation and no other recovery by Construction Manager or any Subconsultant of Losses associated with such suspension shall be permitted.

TERMINATION BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 8.4

- Construction Manager's Remedies. If County fails within the applicable time period for payment provided for in Article 6, above, to make payment of sums that are not in good faith disputed by County and fails to cure such failure within thirty (30) Days after receipt of written notice of nonpayment from Construction Manager, then, upon an additional ten (10) Days' written notice to County of intent to terminate. Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement. The foregoing constitutes the Construction Manager's sole and exclusive right to terminate this Agreement for any reason, including, but not limited to, any breach by County.
- 8.4.2 Payment to Construction Manager. In the event of a termination by Construction Manager pursuant to this Section 8.4, Construction Manager's right to further payment or recovery shall be governed by the provisions of Subparagraphs 8.2.2.1 through 8.2.2.3, above, in lieu of any other rights, remedies or recovery provided for by Applicable Laws.

Edition: May 2014

ARTICLE 9 INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 INDEMNIFICATION BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

- **9.1.1** Indemnification Obligation. To the fullest extent permitted by Applicable Laws, Construction Manager agrees to defend (through legal counsel reasonably acceptable to County), indemnify, and hold harmless County, Board of Supervisors, and each of their respective members, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers ("Indemnitee(s)"), and each of them, from any and all Losses that arise out of or relate to any act or omission constituting negligence, breach of contract or willful misconduct on the part of Construction Manager or its Subconsultants, or their respective employees, agents, representatives, or independent contractors. The Indemnitees shall be entitled to the defense and indemnification provided for hereunder, regardless of whether the Loss is in part caused or contributed to by the acts or omissions of an Indemnitee or any other person or entity; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be construed as obligating Construction Manager to indemnify and hold harmless any Indemnitee to the extent not required under the provisions of Paragraph 9.1.2, below.
- **9.1.2** Limitations on Indemnity Obligation. Without affecting the rights of County under any other provision of this Agreement, Construction Manager shall not be required to indemnify or hold harmless an Indemnitee for a Loss due to that Indemnitee's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct; provided, however, that such negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct has been determined by agreement of Construction Manager and Indemnitee or has been adjudged by the findings of a court of competent jurisdiction.
- **9.1.3 Subconsultant Indemnity Agreements.** Construction Manager agrees to obtain or cause to be obtained executed defense and indemnity agreements with provisions identical to those set forth in this <u>Section 9.1</u> from each and every Subconsultant, of every Tier.
- **9.1.4 No Limitation by Insurance.** Construction Manager's indemnification obligations under this Agreement shall not be limited by the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable under any policy of insurance, workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.
- **9.1.5** Enforcement. The Indemnitees shall be entitled to recover their attorneys' fees, costs and expert and consultant costs in pursuing or enforcing their right to defense and/or indemnification under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10 INSURANCE

10.1 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S INSURANCE

10.1.1 Required Coverages. Prior to the commencement of any services, Construction Manager shall, at its own expense, purchase from, and maintain with, a company or companies lawfully authorized and approved by Governmental Authorities to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located and having an A.M. Best Company rating of no less than A:80, the insurance coverages set forth in this Section 10.1, which coverages shall remain in force throughout Construction Manager's performance of this Agreement and for such longer periods as may be required by this Agreement, unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by the County's Risk Manager. If the County's Risk Manager waives a requirement for a particular insurer, such waiver is only valid for that specific insurer and only for one policy term after which full compliance with this Section 10.1 shall be required. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Section 10.1, such policies and coverages shall, without limitation, protect

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Construction Manager from claims which may arise out of, or result from, the Construction Manager's performance of this Agreement, whether such performance be by itself or by any Subconsultant, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and shall comply with the following requirements:

Commercial General Liability insurance on a form at least as broad as Insurance Services Office ("ISO") Commercial General Liability Coverage "occurrence" form CG20101185 (Form B) or ISO Comprehensive General Liability "occurrence" form acceptable to the County-with the Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability Endorsement GLO404 (with no Property Damage Liability exclusions pertaining to loss by explosion, collapse or underground damage), including, without limitation, coverage for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death of any person, injury to, or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom, blanket contractual liability coverage (including, without limitation, coverage for the Construction Manager's indemnification obligations set forth in Article 9, above), and including an endorsement amending the aggregate limits to apply on a per location or per project basis, with limits of liability coverages of no less than the following amounts:

\$2,000,000	General Aggregate (Other Than Products-Completed Operations)
\$2,000,000	Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit for a period of five (5) years
š	following Final Completion and Acceptance of the Project
\$1,000,000	Personal and Advertising Injury Limit
\$1,000,000	Per Occurrence Limit

- Professional Liability insurance, issued on a "claims made" basis, with limits of liability coverage in the amounts of no less than the following: (1) if the Fixed Limit is \$5 million or less: \$1,000,000 per claim and \$1,000,000 in the annual aggregate; (2) if the Fixed Limit is over \$5 million and \$10 million or less: \$2,000,000 per claim and \$2,000,000 in the annual aggregate; and (3) if the Fixed Limit is over \$10 million: \$3,000,000 per claim and \$3,000,000 in the annual aggregate. Such policy shall provide coverage (including, without limitation, all costs and expenses resulting from the investigation and defense of any claim) for damages from claims for bodily injury or property damage to County or to any third party (including, without limitation, loss of use of damaged and non-damaged property) due to any breach of duty in the performance of professional services. Professional liability coverage shall have an inception date or a retroactive date coinciding with, or prior to, the date of execution of this Agreement or the date of first performance of any services under this Agreement, whichever date is earlier, and coverage shall continue uninterrupted until five (5) years after Final Completion and Acceptance of the entire Project. Coverage for such post-completion period may be provided by renewal or replacement of the policy for each of five (5) years or by a five-year extended reporting period endorsement that reinstates the aggregate limit for the extended reporting period. Renewal or replacement policies shall not allow for any advancement of the retroactive date. Any deductible or self-insured retention under the foregoing professional liability policy shall not, except with the approval of County granted or withheld in the County's sole and absolute discretion, exceed \$100,000.
- .3 Motor Vehicle Liability insurance issued on an ISO Business Auto Coverage form, including Symbol 1, acceptable to the County with limits of liability coverage of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage for all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles.
- .4 Workers' Compensation insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. The Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident and shall provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS I

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 46 of 55

- **10.1.2 Notice of Cancellation.** Each policy of insurance shall: (1) be in a form, and with insurers, satisfactory to County; (2) incorporate such endorsements as County may reasonably request; and (3) provide for thirty (30) Days' advance notice to County of non-renewal, material change, cancellation, or potential exhaustion of aggregate limits.
- 10.1.3 Additional Insureds. Construction Manager shall have the following named as Additional Insureds by means of endorsement to its General Liability, Excess (or Umbrella) Liability, and Motor Vehicle Liability policies: (1) the Indemnitees; (2) the persons or entities listed in the Additional Insureds List Exhibit "L" attached hereto; and (3) all subsidiary companies, corporations, entities, joint ventures, LLC's, or partnerships that are owned, managed or controlled by the entities listed in Clauses (1) or (2) of this Paragraph 10.1.3. Such coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds. The "Insured" clause covering Additional Insureds shall: (a) be no more restrictive than the coverage afforded by ISO 2010 11/85 edition; (b) state that the coverage provided to the Additional Insureds is primary and non-contributing with any other insurance available to the Additional Insureds; and (c) require a waiver of subrogation in favor of all Additional Insureds.
- **10.1.4 Self Insured Retentions.** Policies of insurance for the coverages described in Paragraph 10.1.1, above, with the sole exception of professional liability insurance, shall not have self insured retentions which exceed \$10,000 per occurrence. All deductibles and self insured retentions on insurance required to be obtained by Construction Manager under this Agreement shall be borne by Construction Manager at its sole expense and without reimbursement by County.
- 10.1.5 Certificates of Insurance. Prior to the commencement of any services under this Agreement, and at any time thereafter upon County's request during the term of this Agreement, Construction Manager shall provide County with written evidence of the required coverages in the form of certificates of insurance with the applicable endorsements (including, without limitation, an endorsement confirming coverage for the Additional Insureds) attached or copies of the policies. County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time, including endorsements providing the coverages required by this Agreement.
- **10.1.6 Waiver of Subrogation.** For Commercial General Liability and Workers' Compensation insurance, the insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the Additional Insureds for Losses arising from activities and operations of an insured in the performance of services under this Agreement.
- 10.1.7 Lapse in Coverage. If Construction Manager or any Subconsultant, for any reason, fails to maintain any insurance coverage which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement. County, at its sole option, may thereupon terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Construction Manager resulting from said breach. Alternatively, County may purchase such coverage (but has no obligation to do so) and, without further notice to Construction Manager, may deduct from sums due to Construction Manager any premium costs advanced by County for such insurance.
- **10.1.8 Subconsultants.** Except as otherwise stated in <u>Subconsultant Insurance Requirements</u> <u>- Exhibit "M"</u> attached hereto, Subconsultants shall be required to maintain insurance on the same terms and with the same coverages as required of Construction Manager under this Agreement.

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

In the event of a conflict between the provisions of any of the above-listed exhibits and the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the latter shall control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties her day of, 20	reto have made and executed this Agreement, on the
"COUNTY"	"CONSTRUCTION MANAGER"
By: Self Stone	(sign on line above)
JEFF STONE, Chairman Board of Supervisors	By: Russell A. Fox
	Title: President & CEO
	The following information must be provided concerning the Construction Manager: State whether Construction Manager is corporation, individual, partnership, joint venture or other:
ATTEST:	Corporation
KECIA HARPER-IHEM Clerk of the Board	If "other", enter legal form of business:
By: Deputy	Enter address: 2910 East Inland Empire Boulevard, Suite 100, Ontario, CA 91764
(SEAL)	Telephone: (909) 724-4119 Facsimile: (909) 466-0232 E-mail: DMills@kitchell.com
	Employer State Tax ID #: 86-0358697
und .	License #:_ N/A
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	If Construction Manager is a corporation, state:
PAMELA J. WALLS	Name of President: Russell A. Fox
County Counsel	Name of Secretary: David E. Koval
Marsha L. Victor Principal Deputy County Counsel	State of Incorporation: California

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260 00146 Page 55 of 55

EXHIBIT "A"

DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT PLAN

This project will be a design-bid-build public works project and the firm must have the ability to ensure that all Riverside County EDA, City of Riverside, Riverside County Environmental Health, and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards are adhered to during construction; and maintain the ability to coordinate between the County, City, EDA, design team, contractors, and residents.

The Work of Project is defined by the Contract Documents and consists of the demolition of an existing building and the construction of a new secure juvenile treatment facility located in the county of Riverside on approximately 6 acres of county-owned land. The expansion will create approximately 61,000 square feet of new housing, treatment, and program space for 106 juveniles.

The new one-story building with clerestory will provide 4 medium security housing units; each housing unit contains a total of 20 single-occupancy cells for a total of 80 beds. The new facility will also have one 6 bed assessment unit and one 20 bed transitional housing unit. All housing units contain a dayroom and adjacent program space including classrooms. 3 new recreation yards will also be constructed. The building will be constructed primarily using steel and concrete block for long-term durability.

The project will include a new medical area to provide space for medical, dental, and mental health treatment. In addition, the project will include, but is not limited to, administrative space, warehouse space, a central plant, laundry, and program space for rehabilitative, self-help, religion, and education programs. Space for visitor waiting, and conference rooms will also be provided.

The project will also include, but is not limited to, electrical; plumbing; mechanical; heating, ventilation, and air conditioning; security; and fire protection systems; as well as all necessary appliances. In addition, there will be secure fencing surrounding the facility to provide grounds security. Two new parking lots for visitors and staff will also be provided

This project is being financed with state grant funds and the project's engineer's estimate is approximately \$25 million for the 61,000 square foot facility with a construction duration of 16 months. The project site is located at 10000 County Farm Road on an approximate 6 acre carve out of parcel APN: 145-120-002 in Riverside, CA.

Edition: May, 2014

INITIALS IS

Kitchell CEM Construction Management and County of Riverside – Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

EXHIBIT "B"

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE STANDARD FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY AND CONTRACTOR

Set Attached

Edition: May, 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM Construction Management and County of Riverside – Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

ARTICLE 11 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

11.1 **RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES**

Disputes between County and Construction Manager shall be resolved by an attempt at non-binding mediation. If non-binding mediation is not successful, then disputes shall be resolved by way of an action filed in the Superior Court of the State of California, in and for the County of Riverside.

11.2 **GOOD FAITH DETERMINATIONS**

Wherever in this Agreement it is provided that the County may or shall make a determination or decision in the exercise of good faith (including, without limitation, provisions in this Agreement calling for a Good Faith Determination), any such determination or decision that the person exercising such right on behalf of County believes in good faith to be a proper exercise of County's rights and to have a reasonable basis in fact, whether or not such determination is in fact proper, reasonable or correct or adjudged to be so, shall be complied with by Construction Manager without Delay to Construction Manager's performance under this Agreement. However, unless this Agreement expressly provides otherwise, neither such good faith determination or decision nor Construction Manager's compliance therewith shall be interpreted as precluding the Construction Manager from exercising its rights to seek adjudication of its rights in the manner permitted by this Agreement or Applicable Laws.

11.3 **ATTORNEY'S FEES**

If any legal action is brought in connection with, or related to, the interpretation, performance, or enforcement of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, an action to rescind this Agreement, the prevailing party therein shall be entitled to recover from the other party the prevailing party's actual costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees at trial, and on appeal, including, without limitation, a sum for time expended by in-house attorneys and paralegals. The determination of the "prevailing party" shall be based upon the party who prevails upon the matters actually litigated and shall not be determined solely based on which party receives a net monetary recovery.

ARTICLE 12 ROYALTIES, PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND TRADE SECRETS

12.1 **ROYALTIES**

Construction Manager shall pay all royalties and license fees in connection with its performance of this Agreement. Compensation for such royalties and fees is included in Construction Manager's Basic Services Compensation and shall not be separately reimbursed.

12.2 **INFRINGEMENT**

Construction Manager shall not infringe any United States patent, copyright, trade secret, or other proprietary right for or in any work of authorship, material, product, or any other form of intellectual property, or any part thereof (including, without limitation, software, hardware, service, design or equipment), used or furnished in connection with this Agreement.

12.3 NOTICE BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

In those instances where Construction Manager has reason to believe that a particular design, process, or product of one or more manufacturers that Construction Manager is directed to use by County would

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 48 of 55

infringe upon any of the rights listed in <u>Section 12.2</u>, above, Construction Manager shall immediately notify County of its belief and the reasons therefor in writing.

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEOUS

13.1 GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall, without regard to the law of conflicts of laws that may otherwise call for application of the laws of a different jurisdiction, be governed by the laws of the State of California.

13.2 HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

13.2.1 Introduction by Construction Manager. Construction Manager and its Subconsultants shall not cause or knowingly permit, or include in its Design Documents any provision allowing for, any Hazardous Substances to be deposited, stored, disposed, placed, generated, manufactured, buried, refined, transported, treated, discharged, handled, or located on the Site or in Existing Improvements, except as may be specifically authorized in writing by County; provided, however, that Hazardous Substances may be specified for temporary use or storage where reasonably required for, and in quantities appropriate to, the performance of the Work and where the use and storage of such Hazardous Substances is permitted by, and specified to be performed in conformity with, Applicable Laws. Should Construction Manager or a Subconsultant violate the foregoing obligation, Construction Manager shall at its own expense and without limitation to County's other rights or remedies for default immediately: (1) inform County in writing of such event; (2) advise County with respect to any release reporting or notification requirement that may apply as a result of such event; (3) assist County in complying with any such reporting or notification requirement as determined by County; and (4) perform any investigation, remediation, removal, or other response that is necessary or desirable in order to abate or clean up the condition resulting from such event, to the full satisfaction of County and any applicable Governmental Authority. Such Hazardous Substances shall be removed and properly disposed of as soon as they can be accepted at an appropriate disposal facility, and in no event later than sixty (60) Days after such waste is generated, unless a longer time is approved by County.

13.2.2 Existing Hazardous Substances. Construction Manager recognizes that Hazardous Substances may exist at or beneath the ground at the Site and that certain waste materials, such as, but not limited to, drill cuttings and drilling fluids, must be handled as if contaminated until a determination as to whether they are Hazardous Substances is made. If the Construction Manager's Basic Services do not include the investigation or assessment of environmental conditions or Hazardous Substances, then in the event Construction Manager or its Subconsultants encounter materials existing or otherwise present at the Site that are reasonably believed to be Hazardous Substances that have not been rendered harmless, Construction Manager and/or Subconsultant shall report the condition to County in writing and County shall be solely responsible for arranging for and paying the costs lawfully to transport, store, treat, recycle, dispose of, or otherwise handle the Hazardous Substances present at the Site. If the Construction Manager's Basic Services include the investigation or assessment of environmental conditions or Hazardous Substances, then Construction Manager shall: (1) promptly make a determination whether the materials encountered are Hazardous Substances; (2) promptly advise County of the options and costs for handling, storing and disposing of such materials (whether they are Hazardous Substances or not); (3) appropriately handle, contain and label such materials as are Hazardous Substances in accordance with Applicable Laws; (4) promptly inform County that such handling, containerization and labeling have been performed; and (5) leave the containers on Site in an appropriate designated location for lawful storage and disposal by County. County shall be solely responsible for arranging for and paying the costs to lawfully transport, store, treat, recycle, dispose of or otherwise handle Hazardous Substances generated by Construction Manager's proper performance of its

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146

Page 49 of 55

professional services. Should the proper and lawful transportation and disposal of any such materials be required, Construction Manager's responsibilities shall be limited to preparing manifests or related documents for execution by County. In this regard, County shall sign all manifests and bills of lading, and approve similar documents, including subcontracts for disposal activities, that identify County as the generator/owner of any hazardous or contaminated material that is removed from the Site. County shall be solely responsible for notifying all appropriate federal, state, local or other governmental agencies of the existence of any Hazardous Substances on or about the Site or discovered during performance of this Agreement; no_such_notice_shall_be_given_by_Construction_Manager_without_prior_discussion_and approval by County.

13.3 NO WAIVER

A waiver, by either party to this Agreement, of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition contained herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition contained herein, whether of the same or a different character. County's approval, acceptance or use of, or payment for, any or part of Construction Manager's services shall not in any way alter Construction Manager's obligations, or waive any of County's rights, under this Agreement.

13.4 NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS

Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to make any person or entity who is not a signatory to this Agreement a third-party beneficiary of any right or obligation created by this Agreement or by operation of Applicable Laws.

13.5 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between County and Construction Manager for the furnishing of services to the Project, and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, and may be amended only by written instrument signed by both County and Construction Manager.

13.6 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Agreement shall be binding upon County and Construction Manager and their respective successors and assigns. Neither the performance of this Agreement nor any part thereof, nor any monies due or to become due hereunder, nor any claim hereunder, may be assigned by Construction Manager without the prior written consent and approval of County, which may be granted or withheld in County's sole and absolute discretion. County's right and interest in, and any claim under, this Agreement may be assigned by County upon written notice to Construction Manager. County shall have no liability or responsibility to Construction Manager for payment for any services performed or cost incurred after the date of such assignment and notice thereof by County to Construction Manager.

13.7 CONFIDENTIALITY

The Construction Manager acknowledges that, in the course of the Construction Manager's employment and performance under this Agreement, the County may make available to the Construction Manager, and the Construction Manager may utilize and may participate in the creation of, proprietary and confidential information, including, without limitation, plans, specifications, projected and actual budgets, construction and development schedules, operating procedures, pricing data, transaction terms, Siterelated information, studies (including survey, soil, environmental, structural, topographic and seismic) and other Project information (hereinafter collectively, "Proprietary Information"). The Construction Manager agrees on behalf of itself and its employees, officers, board members and its Supconsultants

Edition: May 2014

INITIALS

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 50 of 55

that all Proprietary Information shall be kept strictly confidential, with such confidentiality requirement to include without limitation the following covenants and obligations: (1) the Proprietary Information shall not be disclosed, either verbally or in writing, to a person or entity that is not related to the Project; (2) the Proprietary Information shall not be disclosed to any person or entity related to the Project other than County except to the extent that such disclosure is essential to the Construction Manager's performance of this Agreement or to the performance by a Project-related person or entity of its Project-related work, services or obligations; (3) Construction Manager shall not publicly reveal any Proprietary Information except to the extent that such disclosure is essential to the Construction Manager's performance of this Agreement or to the performance by a Project-related person or entity of its Project-related work, services or obligations; (4) subject to the provisions of Paragraph 1.7.7, above, Construction Manager shall return all Proprietary Information (including all copies made thereof) to County upon request and in any event within sixty (60) Days after termination or full performance of this Agreement; (5) Construction Manager shall not be deemed the author of any of the Proprietary Information and retains no Intellectual Property Rights in the Proprietary Information; (6) to the extent the Construction Manager provides any Proprietary Information to a Subconsultant, the Construction Manager shall be responsible for obtaining and enforcing a written agreement from each such Subconsultant pursuant to which such Subconsultant agrees to be bound by the terms of this Section 13.7; and (7) in the event that the Construction Manager or any Subconsultant is required, or becomes legally compelled, to disclose any of the Proprietary Information or take any other action prohibited hereby, the Construction Manager will provide County with prompt written notice so that the County may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy and/or waive in writing compliance with the provisions of this Section 13.7. County shall have full recourse under Applicable Laws in enforcing this Section 13.7, including without limitation the right to seek specific performance and injunctive relief and recover all damages resulting from a violation hereof. Construction Manager shall instruct all of its employees of the foregoing confidentiality obligation.

13.8 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Construction Manager is and shall at all times remain, as to County, a wholly independent contractor. Neither County nor any of its agents shall have control over the conduct of Construction Manager or any of Construction Manager's officers, agents or employees, except as herein set forth. Construction Manager shall not, at any time, or in any manner, represent that it or any of its agents or employees are in any manner agents or employees of County.

13.9 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S REPRESENTATIONS

Without limitation to any other covenants, agreements, or representations contained in this Agreement, Construction Manager warrants and represents that: (1) it is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they mature and possessed of sufficient working capital to complete the services and perform the obligations required by this Agreement; (2) it is authorized to do business in the State of California; and (3) Construction Manager holds such licenses, if any, that Construction Manager is required to hold in order to enter into this Agreement for performance of the services to be provided by Construction Manager pursuant to this Agreement.

13.10 SURVIVAL

The provisions of this Agreement which, by their nature, involve a right that is to be or may be exercised by or afforded to a party, or an act or obligation that is to be assumed or performed by a party, after the point in time that full performance or termination of this Agreement has occurred, including, without limitation, all provisions relating to warranties, defense and indemnification, confidentiality, audit, insurance, dispute resolution procedures, and ownership of documents, shall survive and remain in full force and effect after either full performance or termination of this Agreement.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 51 of 55

13.11 SEVERABILITY

In the event a provision of this Agreement, or portion thereof, is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions or portions shall not be affected, and such remaining provisions or portions shall be enforceable to the fullest extent allowable by Applicable Laws in order to give maximum legal force and effect to those provisions or portions that are not invalid, illegal or unenforceable.

13.12 INTERPRETATION

Construction Manager and County acknowledge that the terms of this Agreement have been mutually negotiated and, accordingly, shall not be interpreted against either County or Construction Manager on the basis that either party was solely responsible for or in control of the drafting of this Agreement.

13.13 ADVERTISING

Construction Manager may not use County's name or refer to County or the Project, directly or indirectly, in any promotional materials, advertisement, news release or release to any professional or trade publication without County's prior written approval, which may be granted or withheld in its sole and absolute discretion.

13.14 ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS

In the event of any conflict between a document contained in an electronic file and the hard copy of such document maintained in the files of County or Construction Manager, the hard copy shall control.

13.15 COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed by wet signature in separate counterparts, any one of which need not contain signatures of more than one party, but all of which taken together shall constitute the same agreement.

13.16 TITLES FOR CONVENIENCE

The table of contents and the headings of articles and paragraphs are for convenience only and shall not modify rights and obligations created by this Agreement.

13.17 NONDISCRIMINATION

Construction Manager shall comply, and cause its Subconsultants, of every Tier, to comply, with all requirements of Applicable Laws pertaining to equal opportunity employment and nondiscrimination, including, without limitation, those requirements prohibiting discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons on account of age, ancestry or national origin, color, creed, disability, gender, marital status, race, religion or sexual orientation, nor shall Construction Manager permit any such practice prohibited by such requirements to take place in connection with the selection, location or number of consultants or vendors employed. Construction Manager shall include the provisions of this Section 13.18 in all contracts entered into with Subconsultants for performance of services provided for under this Agreement.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM0826000146
Page 52 of 55

13.18 SERVICES PERFORMED BY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OR AFFILIATES

The Construction Manager shall not enter into any subcontract, contract, agreement, purchase order, or other arrangement ("Arrangement") for the furnishing of any portion of the services provided for in this Agreement with any party or entity if such party or entity is an Affiliated Entity (as defined below), unless such Arrangement has been approved in writing by the County after full disclosure in writing by the Construction Manager to the County of such affiliation or relationship and all details relating to the proposed Arrangement. The term "Affiliated Entity" as used in this Section means any entity related to or affiliated with the Construction Manager or with respect to which the Construction Manager has direct or indirect ownership or control, including, without limitation: (1) any entity owned in whole or part by the Construction Manager; (2) if the Construction Manager is a corporation, any holder of more than 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Construction Manager; (3) if Construction Manager is not a corporation, any holder of an ownership interest in Construction Manager; or (4) any entity in which any officer, director, employee, partner, or shareholder (or member of the family of any of the foregoing persons) of the Construction Manager, or any entity owned by the Construction Manager, has a direct or indirect interest which interest includes, but is not limited to, that of a partner, employee, agent, or shareholder.

13.19 REBATES, KICKBACKS

Construction Manager represents and warrants that it has neither paid or agreed to pay, nor will it pay, any sums or any other consideration to any member of the Board of Supervisors or any other director, officer, employee, agent or other representative of County in connection with this Agreement or any services hereunder, nor has any such payment or agreement for payment been requested or solicited by any such member, director, officer, employee, agent or representative. Construction Manager hereby acknowledges that it understands that this representation and warrant constitute a material inducement upon which County is relying in entering into and performing this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 NOTICES

14.1 **DELIVERY AND ADDRESSES**

- 14.1.1 Delivery. Any notice that is required by this Agreement shall be given as provided herein below. Electronic (i.e., e-mail) notice shall not be sufficient. All notices, demands, or requests to be given under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be conclusively deemed received as follows:
 - on the date delivered if delivered personally; .1
- on the third (3rd) business day after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as hereinafter provided;
- on the date received if sent by facsimile transmission or overnight mail (such as, but not limited to, UPS, Fed Ex, or other similarly reputable private of public express carriers); and
 - on the date it is accepted or rejected if sent by certified mail.

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Horn Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146 Page 53 of 55

14.1.2 Addresses. All notices, demands or requests required by this Agreement shall be addressed to the parties as follows:

To County at:

County of Riverside Economic Development Agency 3403 Tenth Street, Suite 300 Riverside, CA 92501

Attention: Robert Field, Assistant CEO/EDA

With additional copies to:

County of Riverside Economic Development Agency 3403 Tenth Street, Suite 400 Riverside, CA 92501 Attention: Charles Waltman, Deputy Director of Design and Construction

To Construction Manager at:

Kitchell CEM 2910 East Inland Empire Boulevard, Suite 100 Ontario, CA 91764 Attention: Daniel G. Mills, Project Executive

14.2 CHANGE OF ADDRESS

In event of any change of address, the moving party is obligated to notify the other party of the change of address in writing. Each party may amend, supplement and update the notice list to add, delete or replace any listed individuals by notice to the other party in writing.

ARTICLE 15 EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated in this Agreement by this reference as part of the terms of this Agreement:

Exhibit "A"	· ·	Description of Development Plan
Exhibit "B"	**	General Conditions of the Standard Form Construction Contract
		Between County and Contractor
Exhibit "C"	-	Hourly Rates Schedule
Exhibit "D"		Initial Program
Exhibit "E"	:=:	Key Personnel List
Exhibit "F"	=	Master Project Schedule
Exhibit "G"	=	Property Description
Exhibit "H"	-	Reimbursable Expenses Schedule
Exhibit "I"		Invoice for Payment Form
Exhibit "J"	-	Payment Schedule
Exhibit "K"	-	Release Forms
Exhibit "L"	¥	Additional Insureds List
Exhibit "M"		Subconsultant Insurance Requirements
Exhibit "N"	-	Construction Manager's Staffing Fee Schedule
Exhibit "O"	•	Construction Manager's Subconsultant Services
		/// TC

Edition: May 2014

Kitchell CEM and County of Riverside - Van Hom Youth Treatment and Education Center FM08260000146
Page 54 of 55

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE STANDARD FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY AND CONTRACTOR

(LONG FORM)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 G	ENERAL P	ROVISIONS	.1
1.1	DEFINIT	IONS	.1
	1.1.1 1.1.2 1.1.3 1.1.4 1.1.5 1.1.6	Acceptance. Act of God. Addendum. Admitted Surety. Allowable Costs. Allowable Markups.	.1 .1 .1
	1.1.7	Alternate	
	1.1.8 1.1.9	Applicable Laws. Application for Payment.	. 1
	1.1.10	Architect	. 1
	1.1.11	Assistant CEO/EDA.	
	1.1.12 1.1.13	AwardBase Bid	
	1.1.14	Bid.	
	1.1.15	Bid Amount.	. 2
	1.1.16 1.1.17	Bid Bond.	
	1.1.17	Bid Closing Deadline	
	1.1.19	Bid Security	
	1.1.20	Bid Submittal.	. 2
	1.1.21 1.1.22	Bidder Bidding Documents	
	1.1.22	Board of Supervisors.	
	1.1.24	Change.	. 3
	1.1.25	Change Order.	
	1.1.26 1.1.27	Change Order RequestClaim	
	1.1.28	Close-Out Documents.	
	1.1.29	Compensable Change.	. 3
	1.1.30	Compensable Delay.	
	1.1.31 1.1.32	Construction Change Directive.	
	1.1.32	Construction Manager	
	1.1.34	Construction Schedule	
	1.1.35	Contract Adjustment.	
	1.1.36	Contract Documents	5

1.1.37	Contract Price.	5
1.1.38	Contract Time.	5
1.1.39	Contractor. 5	5
1.1.40	Contractor Amount	5
1.1.41	Contractor's Own Expense.	
1.1.42	County.	
1.1.43	County Amount.	
1.1.44	County Consultant.	
1.1.45	County Review Date.	
1.1.46	County Review Period.	
1.1.47	County Risk Manager.	
1.1.48	County Website	
	Date of Commencement.) =
1.1.49		
1.1.50	Day6)
1.1.51	Declaration of Sufficiency of Funds.	
1.1.52	Defective Work6	
1.1.53	Delay6	
1.1.54	Deleted Work6	ò
1.1.55	Department of Industrial Relations.	
1.1.56	Design Discrepancy6	3
1.1.57	Design Documents	7
1.1.58	Design Intent	7
1.1.59	Designation of Subcontractors	
1.1.60	Differing Site Condition	
1.1.61	Disability Laws	
1.1.62	Discovery Date	
1.1.63	Drawings	
1.1.64	EDA	
1.1.65	Environmental Laws. 7	
1.1.66	Escrow Agent	
1.1.67	Escrow Bid Documents	,
	Event of Contractor Default)
1.1.68	Event of Contractor Default.	•
1.1.69	Evidence of Insurance.	
1.1.70	Excusable Delay	
1.1.71	Existing Improvements.	
1.1.72	Extra Work8	3
1.1.73	Final Completion, Finally Complete	
1.1.74	Final Completion Punch List9	
1.1.75	Final Payment9	
1.1.76	Force Majeure Event9)
1.1.77	Fragnet9)
1.1.78	General Conditions9)
1.1.79	General Requirements9	
1.1.80	Good Faith Determination9)
1.1.81	Governmental Authority.	
1.1.82	Governmental Authority Review Period)
1.1.83	Guarantee To Repair Period	
1.1.84	Hazardous Substance	
1.1.85	Holiday	
1.1.86	Indemnitees 10	
1.1.87	Inspector of Record	
1.1.88	Installation Subcontractor	<i>,</i>
1.1.00	Instructions to Ridders 10	
r i XU	INSTITUTIONS IN BIODARS	1

1.1.90	Intellectual Property Rights	10
1.1.91	Key Personnel, Key Persons	10
1.1.92	Loss, Losses.	10
1.1.93	Modification	10
1.1.94	Mold	11
1.1.95	Non-Collusion Declaration.	11
1.1.96	Notice Inviting Bids.	
1.1.97	Notice Inviting Prequalification Statements.	11
1.1.98	Notice of Change.	
1.1.99	Notice of Completion.	
1.1.100	Notice of Delay	
1.1.101	Notice of Final Completion	11
1.1.102	Notice of Intent to Award.	
1.1.103	Notice of Substantial Completion	
1.1.104	Notice to Proceed.	
1.1.105	Payment Bond, Performance Bond	11
1.1.106	Plans.	11
1.1.107	Post-Award Submittals.	11
1.1.108	Pre-Bid Conference.	
1.1.109	Prequalification.	
1.1.110	Pregualification Documents.	12
1.1.111	Prequalified Bidder.	
1.1.112	Product Data	
1.1.113	Progress Payment.	
1.1.114	Project	
1.1.115	Project Documents.	
1.1.116	Project Team	
1.1.117	Reasonable Order of Magnitude Estimate	12
1.1.118	Record Documents.	12
1.1.119	Record Drawings, Record Specifications	
1.1.120	Reference Documents.	
1.1.121	Request for Extension.	
1.1.122	Request for Information.	
1.1.123	Safety Program.	
1.1.124	Samples.	
1.1.125	Schedule of Values.	
1.1.126	Self-Performed Work.	
1.1.127	Separate Contractor.	
1.1.128	Shop Drawing.	
1.1.129	Site	
1.1.130	Specifications	
1.1.130	Standard of Performance	
1.1.132	State Water Resources Control Board Error! Bookmark not define	d
1.1.132	Storm Water Permit.	
1.1.134	Sub-Bidder.	
	Subcontractor	
1.1.135 1.1.136	Submittal	
1.1.136	Submittal Schedule	
1.1.137	Substantial Completion, Substantially Complete	
1.1.130	Substantial Completion, Substantially Complete	
1.1.139	Substitution	
1.1.140	Substitution Request Form.	
1.1.141	Supplementary Conditions	
1.1.144	Supplementally Conditions	. —

				<u>Page</u>
		1.1.143 1.1.144 1.1.145 1.1.146 1.1.147 1.1.148 1.1.149	Surety Tier Time Impact Analysis Unexcused Delay Unilateral Change Order. Work Worker's Compensation Certificate.	14 14 15 15
	1.2	CORREL	ATION, INTERPRETATION AND INTENT OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	15
		1.2.1 1.2.2 1.2.3 1.2.4 1.2.5	Design Intent Complementary Technical Words Trade Names Incidental Items	15 15 15
		1.2.6 1.2.7 1.2.8 1.2.9 1.2.10 1.2.11 1.2.12	Drawing Dimensions. Drawings, Specifications. Typical Work. Divisions of the Work. Applicable Laws. Interpretations of Laws. Modifiers.	15 16 16 16 16 16
		1.2.13 1.2.14 1.2.15	Singular, Gender, Captions. Cross-References. Diagrammatic Design.	16 16
		1.2.16 1.2.17 1.2.18 1.2.19 1.2.20	Demolition. Omissions. Conflicts. Order of Precedence. Conditions Precedent.	17 17 17
	1.3		SHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER DOCUME	
		1.3.1 1.3.2 1.3.3 1.3.4 1.3.5 1.3.6 1.3.7	Property of County. Assignment of Rights. Contractor's Warranty. Non-Exclusive License. Reproduction. Delivery to County. Subcontractors.	18 18 18 18 18
ARTIC	LE 2 CO	UNTY RIC	SHTS AND OBLIGATIONS	
	2.1	INFORM	ATION, APPROVALS AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF COUNTY	18
		2.1.1 2.1.2 2.1.3 2.1.4 2.1.5	Legal Descriptions. Permits and Fees. County Approvals. Approvals. Non-Specified Items.	18 18 19 19
3	2.2		'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK	

COUNTY'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK......19

ACCOUNTING, RECORDS AND AUDIT......20

Accounting System. 20

2.3

2.4

2.4.1

			<u>Page</u>
	2.4.2 2.4.3 2.4.4 2.4.5 2.4.6	Books and Records. Inspection and Copying. Confidential Information. Withholding of Payment. Specific Performance.	20 20 20
2.5	COUNT	Y FURNISHED MATERIALS	21
	2.5.1 2.5.2 2.5.3 2.5.4 2.5.5 2.5.6 2.5.7	Supply by County. Deleted Work Delivery Deadlines Delivery to Site Care, Custody and Control. Notice of Deficiencies. Incorporation in Work	21 21 21 21
2.6	COUNT	Y INSTALLED ITEMS	21
2.7	COUNT	Y'S ADDITIONAL RIGHTS	21
ARTICLE 3 CO	ONTRACT	OR PERFORMANCE	22
3.1	CONTR	ACTOR STATUS	22
	3.1.1 3.1.2 3.1.3 3.1.4 3.1.5	Independent Contractor. Agents, Employees. Licenses. Subcontractors. Design Services.	22 22 22
3.2	REVIEW	OF DOCUMENTS, SITE AND EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS	22
	3.2.1 3.2.2 3.2.3 3.2.4 3.2.5 3.2.6	Contractor's Duty of Review. Contract Adjustments. WAIVER BY CONTRACTOR. Continuing Obligation. Requests for Information. Correction of Work.	23 24 24 24
3.3	SUPER\	VISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES	25
	3.3.1 3.3.2 3.3.3 3.3.4	General ObligationSupervisory Staff. County Supplementary Personnel. Means, Methods, Procedures	25 26
3.4	LABOR,	MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT	26
	3.4.1 3.4.2 3.4.3 3.4.4 3.4.5	Costs of Work. Coordination Field Conditions. Layout. Materials, Equipment	26 26 26
3.5	CONTR	ACTOR'S WARRANTY	27
	3.5.1 3.5.2 3.5.3	General Warranty Repair, Replacement Not a Limitation	28 28
	3.5.4	Assignment	∠ŏ

3.5.4 3.5.5

3.6	TAXES			
	3.6.1 3.6.2 3.6.3	Payment by Contractor. 2 Tax Exempt Projects. 2 Records of Taxes. 2	28 28	
3.7	PERMITS, FEES AND LEGAL NOTICES			
	3.7.1 3.7.2 3.7.3 3.7.4 3.7.5	Permits	29 29 29	
3.8	CONTRA	CTOR'S PERSONNEL2		
	3.8.1 3.8.2 3.8.3 3.8.4 3.8.5 3.8.6 3.8.7 3.8.8 3.8.9 3.8.10	Key Persons 2 Background Check 2 Project Manager 2 Transfer 2 Removal 2 Replacement 3 Communications 3 Contact Information 3 Signatures 3 Exclusion from Site 3	29 29 29 29 30 30 30	
3.9	CONTRA	CTOR'S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE3	10	
	3.9.1 3.9.2 3.9.3 3.9.4 3.9.5 3.9.6 3.9.7 3.9.8 3.9.9	Preparation. 3 Format. 3 Detail. 3 Updates. 3 Governing Schedule. 3 Submittal Schedule. 3 Schedule Responsibility. 3 Condition of Payment. 3 Scheduling by County. 3	30 31 31 31 31	
3.10	DOCUME	ENTS AT SITE, REPORTING, MEETINGS3	11	
	3.10.1 3.10.2 3.10.3 3.10.4 3.10.5	Documents at Site 3 Daily Reports 3 Progress Meetings 3 Notice Requirements 3 Availability for Review 3	32 33 33	
3.11	SUBMITT	TALS3	13	
	3.11.1 3.11.2 3.11.3 3.11.4 3.11.5 3.11.6	Not Contract Documents	33 34 34	
3.12	USE OF	SITE3	5	
	3.12.1 3.12.2	Staging Area		

			ray
	3.12.3 3.12.4 3.12.5 3.12.6 3.12.7 3.12.8 3.12.9 3.12.10 3.12.11 3.12.12 3.12.13 3.12.14	Operations at Site Coordination Unauthorized Use. Site Security. Persons on Site. County Uses and Activities. Dust, Fumes, Noise. Confinement of Operations. Prohibited Substances. Survey Markers. Drainage, Erosion. Trenches.	35 35 35 35 35 35 36 36
3.13	CUTTING	3 AND PATCHING	. 36
3.14	UTILITIE	S AND SANITARY FACILITIES	. 36
	3.14.1 3.14.2 3.14.3 3.14.4	Contractor Responsibility. County Responsibility. Temporary Utilities. Sanitary Facilities.	. 37 . 37
3.15	CLEANIN	NG UP	. 37
	3.15.1 3.15.2	Contractor Responsibility. Cleanup by County.	
3.16	ACCESS	TO THE WORK	. 38
	3.16.1 3.16.2 3.16.3	County	. 38
3.17	INTELLE	CTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS	. 38
3.18	INDEMN	IFICATION	. 38
	3.18.1 3.18.2 3.18.3 3.18.4 3.18.5 3.18.6 3.18.7	Contractor's Indemnity Obligation Indemnification of Adjacent Property Owners. Insurance and Employment Benefits Subcontractor Indemnity Agreements. Implied Indemnity Rights. Obligation to Defend. Enforcement.	.39 .39 .39 .39
3.19	LABOR,	WAGES, PAYROLL RECORDS	. 40
	3.19.1 3.19.2 3.19.3 3.19.4 3.19.5 3.19.6 3.19.7 3.19.8 3.19.9 3.19.10	Public Work Prevailing Wage Rates Unclassified Workers Per Diem Wages Applicable Laws Posting at Site Worker Hours Overtime Payroll Records Apprentices	.40 .40 .40 .40 .40 .40
	3.19.11 3.19.12	Pre-Construction Meetings, Interviews. Penalties for Violations.	.42

		3.19.13 3.19.14	Subcontractor Provisions. Condition of Payment.	
	3.20	LABOR	CODE §2810	43
		3.20.1	Application.	43
		3.20.2	Declaration by Contractor.	
		3.20.3	Continuing Duty.	
	3.21	URBAN	RUNOFF AND STORM WATER COMPLIANCE	
	0.21			
		3.21.1 3.21.2	Contractor's Responsibility.	44
		3.21.2	Inspections, ReportsViolations.	44
		3.21.4	Condition of Payment.	
		3.21.5	Costs of Compliance	
	3.22	SOLID W	VASTE MANAGEMENT	
			OMPLIANCE	
	3.23			
	3.24	AQMD C	OMPLIANCE	45
ART	TICLE 4 CC	ONSTRUC	TION ADMINISTRATION & CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT	45
	4.1	ARCHIT	ECT (CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION)	45
		4.1.1	Scope of Authority.	45
		4.1.2	Limitations on Authority.	45
		4.1.3	Work Stoppage.	
		4.1.4	Replacement	
		4.1.5	County Rights.	46
	4.2	CONST	RUCTION MANAGER (CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT)	46
		4.2.1	Scope of Authority.	46
		4.2.2	Limitations on Authority.	
		4.2.3	Work Stoppage	
		4.2.4	Replacement	
		4.2.5	County Rights.	
	4.3	ADMINIS	STRATION OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT	
		4.3.1	Observations of the Work	
		4.3.2	Means, Methods.	
		4.3.3	Communications by Contractor.	
		4.3.4	Review of Applications for Payment.	
		4.3.5	Rejection of the Work.	
		4.3.6 4.3.7	Review of Submittals. Changes	
	4.4			
		4.4.1	Submission of Claims.	
		4.4.2	Arising of Claim.	
		4.4.3	Content of Claims.	
		4.4.4 4.4.5	Noncompliance. Submission of Claims.	
		4.4.5 4.4.6	Response to Claims by Contractor.	
		4.4.7	Meet and Confer.	
		4.4.8	Claims Based on Differing Site Conditions	